
 

Workforce Solutions Alamo is an equal opportunity employer/program. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may 

need auxiliary aids, services, or special accommodations should contact Linda Martinez at (210) 272-3250 at least two (2) working days prior to 

the meeting, so that appropriate arrangements can be made. Relay Texas: 1-800-735-2989 (TDD) or 1-800-735-2988 (Voice). 

 

 

 

 
 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Workforce Solutions Alamo 

100 N. Santa Rosa, Suite 101 

San Antonio, TX 78207 

June 5, 2020 

9:00 AM 
                                                

AGENDA 
Agenda items may not be considered in the order they appear. 

 

Citizens may appear before the Committee to speak for or against any item on the agenda in accordance with 

procedural rules governing meetings.  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes on each topic (6 minutes if 

translation is needed).  Speakers are encouraged to register at the beginning of the meeting.  Questions relating to 

these rules may be directed to Linda Martinez at (210) 272-3250. 

 

To protect the health of the public and limit the potential spread of COVID 19 as directed by Governor of Texas, 

Bexar County and City of San Antonio, WSA will hold this meeting via videoconferencing.  The meeting will be 

held in compliance with the suspended provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act.  For those members of the 

public that would like to participate, please call toll-free 1-877-858-6860, which will provide two-way 

communications through a speaker phone.  For additional information, please call Linda G. Martinez, (210) 

581-1093.  
 

I. Call to Order and Quorum Determination 
Presenter: Chair Solis 

 

II. Roll Call 
Presenter: Chair Solis 

 

III. Declarations of Conflict of Interest 
Presenter: Chair Solis 

 

IV. Public Comment 
Presenter: Chair Solis 

 

V. Consent Agenda: Discussion and Possible Action 
Presenter: Chair Solis 

 

a. Prior meeting minutes for February 14, 2020 3 

b. Budget Amendment #3 6 

c. Check Signing Policy 17 

VI. Audit & Finance Committee 
Presenter: Chair Batch 

 

a. Discussion and possible action regarding the 2018-2019 Audit Report 20 

b. Financial Reports 57 

c. Procurement Reports 63 



 

Workforce Solutions Alamo is an equal opportunity employer/program. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may 

need auxiliary aids, services, or special accommodations should contact Linda Martinez at (210) 272-3250 at least two (2) working days prior to 

the meeting, so that appropriate arrangements can be made. Relay Texas: 1-800-735-2989 (TDD) or 1-800-735-2988 (Voice). 

VII. Briefing: Human Resources 
Presenter: Lisa Bartee 

 

a. WSA Employee Handbook Revision 72 

b. Organizational Review 182 

c. HR Consultant 200 

VIII. Oversight Committee Report 
Presenter: Chair Watson 

 

a. Monthly Performance 207 

b. Childcare Services 237 

IX. CEO Report 
Presenter: Adrian Lopez 

 

a. Briefing on County and City Workforce Proposals  245 

b. Plan to Re-open 16 Workforce Centers 255 

X. Chair Report 
Presenter: Chair Solis 

 

XI. Executive Session:  Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 
the Committee may recess into Executive Session for discussion on any issue 
for which there is an exception to the Act as set out in section 551.071 et. seq. 
including, but not limited to, the following: 
Presenter: Frank Burney 

 

a. Government Code §551.072 – Discussions Regarding Purchase, Exchange, 
Lease, or Value of Real Property if Deliberation in an Open Meeting Would 
Have a Detrimental Effect on the Position of Workforce Solutions Alamo in 
Negotiations with a Third Party; and  

 

b. Government Code §551.071 - All Matters Where Workforce Solutions Alamo 
Seeks the Advice of its Attorney as Privileged Communications under the 
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas. 

 

c. Pending or Contemplated Litigation; including, but not limited to, any 
litigation involving Cynthia Farias. 

 

d. Government Code §551.074- Personnel Matters involving Senior Executive 
Staff and Employees of Workforce Solutions Alamo, including litigation by 
former employee Cynthia Farias. 

 

XII. Adjournment 
Presenter: Chair Solis 

 

 



MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
FEBRUARY 14, 2020 

The Board of Trustees 
Workforce Solutions Alamo 

 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING of the Board of Directors of Workforce Solutions Alamo was 
held on Friday, February 14, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. at 100 N. Santa Rosa St., Suite 101, San Antonio, 
TX. 78207.  Chair Solis called the meeting to order at 9:07 a.m. The roll was called and a quorum 
was declared present.   There was no Public Comment nor Conflict of Interest.  
  
Attendees: 
Juan Solis, Chair  
John T. Blaylock, Secretary 
Mary Batch  
Eric Cooper 
Mark Luft 
Ben Peavy 
Ravae Villafranca Shaeffer 
Doug Watson 
 
Partners:   
David Meadows 
Diane Rath  
Pooja Tripathi 
 
WSA Counsel:   
Frank Burney 
 
WSA Staff:   
Adrian Lopez, Chief Executive Officer 
Louis Tatum, Chief Financial Officer 
Patti Santos, Board Liaison 
LaVonia Horne-Williams, Director of Contracts and Procurement 
Ricardo Ramirez, Director of Analytics, Performance & Strategy 
Tony Martinez, Child Care Manager 
Tiffany Harris, Business Engagement Manager 
Casey Clanton, Quality Assurance 
 
Guests:  
Gabriela Horbach 
Melissa Sadler-Nitu 
Roberto Correl 
Cherie Smith  
Manuel Ugues  
Aaron Smith 
 
 
 
 
  

3



 
I. Consent Agenda (Presenter: Juan Solis, Chair)   

  
Upon motion by Director Watson and second by Director Batch, the Committee 
unanimously approved the following items IV (a-e): 
 
a. January 10, 2020 Minutes 
b. Unemployment Insurance (UI) Weekly Work Search Contract Requirements 
c. Quality Assurance (QA) Policy 
d. Self-Service Kiosk Services 
e. WSA Check Signing Authority Policy 
 
Item IV(f) Budget Amendment #2 FY 20 was pulled by Chair Solis for individual 
consideration.  Mr. Tatum briefed the Committee on the proposed Budget Amendment #2. 
Upon motion by Director Luft and second by Director Cooper, the Committee unanimously 
approved the budget amendment, with the condition that the Committee of Six be briefed 
on Budget Amendment. 
 
Committee of 6 will be briefed on Budget Amendment. 

 
II. CEO Report (Presenter:  Adrian Lopez) 
 

a. Child Care Success Story:  Contractors C2 Global and SERCO will recruit employers 
to provide worksite placement for SEAL participants throughout the workforce area. 
Providers for Work Readiness training (Partners in Progress) and Worksite Placement 
and Monitoring (The River City Group) for SEAL participants will provide the same 
services this year. 

b. Discussions with Rural Judges (met with 12 of 13 Judges):  CEO briefed Judges on 
goals for 2020.  Judges outlined the needs of their communities, such as increased 
internships and training, marketing of WSA services, increasing childcare 
opportunities, collaboration with local colleges, and increased use of technology. WSA 
will address those concerns by follow up meetings with full Commissioners’ Courts. 

c. Workforce Masterplan:  CEO outlined Masterplan with traditional areas of focus plus 
target populations, AWDA specific solutions, industry focus, partnering and 
collaborations, and increased communications. Members asked how military 
community and programs for felons will be addressed. 

d. SEAL: Planning for summer of 2020 continues even though funding from TWC has 
not been allocated, incorporating lessons from 2019. Contractors will be in charge of 
placement. CEO requested any leads from Board for intern placements. 

e. Datapoint:  Grand Opening on Thursday, February 27, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. The Board 
is invited to attend. 

f. Progress on 90-day plan. CEO briefed Committee on personnel changes and internal 
evaluations, programs, and training.  He reviewed progress on all 90-day benchmarks. 

g. Introduction of WSA COO. He introduced Mark Milton to the Board.  Chair Solis 
reminded Committee that he has appointed a Marketing Committee to assist WSA.  

 
III. Human Resources Report (Presenter: Mary Batch) 

 
In the absence of Chair Cantu, Director Batch reported on the engagement of the 
organizational consultant and revisions of Personnel Policies (Employee Handbook).  

 

4



IV.  Audit and Finance Committee Report (Presenter: Mary Batch) 
a. Monthly Finance Reports:  Mr. Tatum provided update. 
b. Procurements Reports and Update: Ms. Horne-Williams reported on pending 

procurements and contracts. 
 
 

V. Oversight Committee Report (Presenter:  Doug Watson) 
Chair Watson reviewed performance of programs. He requested that staff highlight any 
program issues for his Committee, such as WOIA Youth program that has limited 
enrollment. Staff provided explanation as to the issues causing delay in enrollment under 
this program. Chair Watson also highlighted “shared services” for childcare centers.   

 
VI. Next Scheduled Meeting 

March 20, 2020 at 9:00 AM (meeting was postponed due to COVID-19) 
 
VII.   Executive Session:   

Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, the Board may recess 
into Executive Session for discussion on any issue for which there is an exception 
to the Act as set out in section 551.071 et. seq. including, but not limited to, the 
following:  

 
a. Government Code §551.072 – Discussions Regarding Purchase, Exchange, 

Lease, or Value of Real Property if Deliberation in an Open Meeting Would Have 
a Detrimental Effect on the Position of Workforce Solutions Alamo in 
Negotiations with a Third Party;  

b. Government Code §551.071 - All Matters Where Workforce Solutions Alamo 
Seeks the Advice of its Attorney as Privileged Communications under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas:   

c. Pending or Contemplated Litigation; and  
d. Government Code §551.074- Personnel Matters involving CEO, Senior Executive 

Staff and Employees of Workforce Solutions Alamo, including litigation by 
former employee Cynthia Farias. 
 

The Board went into Executive Session at 10:29 am and returned to Open Session at 
10:35. No action was taken. 
 

VIII. Adjournment (Presenter:  Chair Solis) 
 

 There being no further business, a motion was made by Director Luft and second by 
Director Watson that the meeting adjourn.  The motion carried unanimously.  The meeting 
adjourned at 10:37 a.m. 

 
Enclosures 

a. Certificate of Executive Session 
 
 
 

5



 

 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
To:    Workforce Solutions Executive Committee  
 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 
 
Presented by:  Louis Tatum 

 
Date:    June 5, 2020 

 
Subject:   Budget Amendment #3 

 

 
Summary:  WSA adopted the budget for the Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 
2020, based on estimates of carryover funds and new funding available on October 2019. A 
budget amendment is necessary due to significant funding received as a result of the CARES 
Act funding being allocated to the Workforce Solutions Alamo.  
 
Analysis: This budget amendment primarily represents changes in pass through funding that 
support additional TWC funding for Child Care Services, National Emergency Grant Services for 
Dislocated Workers, and the cancellation of the Summer Earn and Learn program.  Additional 
budget considerations were made to the Facility and Infrastructure Budget to support remote 
working conditions, sanitization of the Workforce Centers, and upgrades to communications to 
provide multiple services delivery options to customers receiving workforce services.  
 
Alternatives: None 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The requested budget amendment will increase the overall budget by roughly 
16% ($20,936,708), approximately 82% of the increase is accounted for in service delivery pass 
through funding. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval to increase the fiscal year by $20,936,708 to 
support the Workforce Solutions Alamo response to the COVID 19. 
 
Attachment: Amendment #3 
 

6



 

 
Workforce Solutions Alamo Board 

Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020 
Proposed Budget Amendment #3 

 
  Budget    Remarks Overall 

Impact  

#3 Revenue 
 

Adult 
Dislocated 
Youth 
Rapid Response 
TANF 
SNAP 
Non-Custodial Parent 
Child Care CCF 
Child Care CCM 
Child Care CCP 
Trade Act 
Employment Services 
RAG 
Veterans  
Child Quality 
Workforce Initiatives/Others 
Externship for Teachers 
Reemployment Services  
Military Family support 
Student Hire ability Navigator 
Vocation Rehabilitation Co-Location 
Summer Earn and Learn 
Disaster Recovery Dislocated Work Grant   
 

Total Increase  

($1,567)                   
(3,541) 
(4,202) 
50,000 
(4,869) 

- 
(83) 

20,028,403 
105,909 

- 
- 

345,443 
- 
 

556 
- 

(1) 
- 

(12) 
(33) 

8,304 
(890,000) 
1,302,401 

 
$20,936,708 

  Expenditures  

  Corporate 
 
   

Personnel  
Salaries Wages- Attrition from unfilled positions 
Fringes  

Personnel Subtotal  
 

General Office Expense 
Office Supplies 
Storage 

General Office Expense Subtotal  
 
Professional Services  
Temporary Staffing- Total Budget $128,000 
Board Plan Increase Total Budget $125,000 
Web Design new DIR 
Human Resource Consultant new 

Professional Services Subtotal                                                
Net Change 

 
($125,000)  

(35,000) 
$(160,000) 

  
 

4,200 
7,800 

$12,000 
 
 

$38,000 
25,000 
60,000 
25,000 

$148,000 
-    

7



 

 Facilities        
  

Facility Expenditures due to COVID 19:  
 
The following expenditure were incurred due to closing Workforce 
Centers, implementing remote working environments, and preparing to 
reopen centers.  
 
Technology Expenditures:  
Surface Pro (5) 
Laptops (334)                                                                              
Laptop Accessories, Antivirus & Support                               
Cabinet, E-Sign & Adobe, Licenses                                                       
 
Sanitization 
Additional Janitorial Services  
Cleaning Supplies 
Contingency for COVID-19 Security & Safety  
COVID 19 Facilities Subtotal 
 
Communications & Renovations 
Orrin phones Dx80 
Barcom  
Update Phones & Houston Renovations 
Modifications Front Desk  
Facility upgrades and renovations 

 
-Net Adjustment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$19,805 
308,885 
111,299 

98,590 
 

26,473 
18,277 

100,000 
$683,329 

 
 

50,000 
50,000 
50,000  
50,000 

$200,000 
 

$883,329 

 Projects Changes to projects includes an increase to Rapid 
Response and a potential contract for Employment 
Services   
 
Cancellation of Summer Earn & Learn 

 
-Net adjustment 

 
$323,286 

 
                 

(290,000) 
 

$33,286 

 Contractors 
 

Material changes to contractors to support COVID19 
programs, in addition to changes in Rapid Response and 
the cancellation of Summer Earn & Learn. 
 
Child Care CCF COVID19 
TWC DOL COVID19 
WIOA Rapid Response 
Summer Earn & Learn 

 
-Net adjustment 

 
 
 
 

$16,787,020 
735,220 

47,157 
(450,000) 

 
$17,119,397 

 Reserve 
 

Net increase in reserve primary childcare of $3,000,696 
Other programs had minor changes 

-Net adjustment 

 
 

$2,900,696 
 

     

8



Adopted

Amendment 

#1 Amendment #2 Amendment #3 Amended 

Annual    Annual

Budget Budget

2019-2020 2019-2020

Workforce Solutions-Alamo

Board Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 - September 30, 2020

 Budget Amendment #3

PERSONNEL

Salaries/Wages 3,019,212         -                 -                    (125,000)             2,894,212           
Fringe Benefits 834,822            -                 -                    (35,000)               799,822              
Staff Travel 70,000              70,000                
Staff Training/Development 30,000              30,000                

PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL: 3,954,034         -                 -                    (160,000)             3,794,034           

FACILITY

Rent 340,000            340,000              
FACILITY SUBTOTAL: 340,000            -                 -                    -                      340,000              

EQUIPMENT/RELATED COSTS

Equipment Purchases 30,000              30,000                
Equipment Rental 20,000              20,000                
Repair & Maintenance-Equipment 2,000                2,000                  
Software Licenses 10,000              10,000                
Software Maintenance & Support 35,000              35,000                

EQUIPMENT/RELATED COSTS SUBTOTAL: 97,000              -                 -                    -                      97,000                

GENERAL OFFICE EXPENSES

Communications 55,000              55,000                
Advertising 5,000                5,000                  
Insurance 235,000            65,000           300,000              
Office Supplies 34,000              4,200                  38,200                
Postage/Shipping/Other 4,000                4,000                  
Printing, Binding & Reproduction 10,500              10,500                
Publications & Subscriptions 5,500                5,500                  
Dues 25,000              25,000                
Storage 8,000                7,800                  15,800                
Marketing (External) 90,000              90,000                
Miscellaneous Costs 10,000              10,000                
Non Federal 50,000              50,000                

GENERAL OFFICE EXP SUBTOTAL: 532,000            65,000           -                    12,000                609,000              

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Legal-General Corporate Matters 90,000              90,000                
Legal-Other Corporate Matters 85,000              85,000                
Audit 80,000              80,000                
Monitoring (Contractor) 300,000            300,000              
Professional Services 172,000            122,000            148,000              442,000              

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SUBTOTAL: 727,000            -                 122,000            148,000              997,000              

BOARD EXPENSES

Board Member Travel 8,000                8,000                  
Board Member Training/Development 7,000                7,000                  
Board Meetings/Misc. 20,000              20,000                

BOARD EXPENSES SUBTOTAL: 35,000              -                 -                    -                      35,000                

TOTAL WSA OPERATING BUDGET 5,685,034         65,000           122,000            -                      5,872,034           

9



Adopted

Amendment 

#1 Amendment #2 Amendment #3 Amended 

Annual    Annual

Budget Budget

2019-2020 2019-2020

Workforce Solutions-Alamo

Board Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 - September 30, 2020

 Budget Amendment #3

SUMMARY:

Personnel 3,954,034         -                 -                    (160,000)             3,794,034           
Facility 340,000            -                 -                    -                      340,000              
Equipment/Related Costs 97,000              -                 -                    -                      97,000                
General Office Expenses 532,000            65,000           -                    12,000                609,000              
Professional Services 727,000            -                 122,000            148,000              997,000              
Board Expenses 35,000              -                 -                    -                      35,000                

TOTAL WSA OPERATING BUDGET 5,685,034         65,000           122,000            -                      5,872,034           

FACILITY & INFRASTRUCTURE BUDGET

Facility Related Occupancy 2,795,066         72,000           2,867,066           
Equipment Related 214,395            36,000           250,395              
Rental of Equipment 179,678            179,678              
Software Related 276,441            276,441              
Communications 228,805            228,805              
General Office 93,595              93,595                
TWC Commission Initiatives 27,855              27,855                
Reserve facility 1,161,940         775,000         883,329              2,820,269           
Total Facility & Infrastructure Budget 4,977,776         883,000         -                    883,329              6,744,104           

RESERVE UNOBLIGATED 5,326,399         (1,414,674)        2,900,696           6,812,421           

PROJECTS 1,361,979         -                 174,515            33,286                1,569,780           

SERVICE DELIVERY  BUDGET

WIOA ADULT 3,465,161         3,465,161           
WIOA DISLOCATED 3,494,069         3,494,069           
WIOA YOUTH 4,338,272         4,338,272           
WIOA RAPID RESPONSE -                    47,157                47,157                
TANF 4,410,565         4,410,565           
SNAP E&T 1,277,464         1,277,464           
NON CUSTODIAL PARENT 364,552            364,552              
CHILD CARE CCF 49,277,504       5,984,293         16,787,021         72,048,818         
CHILD CARE CCM 9,195,023         521,601            9,716,624           
CHILD CARE CCP\CCC 9,566,850         (158,701)           9,408,149           
TRADE ACT SERVICES 275,269            1,315                276,584              
CHILD CARE ATTENDANCE AUTOMATION -                    -                      
CCQ QUALITY 1,081,376         719,119            1,800,495           
EXTERNSHIP FOR TEACHERS -                    -                      
REEMPLOYMENT SERVICES -                    450,000            450,000              
MILITARY FAMILY SUPPORT 61,084              213,984            275,068              
INFRA SUPPORT VR 69,985              69,985                
VR SUMMER EARN AND LEARN 450,000            (450,000)             -                      
WORKFORCE Innovation 200,000            200,000              
YOUTH JOB SKILL INIIATIVE 260,400            260,400              
PERFORMANCE AWARD -                      
ALAMO COLLEGE 165,450            165,450              
TWC DOL COVID 19 735,220              735,220              
SERVICE DELIVERY  BUDGET 87,527,173       8,157,461         17,119,398         112,804,032       

TOTAL   104,878,361$   948,000$      7,039,302$       20,936,708$       133,802,371$     

10



Group  GRANT FUND Grant Budget YTD as 09/30/19

 Bal to start 

fiscal yr. 

 Revised Budget 

to be adopted Amended #2 Variance
1.0           WIOA ADULT 18WA1 690,608              608,214                 82,394                82,394                82,395                (1)                      

18WA2 3,025,854          2,644,122             381,732              381,732              383,299              (1,567)               

19WA1 753,296              -                         753,296              753,296              753,296              -                    

19WA2 3,300,517          -                         3,300,517          3,300,517          3,300,517          -                    

20WA1 640,302              640,302              640,302              640,302              -                    

1 Total 8,410,577          3,252,336             5,158,241          5,158,241          5,159,808          (1,568)              

2.0           WIOA DISLOCATED 18WD1 623,704              522,607                 101,097              101,097              101,181              (83)                    

18WD2 2,656,388          1,959,452             696,936              696,936              700,394              (3,458)               

19WD1 711,177              -                         711,177              711,177              711,177              -                    

19WD2 2,946,453          -                         2,946,453          2,946,453          2,946,453          -                    

20WD1 604,500              604,500              604,500              604,500              -                    

2 Total 7,542,222          2,482,059             5,060,164          5,060,164          5,063,705          (3,541)              

3.0           WIOA YOUTH 18WOY 4,005,365          3,939,551             65,814                65,814                69,701                (3,887)               

19WOY 4,373,355          201,450                 4,171,905          4,171,905          4,172,221          (316)                  

20WOY 926,596              926,596              926,596              926,596              -                    

3 Total 9,305,316          4,141,001             5,164,316          5,164,316          5,168,518          (4,202)              

4.0           WIOA RAPID RESPONSE 19WOR 95,735                20,042                   75,693                75,693                25,693                50,000              

20WOR 32,898                -                         32,898                32,898                32,898                -                    

4 Total 128,633             20,042                   108,591             108,591             58,591                50,000             

5.0           TANF 19TAF 5,547,913          4,860,125             687,788              687,788              692,657              (4,869)               

20TAF 6,169,544          -                         6,169,544          6,169,544          6,169,544          -                    

5 Total 11,717,457        4,860,125             6,857,332          6,857,332          6,862,201          (4,869)              

6.0           SNAP E&T 20SNE 1,886,220          -                         1,886,220          1,886,220          1,886,220          -                    

6 Total 1,886,220          -                         1,886,220          1,886,220          1,886,220          -                    

7.0          

 NON CUSTODIAL 

PARENT 20NCP 437,578              3,901                     433,677              433,677              433,760              (83)                    

7 Total 437,578             3,901                     433,677             433,677             433,760             (83)                    

Workforce Solutions Alamo
Board Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020

Method of Finance

Budget Amendment #3

11



Group  GRANT FUND Grant Budget YTD as 09/30/19

 Bal to start 

fiscal yr. 

 Revised Budget 

to be adopted Amended #2 Variance

Workforce Solutions Alamo
Board Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020

Method of Finance

Budget Amendment #3

8.0           CHILD CARE CCF 19CCF 53,517,026        52,396,168           1,120,858          1,120,858          1,116,921          3,937                

20CCF 77,236,918        -                         77,236,918        77,236,918        57,212,452        20,024,466      

8 Total 130,753,944      52,396,168           78,357,776        78,357,776        58,329,373        20,028,403      

9.0           CHILD CARE CCM 19CCM 7,066,323          1,624,535             5,441,788          5,441,788          5,335,879          105,909           

20CCM 7,210,326          -                         7,210,326          7,210,326          7,210,326          -                    

9 Total 14,276,649        1,624,535             12,652,114        12,652,114        12,546,205        105,909           

10.0         CHILD CARE CCP 20CCP 10,019,800        611,651                 9,408,149          9,408,149          9,408,149          -                    

10 Total 10,019,800        611,651                9,408,149          9,408,149          9,408,149          -                    

11.0         TRADE ACT SERVICES 19TRA 470,269              275,224                 195,045              70,269                70,269                -                    

20TRA 226,315              -                         226,315              226,315              226,315              -                    

11 Total 696,584             275,224                421,360             296,584             296,584             -                    

12.0         EMPLOYMENT 19WPA 676,665              576,528                 100,137              100,137              100,857              (720)                  

20WPA 974,962              -                         974,962              974,962              628,799              346,163           

12 Total 1,651,627          576,528                1,075,099          1,075,099          729,656             345,443           

13.0       

 RESOURCE ADMIN 

GRANT 20RAG 11,857                -                         11,857                11,857                11,857                -                    

13 Total 11,857                -                         11,857                11,857                11,857                -                    

14.0       

 VETERANS 

EMPLOYMENT SERVICE VES20 270,000              270,000              270,000              270,000              -                    

14 Total 270,000             270,000             270,000             270,000             -                    

15.0       

 CHILD CARE 

ATTENDANCE 

AUTOMATION 20CAA 361,164              -                         361,164              361,164              361,164              -                    

15 Total 361,164             -                         361,164             361,164             361,164             -                    

16.0         CCQ QUALITY 19CCQ 2,473,628          2,091,518             382,110              382,110              381,555              556                   

20CCQ 1,941,072          -                         1,941,072          1,941,072          1,941,072          -                    

16 Total 4,414,700          2,091,518             2,323,182          2,323,182          2,322,627          556                   

12



Group  GRANT FUND Grant Budget YTD as 09/30/19

 Bal to start 

fiscal yr. 

 Revised Budget 

to be adopted Amended #2 Variance

Workforce Solutions Alamo
Board Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020

Method of Finance

Budget Amendment #3

17.0       

 WORK  COMMISION 

INITIATIVES 19WCI 144,333              51,868                   92,465                92,465                92,465                -                    

20WCI 105,272              -                         105,272              105,272              105,272              -                    

17 Total 249,605             51,868                   197,737             197,737             197,737             -                    

18.0       

 EXTERNSHIP FOR 

TEACHERS 19EXT 200,000              165,506                 34,494                34,494                34,495                (1)                      

18 Total 200,000             165,506                34,494                34,494                34,495                (1)                      

19.0         REEMPLOYMENT 20REA 651,116              -                         651,116              651,116              651,116              -                    

19 Total 651,116             -                         651,116             651,116             651,116             -                    

20.0         MILITARY 19WS1 222,630              122,155                 100,475              100,475              100,487              (12)                    

20WSA 222,630              -                         222,630              222,630              222,630              -                    

20 Total 445,260             122,155                323,105             323,105             323,117             (12)                    

21.0       

 STUDENT HIREABLILITY 

NAVIAGATOR 18HNI 200,000              8,744                     191,256              191,256              191,289              (33)                    

19HNI 16,667                -                         16,667                16,667                16,667                (0)                      

21 Total 216,667             8,744                     207,923             207,923             207,956             (33)                    

22.0         INFRA SUPPORT VR 20COL 660,168              52,948                   607,220              607,220              598,917              8,304                

21COL 50,443                -                         50,443                50,443                50,443                (0)                      

22 Total 710,611             52,948                   657,663             657,663             649,360             8,304                

23.0       

 SUMMER EARN & 

LEARN 19VRS 900,000              601,025                 298,975              -                      -                    

20VRS 10,000                -                         10,000                10,000                900,000              (890,000)          

23 Total 910,000             601,025                308,975             10,000                900,000             (890,000)          

24.0       

 WIOA ALTERNATIVE 

FUNDING 19WAF 479,224              479,224              479,224              479,224              -                    

24 Total 479,224             479,224             479,224             479,224             -                    

13



Group  GRANT FUND Grant Budget YTD as 09/30/19

 Bal to start 

fiscal yr. 

 Revised Budget 

to be adopted Amended #2 Variance

Workforce Solutions Alamo
Board Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020

Method of Finance

Budget Amendment #3

25.0       

 YOUTH JOB SKILL 

INIIATIVE 19WS2 286,000              286,000              286,000              286,000              -                    

25 Total 286,000             286,000             286,000             286,000             -                    

26.0       

 PERFORMANCE 

AWARD-CHOICES 19PAB 30,000                17,208                   12,792                12,792                12,792                -                    

26 Total 30,000                17,208                   12,792                12,792                12,792                -                    

29.0         Alamo  College HPOG1 81,870                81,870                81,870                83,580                (1,710)               

TEC20 83,580                -                         83,580                83,580                81,870                1,710                

29 Total 165,450             -                         165,450             165,450             165,450             0                        

35.0         Non Federal Other 50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                0                        

35 Total 50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                0                        

27.0         DOL COVID19 19COV 1,302,401          1,302,401          1,302,401          -                      1,302,401        

27 Total 1,302,401          1,302,401          1,302,401          -                      1,302,401        

Grand Total 207,580,663      73,354,541           134,226,123      133,802,371      112,865,663      20,936,708      

14



REVENUE

Funding Source Funds Avaliable Board Budget Facilities Projects Contractors

Reserved-

Unobligated

WIOA ADULT (1,567)                        186,951                   (188,518)            

WIOA DISLOCATED (3,541)                        (19,061)              80,400                     (64,880)              

WIOA YOUTH (4,203)                        81,533                     (85,736)              

WIOA RAPID RESPONSE 50,000                       2,843                         47,157                 

TANF (4,869)                        125,000             245,131                   (375,000)            

SNAP E&T

NON CUSTODIAL PARENT (83)                             (83)                            

CHILD CARE CCF 20,028,403                250,000                   16,787,021          2,991,382          

CHILD CARE CCM 105,909                     105,909             

CHILD CARE CCP

TRADE ACT SERVICES

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 345,443                     25,000                     320,443                     

RESOURCE ADMIN GRANT

VETERANS EMPLOYMENT SERVICE

CHILD CARE ATTENDANCE AUTOMATION

CCQ QUALITY 556                             556                           

WORK  COMMISION INITIATIVES

EXTERNSHIP FOR TEACHERS (1)                                (1)                              

REEMPLOYMENT

MILITARY (12)                             (12)                            

STUDENT HIREABLILITY NAVIAGATOR (33)                             (33)                            

INFRA SUPPORT VR 8,304                         8,304                        

SUMMER EARN & LEARN (890,000)                    (125,000)            (5,000)                      (290,000)                    (450,000)              (20,000)              

WIOA ALTERNATIVE FUNDING FOR 

STATEWIDE ACTIVITIES

YOUTH JOB SKILL INIIATIVE

PERFORMANCE AWARD

ALAMO COLLEGE

NON-FEDERAL

TWC DOL COVID19 1,302,401                  19,061               10,583                     735,219               537,539             

Total 20,936,708               -                      883,329                   33,286                       17,119,397          2,900,696          

CHANGE

WORFORCE SOLUTIONS ALAMO

Entity Amendment #3

OCTOBER 01, 2019  - SEPTEMBER 30,2020

15



REVENUE

Funding Source Funds Avaliable Board Budget Facilities Projects Contractors

Reserved-

Unobligated

WIOA ADULT 5,158,241                  726,470                   966,611                 -                             3,465,161            (0)                     

WIOA DISLOCATED 5,060,164                  638,538                   927,557                 -                             3,494,069            -                  

WIOA YOUTH 5,164,316                  466,650                   359,393                 -                             4,338,272            0                      

WIOA RAPID RESPONSE 108,591                     -                            -                         61,434                       47,157                 -                  

TANF 6,857,332                  937,841                   1,442,601              -                             4,410,565            66,325            

SNAP E&T 1,886,220                  332,182                   274,420                 -                             1,277,464            2,154              

NON CUSTODIAL PARENT 433,677                     38,608                     15,517                   -                             364,552               15,000            

CHILD CARE CCF 78,357,776                2,179,679                987,897                 150,000                     72,048,818          2,991,382       

CHILD CARE CCM 12,652,114                -                            -                         -                             9,716,624            2,935,490       

CHILD CARE CCP 9,408,149                  -                            -                         -                             9,408,149            -                  

TRADE ACT SERVICES 296,584                     3,000                        10,000                   -                             276,584               7,000              

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 1,075,099                  54,000                     593,463                 320,443                     -                        107,193          

RESOURCE ADMIN GRANT 11,857                       1,108                        10,749                   -                             -                        -                  

VETERANS EMPLOYMENT SERVICE 270,000                     11,650                     258,350                 -                             -                        -                  

CHILD CARE ATTENDANCE AUTOMATION 361,164                     -                            -                         361,164                     -                        -                  

CCQ QUALITY 2,323,182                  152,500                   130,463                 169,151                     1,800,495            70,574            

WORK  COMMISION INITIATIVES 197,737                     -                            58,868                   138,869                     -                        -                  

EXTERNSHIP FOR TEACHERS 34,494                       5,000                        (1)                            29,495                       -                        -                  

REEMPLOYMENT 651,116                     84,000                     108,000                 -                             450,000               9,116              

MILITARY 323,105                     1,000                        1,988                     -                             275,068               45,049            

STUDENT HIREABLILITY NAVIAGATOR 207,923                     207,956                   (33)                         -                             -                        -                  

INFRA SUPPORT VR 657,663                     -                            587,679                 -                             69,985                 -                  

SUMMER EARN & LEARN 10,000                       -                            -                         10,000                       -                        -                  

WIOA ALTERNATIVE FUNDING FOR 

STATEWIDE ACTIVITIES 479,224                     -                            -                         279,224                     200,000               -                  

YOUTH JOB SKILL INIIATIVE 286,000                     -                            -                         -                             260,400               25,600            

PERFORMANCE AWARD 12,792                       12,792                     -                         -                             -                        -                  

ALAMO COLLEGE 165,450                     -                            -                         -                             165,450               -                  

NON-FEDERAL 50,000                       -                            -                         50,000                       -                        -                  

TWC DOL COVID19 1,302,401                  19,061                     10,583                   -                             735,219               537,539          

Total 133,802,371             5,872,034                6,744,105             1,569,780                 112,804,031       6,812,421      

Amended Budget

OCTOBER 01, 2019  - SEPTEMBER 30,2020

Entity Amendment #3

WORFORCE SOLUTIONS ALAMO

16



 

 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
To:    Executive Committee  
 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 
 
Presented by:  Louis Tatum 

 
Date:    June 5, 2020 

 
Subject: Discussion and Possible Action: Check Signing Authority 

Policy 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  The current Check Signing Authority Policy ADM 45, C2 was adopted on August 15, 
2016 to provide strong internal controls and safeguard the expenditure of funds.  All checks, drafts 
or orders for payment of money (including electronic funds transfers), notes or other evidence of 
indebtedness in the name of the Corporation shall require the following authorization: 
 

• Amounts $.01 to $3,000.00 requires 1 signature  
• Amounts $3,000.01 to $100,000.00 requires 2 signatures 

• Amounts $100,000 and over require two signatures, one signature must be from  
o Board Chair 
o Board Vice-Chair 
o Board Secretary 

  
Analysis:  WSA has made strides in embracing a remote workforce to protect our employees, 
customers, and the community at large. Consequently, a limitation is issuing payments over 
$3,000 vendors late and the potential for incurring late fees and interest. We are requesting to 
allow one original signature and the option for one electronic signature for payments over $3,000. 
This additional flexibility will allow WSA meet financial obligations while maintaining the integrity 
of established financial controls.  
 
Alternatives:  N/A 
 
Fiscal Impact:  N/A 

 
Recommendation:  Discussion and possible action to approve policy updates. 
 

Attachments: ADM 45, C3. 

 

17



 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM OF RECORD 

 

ID NO: ADM 45-C3                           DATE ISSUED:  May 22, 2020 

 

TO:  Workforce Solutions Alamo  

      

FROM: Adrian Lopez, Chief Executive Officer 

        

SUBJECT: Check Signing Authority Policy 

 

 

PURPOSE:    To provide strong internal financial controls and safeguards the expenditure of    

                         funds using check signing authority policy. 

 

  

POLICY:       All checks, drafts or orders for the payment of money (including electronic funds 

transfers), notes or other evidence of indebtedness in the name of the Corporation 

shall require the following:     

 

$.01   $3,000.00 1 Signature Required 

 

Chief Executive Officer  

Chief Operating Officer 

Chief Financial Officer 

Chief Accountant 

Board Chair 

Board Vice Chair 

Board Secretary 

$3,000.01-$100,000.00 2 Signatures Required  Chief Executive Officer  

Chief Operating Officer 

Chief Financial Officer 

Chief Accountant 

Board Chair 

Board Vice Chair 

Board Secretary 

$100,000.00 and above 2 Signature Required  One must be that of the 

Board Chair 

Board Vice Chair 

Board Secretary 

 

 

18



ELECTRONIC CHECK SIGNATURE PROCESS

Request
Cabinet initiates payment 

authorization request to  

authorized signer including 

supporting details such as 

check, ACH Documentation (if 

applicable), and cover page.

If authorized signer is 

a board member 

fiscal send email 

alerting them of the 

request.

Review Process  

Authorized signer will access link sent 

by Cabinet, review information and 

verify a fiscal reviewer and one 

authorized signature, before 

authorizing electronic approval. 

Payment

Authorization 
Authorized signed will 

approve request in 

Cabinet

Storage

Signature is retained with 

check request and supporting 

documentation in cabinet.

See Exhibit 1

Sample of Storage in 

Cabinet

19



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Workforce Solutions Executive Committee 

From: Louis Tatum, Interim CEO 

Presented by: Louis Tatum 

Date: June 5, 2020 

Regarding: Annual Audit Approval 

 

 

SUMMARY:  The audit for Alamo Workforce Development, Inc. DBA Workforce Solutions Alamo 

(WSA) for fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, has been performed and completed by ABIP, PC.  ABIP 

has performed their audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and 

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States and the Uniform Guidance. In performing the audit, they 

interviewed staff and observed processes to develop a risk assessment over the internal controls and 

develop audit procedures they feel necessary to provide evidence for their audit opinions.   

  

ABIP reports provided:  

• Financial Audit – Opinion – Unmodified (clean opinion)  

• Compliance Audits – Child Care Development, Child Care Protective Services, and WIA/WIOA 

Cluster – Unmodified (clean opinion)  

• Report of Conduct of Audit   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Independent Financial Audit Performed by ABIP for the 

period of 10/1/2018-09/30/2019  

  

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:  

ABIP performed the following activity during their audit:  

  

Financial Audit  

• Established an audit approach based on risk assessment and tailored programs to guide the audit 

process for efficiency and completeness.  

• Performed overall analytical reviews on account balances to aid in the extent of audit procedures 

needed to provide reasonable assurance over activity and account balances.  

• Reviewed and mailed AWS-prepared confirmations to related parties, legal counsel and financial 

institutions.  

• Reviewed approval processes over individual transactions and tested allowability for particular 

grant contract.   

• Performed substantive procedures for the various financial statement account balances as of year-

end including cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, fixed assets, accounts payable, accrued 

liabilities, and deferred revenues.  

• Worked with management to assist in the preparation of the financial statement and ensure up to 

date disclosures are included.  

20



• Prepare Report on Conduct of Audit for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.  

 

Compliance Audit – Child Care Development, Child Care Protective Services, and WIA/WIOA Cluster 

• Established an audit approach based on risk assessment and tailored programs to guide the audit 

process for efficiency and completeness.  

• Interviewed staff pertinent to Child Care Development and Protective Services Funds (CCDF and 

CCPS Grants) and WIOA Funds to gain understanding of processes over disbursements, payroll 

and cash reimbursement processes.  

• Performed a risk assessment over the 14 compliance requirements over the CCDF, CCPS, and 

WIOA Grants and planned test of controls and compliance for each.  

• Sampled individual transactions for allowability with CCDF, CCPS, and WIOA Grants award and 

approvals by staff prior to payments to vendors.  

• Sampled reimbursement draws (cash receipts) over allowable costs charged to the grants for proper 

approvals from staff and recording into the general ledger.  

• Reviewed completeness and accuracy of Texas Workforce Commission reporting compliance 

requirement over CCDF, CCPS, and WIOA Grants.  

 

  

21



 

ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS - ALAMO 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS REPORTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

DRAFT

22



 

 

(This page intentionally left blank)

DRAFT

23



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 
September 30, 2019 

 

 

 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

     PAGE 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1-2 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
 Statement of Financial Position 5 
 
 Statement of Activities  6 
 
 Statement of Functional Expenses 7 
 
 Statement of Cash Flows 8 
 
 Notes to Financial Statements 9-18 
 
FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS SECTION 
 
 Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over 
 Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
 Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
 Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 21-22 
 
 Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major 
 Federal and State Program and on Internal Control Over 
 Compliance Required By the Uniform Guidance and the  
 State of Texas Single Audit Circular 23-24 
 
 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 25-27 
 
 Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 28 
 
 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 29-30 
 
 Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 31 
 
  

DRAFT

24



 

 

(This page intentionally left blank)

DRAFT

25



 

1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

To the Board of Directors 
Alamo Workforce Development, Inc. 
 dba Workforce Solutions - Alamo 
San Antonio, Texas 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Alamo Workforce Development, Inc. dba Workforce 
Solutions – Alamo (the Corporation) (a non-profit organization), which comprise the statement of financial 
position as of September 30, 2019, and the related statement of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

DRAFT

26



 

2 

Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Corporation as of September 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As described in note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019, the Corporation adopted new accounting guidance, 
FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2016 – 14 (Topic 958), “Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-
for-Profit Entities”.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 12, 2020, on our 
consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
San Antonio, Texas 
June 12, 2020 
 

DRAFT

27



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

DRAFT

28



 

 

(This page intentionally left blank)

DRAFT

29



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 
As of September 30, 2019 

 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

5 

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 405,755$         
Grants receivable 6,791,263
Account receivable - other 563,699
Prepaid expenses and deposits 641,084          

Total current assets 8,401,801        

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment 5,092,472        
Less:  accumulated depreciation (4,172,885)       

Net property and equipment 919,587          

Total assets 9,321,388$      

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,663,382$      
Accrued liabilities 3,981,546
Deferred revenue 323,789          

Total current liabilities 7,968,717        

Total liabilities 7,968,717        

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
   Undesignated 433,084          
   Investment in property and equipment, net 919,587          

Total net assets 1,352,671        

Total liabilities and net assets 9,321,388$      

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS

 
 

 
 

 

DRAFT

30



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

6 

INVESTMENT IN
PROPERTY AND

UNDESIGNATED  EQUIPMENT TOTAL

REVENUE
Grant contracts 93,636,993$      -$                    93,636,993$      
Program income 1,077,321          -                      1,077,321          
Service fees 151,560            -                      151,560            
Other income 1,518                -                      1,518                

Total revenue 94,867,392        -                      94,867,392        

EXPENSES
Program services 92,361,645        -                      92,361,645        
Supporting services 2,384,252          -                      2,384,252          

Total expenses 94,745,897        -                      94,745,897        

Increase in net sssets 121,495            -                      121,495            

OTHER REVENUES AND (EXPENSES)
Fixed assets - additions -                      586,563            586,563            
Depreciation -                      (265,422)           (265,422)           

Change in net assets 121,495            321,141            442,636            

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 311,589            598,446            910,035            

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 433,084$          919,587$          1,352,671$        

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT

31



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

7 

PROGRAM SUPPORTING
SERVICES SERVICES

ALL MANAGEMENT
PROGRAMS AND GENERAL TOTAL

EXPENSES
Salaries and related expenses

Salaries 1,196,712$            1,140,512$           2,337,224$           
Payroll taxes 98,490 95,290 193,780                
Employee benefits 207,182                220,644               427,826                

Total salaries and related expenses 1,502,384              1,456,446            2,958,830             

Advertising 17,292 5,766 23,058                 
Client services 14,312,345 -                         14,312,345           
Professional fees 134,234                396,716               530,950                
Supplies and equipment 1,499,615              159,366               1,658,981             
Facility rental 2,629,591              248,937               2,878,528             
Training/support services 4,356,966              -                         4,356,966             
Child care 66,914,925            (1,193)                 66,913,732           
Travel 59,283 39,010 98,293                 
Staff development 16,335 13,356 29,691                 
Communication 301,675 35,921 337,596                
Software related 226,904 29,927 256,831                
Profit 390,096                -                         390,096                

Total expenses before depreciation 92,361,645            2,384,252            94,745,897           

Depreciation 265,422                -                         265,422                

Total expenses 92,627,067$          2,384,252$           95,011,319$           
  
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT

32



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 

8 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 442,636$          
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
 to cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Depreciation expense 265,422            
(Increase) decrease in operating assets

Grants receivable (785,710)           
Other receivables 324,001            
Prepaid and deposits (68,620)             

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable (2,320,858)        
Accrued liabilities 2,425,270          
Deferred revenue 51,256              

Net cash provided by operating activities 333,397            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment (586,563)           

Net increase (decrease) in cash (253,166)           

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 658,921            

CASH AT END OF YEAR 405,755$          

 

DRAFT

33



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

9 

(1)  Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial 
statements is as follows: 

 
Reporting entity 

 
Alamo Workforce Development, Inc. dba Workforce Solutions – Alamo (the Corporation) is a nonprofit 
corporation organized to provide guidance, exercise oversight duties, manage workforce development 
activities, and promote social welfare and other charitable purposes in the Alamo service delivery area 
comprised of the thirteen (13) counties of Atascosa, Bandera, Bexar, Comal, Frio, Gillespie, Guadalupe, 
Karnes, Kendall, Kerr, Medina, McMullen, and Wilson. 
 
The Corporation has been designated a local workforce development board for purposes of planning and 
implementing employment and training programs.  The majority of the Corporation’s funding is derived from 
contracts awarded by the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC), a state agency receiving pass-through funds 
from the U.S. Department of Labor, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, and the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture. The following is a description of the programs the Corporation administered 
during the year. 
 
“Programs” can be classified in different ways as based on the way that they come about.  These include 
“Formula-Funded Grants,” “Workforce Initiatives,” “Special Grants/Projects,” “Fee-for-Service Grants,” 
and “Other TWC Grants.” 

 
Formula-Funded Grants 
Funds for services are allocated to state and local areas based on a formula.  These grants are the Board’s 
‘bread and butter’ and form a part of our primary or core programs.   

 
Child Care Services (CCS).  Funds come from multiple streams and have different goals, as follows: 
• Child Care Subsidized Direct Funding.  Funds are used to provide child care subsidies:  

o For children formerly receiving general child protective services (CPS) to provide continuity of 
care for children and stability for the family; 

o For children of parents who are mandated to participate in the TANF/Choices and SNAP E&T 
programs (see below).  Children are referred by Texas Health & Human Services (HHS) and 
services must be provided to these families (they do not go through the wait list).  Available funds 
are used to serve these families first; 

o To support low-income parents/caregivers so they participate in eligible work activities and/or 
attend school or training to help them become economically self-sufficient while providing 
stability for the children through continuity of care.  Depending on the availability of funding, 
children are enrolled on a wait list and the Board has discretion prioritizing enrollment into 
services.  

• Texas Department of Family & Protective Services (DFPS) Child Care.  Funds purchase child care 
services for children who are deemed eligible (e.g., due to abuse and/or neglect) by DFPS.  DFPS 
refers the children to CCS for services. 

• Child Care Local Match.  Provide subsidized child care to low-income families  
 

DRAFT

34



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

10 

(1)  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Reporting entity (continued) 
 
• Child Care Attendance Automation Service (CCAA).  Funds are used to provide resources to Boards 

for statewide implementation of a standardized CCAA (e.g., swipe cards) through a managed network 
service created by TWC’s designated vendor. 

• Child Care Quality Improvement Activities (QIA).  Child Care Development funds for initiatives that 
help promote the quality of child care, including training, professional development, and technical 
assistance that are primarily geared to benefit child care facilities that are working toward Texas Rising 
Star (TRS) certification or are TRS providers working toward a higher certification level. 

 
Non-Custodial Parent Choices (NCP).  Program targets low-income unemployed or underemployed 
noncustodial parents who are behind on their child support payments and whose children are current or 
former recipients of public assistance.  Goals is to help NCP participants become economically self-sufficient 
while making consistent child support payments.  The project is in collaboration with TWC, the Office of the 
Attorney General (OAG), WSA, and the Bexar County court system.  NCPs are referred by the court system, 
and they will either willingly participate in the project or will be subject to the court orders. 
 
Rapid Response.  Rapid Response is a proactive, business-focused strategy designed to help growing 
companies access an available pool of skilled workers from companies that are downsizing and to respond to 
layoffs and plant closings by providing immediate on-site assistance to transition workers to their next 
employment as soon as possible. 
 
Supplemental Nutrition & Assistance Program Employment & Training (SNAP).  Program helps ‘food 
stamp’ recipients gain skills, training, or work experience and increase their ability to obtain regular 
employment.  
 
TANF/Choices.  Program offers job preparation and educational services required for parents who depend on 
public assistance (Temporary Assistance for Needy Families/TANF) to transition into economic self-
sufficiency through employment. 
 
Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA).  Program provides job training and employment services to workers 
who have lost their jobs due to the effects of international trade. 
 
Veterans Services.  Contract with the Texas Veterans Commission (TVC) to provide space, technical and 
administrative support to TVC staff co-located at WSA Career Centers.  TVC provides enhance services to 
veterans and can only work with veterans.  Additional services may be provided using WIOA funds. 
 
Wagner-Peyser / Employment Services.  Federal legislation that established the ‘Employment Service’ and 
ancillary functions in 1935, as subsequently amended.  Employer, job matching, and other related services 
offered at the Centers are partly funded using Wagner-Peyser grant funds.  The funds cover the salaries of 
state staff and supplies. 
 

 
 

 

DRAFT

35



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

11 

(1)  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Reporting entity (continued) 
 

Workforce Investment & Opportunity Act (WIOA).  WIOA has three main “formula-funded” grants 
serving Adults, Dislocated Workers, and Youth.  However, other smaller grants are funded through WIOA, 
such as Rapid Response and Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA).  WIOA funds also can be used for 
Incumbent Worker and Customized Training, both of which only require ‘basic’ WIOA eligibility (e.g., being 
eligible to work in the U.S., being employed and, for males, being registered in Selective Service).  The 
following three grants do have additional eligibility requirements which individuals must meet for funding.   
 

WIOA Adult.  Program serves economically disadvantaged adults assisting them in obtaining the skills 
needed to obtain, retain, and/or advance in employment. 

 
WIOA DW.  Program serves individuals who have lost their jobs as a result of a layoff or closure (e.g., at 
no fault of their own).  Program assists dislocated workers in returning to the workforce as quickly as 
possible. 

 
WIOA Youth.  Program serves in-school and out-of-school youth ages 16-24 supporting them so they may 
enter into or complete educational/training opportunities, so they may gain the skills and credentials needed 
to obtain and retain employment.   

 
Special Grants/Projects.  Special Grants/Projects are those that WSA competes for (e.g., these are not like 
the “formula-funded grants” that TWC awards WSA).  Rather, WSA writes a proposal to request and/or 
compete for funding, be this on our own and/or with partners. 
 

Externship for Teachers.  Grant available by TWC to outreach/collaborate with employers and 
Independent School Districts (ISDs) to provide externships for middle school and/or high school teachers, 
schools, counselors, and school administrators.  WSA assists in the development and submits a proposal in 
partnership with the Alamo STEM Workforce Coalition (ASWC).  ASWC is comprised of the Alliance for 
Technology Education in Applied Math and Science (ATEAMS), the Education Service Center 20 (ESC-
20), SA Works, UTSA, and C2 GPS.  The project requires matching funds (e.g., non-federal funds put in 
by the partners and/or private donors).   

 
Workforce Commission Initiatives (WCI) 
WCIs are grant awards issued to Boards by TWC to fund specific project initiatives.  The focus and 
timeframes of these grants vary.  These initiatives support the delivery of services to workers and employers 
and help fund projects that strengthen and add value to the delivery system.  The following are some 
examples. 
 

Red, White, and You!  Employment Service (ES) funds to support the job fair event for Veterans. 
 

Career in Texas Industries/Youth Career Fair Events.  TANF funds that support Career in Texas 
Industries or Youth Career events for middle school, high school, and postsecondary students.  Events aim 
at promoting exploration of career opportunities including understanding pathways to in-demand careers, 
networking, internships, and other applied learning opportunities.  This year’s focus is on a Career Pathway 
Readiness Mini-Summit to include school Administrators, Counselors & Teachers, Parents, Students, and 
Workforce Development professionals with individual tracks and which is scheduled for September. 

DRAFT

36



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

12 

(1)  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Reporting entity (continued) 
 

Texas Veterans Leadership Program.  Utilize ES funds to support TWC’s Texas Veterans Leadership 
Program (TVLP) staff. The Board shall ensure Agency TVLP staff is provided access to and use of 
common equipment, software or hardware platforms, consumables, and telecommunications networks in 
shared facilities. The Board may acquire goods or services needed to support the Agency’s TVLP staff. 

 
Child Care Quality Conference.  Utilize CCDF funds to cover travel costs to the TWC Child Care 
Quality Conference. 

 
Foster Care Youth Conference.  Utilize TANF funds to cover travel costs to the Foster Care Youth 
Conference. 

 
Military Family Support Pilot Program.  Program designed to better meet the needs of military spouses 
entering the job market at military installations.   

 
Fee-for-Service Grants 
TWC has begun issuing funding for Vocational Rehabilitation Services (VRS).  These funds aim at ensuring 
that Texas effectively prepares students with disabilities to obtain competitive and integrated employment 
through participation in employability skills and work readiness training, career exploration activities, work 
experience, postsecondary education, and other activities. 
 

Summer Earn & Learn (SEAL).  Includes work readiness training and paid work experience during the 
summer for students with disabilities. 

 
Student HireAbility Navigator Project.  Funding for two positions to serve as resources in the WDA to 
support, expand, and enhance the provision of pre-employment transition services to students with 
disabilities who are in the early phases of preparing for transition to postsecondary education and 
employment. 

 
Vocational Rehabilitation – Co-location.  Funding for co-location of Vocational Rehabilitation TWC 
team members into WSA’s American Job Centers to offer a wide variety of pre-vocational and vocational 
services for individuals with disabilities.   

 
Other TWC Grants 
TWC sometimes may issue grants to Boards that are not tied to Workforce Initiatives. 
 

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA).  Grant programs funded by Title I of 
WIOA and the federal-state Unemployment Insurance (UI) program are required partners in a 
comprehensive, integrated workforce system.  This program targets claimants who are most likely to 
exhaust benefits and be in need of reemployment services. 

 
 

 

DRAFT

37



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

13 

(1)  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Basis of accounting 
 

 The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  The 
accompanying statements of financial position and activities focus on the Corporation as a whole and report 
the amounts of total assets, liabilities, net assets, and changes in net assets.   

 
 During the fiscal year 2019, the Corporation changed accounting policies related to presentation of its 

financial statements by adopting FASB Accounting Standards No. 2016 – 14 (Topic 958), “Presentation of 
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities”.  Accordingly, the financial statements have been presented 
in accordance with the standard. 
 

 The Corporation classifies its financial statements to present two (2) classes of net assets: 
 
• Net assets without donor restrictions include those net assets whose use is not restricted by donor-

imposed stipulations.  Restricted grant proceeds or contributions whose restrictions are met in the same 
reporting period are reported as revenue without donor restrictions. 

 
• Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or 

will be satisfied by the actions of the Corporation or the passage of time.  The Corporation had no net 
assets with donor restrictions at September 30, 2019. 

 
Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Income tax  

 
The Corporation is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  
The Corporation had no unrelated business income during the year ended September 30, 2019.  Accordingly, 
no provision for income taxes were made in the accompanying financial statements. 

 
Pension plan 

 
The Corporation has adopted an employee retirement plan, which is a money purchase pension plan.  It covers 
all employees who have met certain service requirements. 

 
The Corporation may contribute to the plan.  During the fiscal year, the Corporation matched up to 6.0% for 
employees who elected to participate in the plan.  Plan expense for the year ended September 30, 2019 was 
$96,941. 

DRAFT

38



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

14 

(1)  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Compensated absences 
 

Employees of the Corporation earn annual leave on a bi-weekly basis.  The maximum amount that will be 
paid upon separation of employment varies based upon years of employment.  The Corporation had an 
accrued liability at September 30, 2019 of $154,902. 

 
Receivables 

 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a 
provision for bad debts charged to earnings.  Losses are charged against the allowance when management 
believes the uncollectability of a receivable is confirmed.  Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the 
allowance.  The allowance for doubtful accounts is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based 
on historical experience and specifically identified questionable receivables.  The evaluation is inherently 
subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes 
available. 

 
At September 30, 2019, no allowance for future bad debts had been established as it is management’s opinion 
that losses, if incurred, would not materially affect the financial statements. 
 
Grants receivable primarily represent balances due from grantees for funds billed under the terms of the 
contract. The Corporation does not record an allowance for uncollectibles against the grants receivable 
because management believes the receivables are considered to be 100% collectible. 
 

Revenue recognition and deferred revenue 
 

Contracts that are entered into by the Corporation are recognized as grant revenue when expenditures are 
incurred in accordance with the terms of the contract.  Amounts received but not yet earned on continuing 
contracts are recorded as deferred revenue. 

 
In-kind contributions and donated services 

 
Donated services are valued at their estimated fair market value at the time of donation and are included in the 
statements of activities.  During the year ended September 30, 2019, there were none noted to be significant to 
the financial statements. 

 
Property and equipment 

 
Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available.  Contributed fixed 
assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at the time of donation.  Depreciation of property and 
equipment is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the straight-line method.  
Expenses for betterments that materially extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized at cost. 

DRAFT

39



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

15 

(1)  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

Property and equipment (continued) 
 

The useful lives by type of asset are as follows: 
 

ASSET CLASS USEFUL LIFE

Information and technology 3- 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Leasehold improvements 4-10 years  

 
Title to equipment is vested with the Corporation; however, TWC reserves the right to transfer title or issue 
disposition instructions for property with a unit cost of $5,000 or greater. 

 
Cost allocation plan 

 
The Corporation uses an administrative cost pool to allocate administrative costs which cannot be identified 
by a workforce funding title.  These costs are allocated based on some acceptable measure of benefits 
received.  Only actual, not budgeted, unassignable direct costs are pooled and distributed to the various titles.  
The Corporation has the following cost pools to be used to distribute costs:  Bexar County Workforce Center, 
Rural Workforce Center, Workforce Center Cost Pool Program, and Administrative.  Administrative costs 
which benefit all programs are allocated to each grant using the administrative cost pool.  The cost allocation 
plan is prepared by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and submitted to the Executive Director (ED) for 
approval.  The plan may be modified as necessary by the CFO to ensure compliance with the TWC 
regulations. 
 
The plan is reviewed for modification for addition/deletion of funding sources, significant changes in 
programs or cost pool expenditures, or other events which could affect the reliability of the cost allocation 
plan. 

 
Functional allocation of expenses 

 
Certain salaries, employee benefits, and other expenses benefiting programs and administrative activities are 
allocated on a functional basis in the statements of activities and the schedule of functional expenses. 

 
(2)  Cash and cash equivalents 
 

The Corporation’s funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract.  The 
depository bank deposit for safekeeping and trust with the Corporation’s agent bank approved pledged 
securities in an amount sufficient to protect the Corporation’s funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of 
the contract.  The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank’s dollar 
amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) Insurance. 

DRAFT

40



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

16 

(2)  Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 
 

The Corporation’s cash deposits at September 30, 2019, were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged 
collateral held by the Corporation’s agent bank.  The deposits were collateralized in accordance with Texas law. 

 
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of approximately 90 
days or less are considered to be cash equivalents. 

 
(3)  Property and equipment 
 

Property and equipment held by the Corporation at September 30, 2019, consist of the following: 
 

 

BALANCE DELETIONS AND BALANCE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Information and technology 863,751$                       152,017$             41,478$                   974,290$                       
Furniture and fixtures 366,191                         135,316               78,292                     423,215                         
Vehicle 22,327                           -                           -                              22,327                           
Leasehold improvements 3,373,410                      299,230               -                              3,672,640                      

Total 4,625,679$                    586,563$             119,770$                 5,092,472$                    

BALANCE DELETIONS AND BALANCE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Information and technology 690,992$                       82,087$               41,478$                   731,601$                       
Furniture and fixtures 292,550                         36,621                 78,292                     250,879                         
Vehicle 22,327                           -                           -                              22,327                           
Leasehold improvements 3,021,364                      146,714               -                              3,168,078                      

Total 4,027,233$                    265,422$             119,770$                 4,172,885$                    

COST OR BASIS OF PROPERTY

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

 
Depreciation expense for the year ended September 30, 2019, amounted to $265,422. 

 

DRAFT

41



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

17 

(4)  Leases 
 

The Corporation leases office facilities and equipment under operating leases expiring in various years through 
2030.  Minimum future rental payments under operating leases, which have remaining terms beyond September 
30, 2019, are in the aggregate, as follows: 

 
YEAR ENDED

 SEPTEMBER 30, AMOUNT

2020 2,702,914$     
2021 3,146,623      
2022 2,787,237      
2023 2,782,423      
2024 2,544,460      

Thereafter 11,251,544     

Total 25,215,201$   

 
The leases have a right of cancellation clause in the event the Corporation does not receive funding.  Total 
operating lease expense for the year ended September 30, 2019, amounted to $2,311,064. 

 
(5)  Concentration of credit risk 
 

Management believes concentrations of credit risk in grants receivable are limited due to contracts with state 
governmental agencies which management believes are credit-quality.  Also, management believes the 
receivables from these contracts are collectible. 

 
(6)  Contingent liabilities 
 

The Corporation receives a majority of its funding from federally assisted, pass-through grants from the U.S 
Department of Labor, Health and Human Services, and Agriculture through TWC.  Program expenditures are 
subject to program compliance audits by the grantor.  Any liability reimbursement, which may arise as a result 
of these audits, would require reimbursement from nonfederal sources.  It is the position of the Corporation that 
all costs incurred and charged against these funds for the year ended September 30, 2019, are considered 
eligible under the terms of the contracts and grants. 

 
The Corporation could potentially be a defendant in legal actions from transactions and activities conducted in 
the ordinary course of business.  Management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes the aggregate 
liabilities, if any, will not be material to the financial statements. 

 
Risk Related to Grantor Concentration – The Corporation’s funding is concentrated in government grants.  If 
funding were discontinued, it would have a severe impact on operations.  Services would be curtailed or 
discontinued, and uncertainty would exist in continuing operations. 

DRAFT

42



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

18 

(7)  Risk management 
 

The Corporation is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters.  For all such risks, the Corporation has purchased 
commercial insurance in varying amounts to mitigate the risk of loss. 

 
(8)  Evaluation of subsequent events 
 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 12, 2020 the date which the financial statements 
were available to be issued.   

 
On March 19, 2020 Texas Governor Greg Abbott issued an executive order to close non-essential businesses 
and schools due to the public health concerns related to the COVID-19 crisis. The result of this order will 
impact the economy and unemployment rates for the region that the Corporation services. The duration and 
intensity of these impacts on the Corporation’s revenue sources will depend on future developments which 
cannot be forecasted or estimated at this time. 

DRAFT

43



 

 

FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS SECTION

DRAFT

44



 

 

(This page intentionally left blank)

DRAFT

45



 

21 

 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
 
 

To the Board of Directors 
Alamo Workforce Development, Inc. 
 dba Workforce Solutions - Alamo 
San Antonio, Texas 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Alamo Workforce Development, Inc. dba 
Workforce Solutions – Alamo (the Corporation) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as of September 30, 2019, and the related statement of activities, functional expenses, and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated June 12, 2020.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Corporation’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified.

DRAFT

46



 

22 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control or 
on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Corporation’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is 
not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
San Antonio, Texas 
June 12, 2020 
 
 
 

DRAFT

47



 

23 

 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND THE STATE OF TEXAS SINGLE AUDIT CIRCULAR 
 
 
 

To the Board of Directors 
Alamo Workforce Development, Inc. 
 dba Workforce Solutions - Alamo 
San Antonio, Texas 
 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Program 
 
We have audited Alamo Workforce Development, Inc. dba Workforce Solutions – Alamo’s (the Corporation) (a 
nonprofit organization) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
Corporation’s major federal and state programs for the year ended September 30, 2019.  The Corporation’s major 
federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Corporation’s major federal and state 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance); and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular.  Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State of 
Texas Single Audit Circular require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal or state program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Corporation’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and 
state program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Corporation’s compliance.   

DRAFT

48



 

24 

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 
 
In our opinion, the Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal or state programs for the 
year ended September 30, 2019. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the Corporation’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal or state program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for 
each major federal or state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 
the Uniform Guidance and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program 
on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  
 
 
San Antonio, Texas 
June 12, 2020 

DRAFT

49



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

25 

FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH
GRANTOR/PASSTHROUGH GRANTOR CFDA GRANTOR'S PASS-THROUGH

PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

FEDERAL PRO GRAMS

U.S. Department of Labor
Passed Through Texas Workforce Commission

and Texas Veteran's Commission:

Employment Service Cluster
Wagner Peyser-Employment Services 17.207 2018WPA000 68,155$                   -$                           
Wagner Peyser-Employment Services 17.207 2019WPA000 508,862                   -                             
RAG - Employment Services 17.207 2019RAG000 8,311                       -                             
Veteran's Services - DVOP 17.801 VES 15-20 177,767                   -                             
Veteran's Services - LVER 17.804 VES 15-20 59,308                     -                             

Total Employment Service Cluster 822,403                   -                             

Trade Adjustment Assistance Training Program 17.245 2018TRA000 (5,204)                     -                             
Trade Adjustment Assistance Training Program 17.245 2019TRA000 275,222                   246,019                 

Total CFDA #17.245 270,018                   246,019                 

WIA/WIOA Cluster
Military Family Support 17.258 2017WOS000 20,244                     15,013                   
Military Family Support 17.258 2019WOS001 122,154                   96,810                   
Externships Teachers 17.258 2019EXT001 165,506                   93,882                   
Adult Services 17.258 2017WOA000 352,876                   70,068                   
Adult Services 17.258 2018WOA000 3,150,094                2,433,677              
Board Service Awards 17.258 2018BSA000 4,136                       3,168                     
Youth Services 17.259 2017W0Y000 47,522                     -                             
Youth Services 17.259 2018W0Y000 3,466,243                2,637,452              
Youth Services 17.259 2019W0Y000 201,450                   365                        
Externships Teachers 17.278 2018WOS000 48,288                     34,136                   
Dislocated Services 17.278 2017WOD000 75,564                     -                             
Dislocated Services 17.278 2018WOD000 2,269,306                1,739,955              
Rapid Response 17.278 2018WOR000 71,663                     -                             
Rapid Response 17.278 2019WOR001 20,042                     -                             

Total WIA/WIOA Cluster 10,015,088              7,124,526              

RAG-Temp. Labor Certification-Foreign Workers 17.273 2019RAG000 732                          -                             

Unemployment Insurance 17.225 2018REA000 48,390                     14,352                   
Unemployment Insurance 17.225 2019REA000 458,139                   304,585                 

Total CFDA #17.225 506,529                   318,937                 

Total U.S . Department of Labor 11,614,770              7,689,482              

 

DRAFT

50



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

26 

FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH
GRANTOR/PASSTHROUGH GRANTOR CFDA GRANTOR'S PASS-THROUGH

PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

FEDERAL PRO GRAMS (CO NTINUED)

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through Texas Workforce Commission:

SNAP - E&T 10.561 2019SNE000 1,565,289$              1,192,386$              

Total U.S . Department of Agriculture 1,565,289                1,192,386                

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed Through Texas Workforce Commission:

CCDF Cluster
Childcare Development Funds 93.575 2018CCF000 2,110,547                1,785,023                
Child Care Quality 93.575 2018CCQ000 183,451                   102,339                   
Child Care Attendance Automations 93.575 2019CAA000 379,321                   -                              
Childcare Development Funds 93.575 2019CCF000 33,441,692              33,441,692              
Child Care Quality 93.575 2019CCQ000 2,091,518                1,729,274                
Child Care Development Funds - WCI 93.575 2019WCI000 11,008                     -                              
Childcare Development Funds 93.596 2018CCM000 5,449,771                5,449,771                
Childcare Development Funds 93.596 2019CCF000 12,644,714              12,644,717              
Childcare Development Funds 93.596 2019CCM000 1,624,535                1,624,535                

Total CCDF Cluster 57,936,557              56,777,351              

Title XX - Social Services Block Grant 93.667 2019CCF000 174,825                   174,825                   

TANF Cluster

Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 2018TAF000 206,348                   135,168                   
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 2019TAN000 4,202,335                3,543,675                
TANF - Employment Services 93.558 2019WPA000 67,666                     -                              
TANF - WCI 93.558 2019WCI000 40,860                     -                              
TANF - Non Custodial 93.558 2019NCP000 269,279                   269,279                   
Board Service Award 93.558 2019PAB001 17,208                     17,208                     

Total TANF Cluster 4,803,696                3,965,330                

Total U.S . Department of Health   
  and Human Services 62,915,078              60,917,506              

U.S. Department of Education
Passed Through Texas Workforce Commission:

Adult Education - Site Based Workplace Literacy 84.002A 2916AEL002 (3,633)                     (3,633)                     

Total U.S . Department of Education (3,633)                     (3,633)                     

TO TAL FEDERAL FUNDS 76,091,504              69,795,741              

DRAFT

51



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

27 

FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR/PASSTHROUGH GRANTOR CFDA GRANTOR'S PASS-THROUGH

PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

STATE PRO GRAMS

Texas Workforce Commission
Passed Through Texas Workforce Commission:

Child Care Development Funds NA 2019CCF000 6,133,820$             5,204,180$              
Child Care Protective Services NA 2018CCP000 1,053                      1,053                       
Child Care Protective Services NA 2019CCP000 9,718,348               9,269,222                
Child Care Protective Services NA 2020CCP000 611,651                  582,525                   

RAG - Employment Services NA 2019RAG000 2,038                      -                              
SNAP E&T NA 2019SNE000 249,085                  -                              
TANF NA 2019TAF000 657,722                  -                              
TANF - Non Custodial NA 2019NCP000 3,901                      2,760                       
TANF - Non Custodial NA 2020NCP000 167,873                  108,940                   

Total Texas Workforce Commission 17,545,491             15,168,680              

TO TAL STATE FUNDS 17,545,491             15,168,680              

TO TAL FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDS 93,636,995$           84,964,421$            

 
 

DRAFT

52



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

 
28 

(1)  Basis of presentation 
 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the Schedule) includes federal and 
state grant activity of the Corporation under programs of the federal and state government for the year ended 
September 30, 2019.  The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance and State of Texas Single Audit Circular.  Because the Schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the Corporation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, 
changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Corporation. 

 
Federal grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures were made under the provisions of 
the grant and, accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenue until earned. 

 
(2)  Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

 
Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. 

 
Workforce Solutions Alamo elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate. 

 
 
 
 

DRAFT

53



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

 
29 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  

Type of auditor’s report issued:       Unmodified 
 

  
Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 

 
 
         Yes 

 
 
   X    No 

  
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that is (are) not 
        considered to be material weakness(es)? 

 
 
        Yes 

 
 
   X     None Reported 

  
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

 
         Yes 

 
   X    No 

 
 
FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 
  

Internal control over major programs: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 

 
 
         Yes 

 
 
   X    No 

  
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that is (are) not 
        considered to be material weakness(es)? 

 
 
         Yes 

 
 
   X    None Reported 

  
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for Major programs:  Unmodified 
 

  
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a) and the State of Texas 
Single Audit Circular? 

 
 
 
        Yes 

 
 
 
   X    No 

 
 
IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS 
 CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
  

93.575/93.596 
 

93.558/93.714 

 
Child Care Development Funds 
 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster 
 

  
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 

 
$2,282,745                   

  
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

 
   X    Yes 

 
       No 

 
 

DRAFT

54



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

 
30 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS (CONTINUED) 
 

IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR STATE PROGRAMS 
 CFDA Number(s) Name of State Program or Cluster 
  

N/A 
N/A 

 
Child Care Development Funds 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

  
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 

 
$    526,365              

  
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee for State Programs? 

 
    X    Yes 

 
         No 

 
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
None were noted. 
 
 
SECTION III – FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
None were noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT

55



ALAMO WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
DBA WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS – ALAMO 

 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2019 

 
 

 
31 

         PROGRAM          CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN  
 
No prior audit findings   N/A 
 
 

DRAFT

56



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To: Executive Committee  
From:  Louis Tatum, CFO 
Presented by:  Louis Tatum, CFO 
Date: June 5, 2020 
Regarding: Financial Report as of 03/31/2020 

 
 

 
SUMMARY:  This is the sixth month of the Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020, 
and the straight-line benchmark is 6/12 or 50% of the budget.  An Analysis has been performed and 
outlined for the Corporate, Facility Budgets and Grant Summary Report.   
 
March is the midpoint of the organization’s fiscal year, utilized a straight-line expenditure plan the 
budget would typically be 50% expended. Corporate expenditures are currently expended at a rate of 
40.18% of the annual budget, which represents a variance of less than 10% for the first half of the 
fiscal year. With the onset of the COVID19 pandemic additional equipment and supplies were 
purchased to enable virtual workforce services, we expect any budget surpluses to be fully utilized 
within the current fiscal year.   

 

Corporate Budget  
 

Department % Expensed Comments 
Personnel 41.38% The agency currently has several vacant positions.  
Board Facility 43.01% WSA currently has $23,756 in cost savings in this budget 

category due to a portion of the rent being classified as 
contractor facility costs.  The board is housing C2 Quality 
staff at the board office during the build-out of the South 
Flores Office. 

General Office 
Expense 

38.62% This budget category has a straight-line budget variance of 
approximately $110,000. Significant general office 
expenses that are underspent are insurance ($50,000) and 
marketing ($45,000). WSA expects expenses to 
materialize in the second half of the fiscal year in these 
line items. 

Professional 
Services 

40.66% The budget variance for professional services is 
approximately, $130,000. Audit ($65,000) and financial 
monitoring services ($70,000) are currently underspent on 
a straight-line basis, WSA expects these services to be 
fully utilized. 

Total Expense 40.18%  
 
 

 

 

 

57



 

 

Facility Budget 
 

Department % Expensed Comments 

Overall 46.77% The facilities budget is currently within an acceptable range 
and will be monitored closely throughout the remainder of 
the year. The current budget balance as of March 31, 2020 
is $3,119,919 

 

Active Grants Only 
 

 
Grant End date Straight 

Line 
% 

Expense

d 

Comments 

18WA1 
18WA2 

06/30/20 
06/30/20 

 84% 
97% 

Fully expend by 6/30/20. 

18WD1 
18WD2 

06/30/20 
06/30/20 

 85% 
83% 

Fully expend by 6/30/20. 

18WOY 
 

06/30/20  97% Fully expend by 6/30/20. 

19CCQ 04/30/20  93% Balance $172,472, WSA is expecting to 
return approximately $10,000 from this 
award. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Financial Statements 

 

58



Workforce Solutions Alamo

Corporate Expenditure Report

Board Fiscal Year October 01, 2019-September 30, 2020

Report Period: 10/01/19 -3/31/20

50%
Annual Amended YTD Amendment Revised %  

Budget Budget #1 Expenses #2 Budget Expensed Balance

PERSONNEL

Salaries/Wages 3,019,213              3,019,213             1,261,292             3,019,213     41.78% 1,757,920             
Fringe Benefits 834,822                 834,822                348,103                834,822        41.70% 486,718                
Staff Travel 70,000                   70,000                  22,263                  70,000          31.80% 47,737                  
Staff Training & Development 30,000                   30,000                  4,500                    30,000          15.00% 25,500                  

PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL: 3,954,034              3,954,034             1,636,159             -                   3,954,034     41.38% 2,317,875             

-                             

BOARD FACILITY -                             
Rent 340,000                 340,000                146,244                340,000        43.01% 193,756                

FACILITY SUBTOTAL: 340,000                 340,000                146,244                -                   340,000        43.01% 193,756                

-                             
EQUIPMENT/RELATED COSTS -                             
Equipment Purchases 30,000                   30,000                  4,391                    30,000          14.64% 25,609                  
Equipment Rental 20,000                   20,000                  7,635                    20,000          38.18% 12,365                  
Repair & Maintenance 2,000                     2,000                    -                            2,000            0.00% 2,000                    
Software Licenses 10,000                   10,000                  5,169                    10,000          51.69% 4,831                    
Software Maintenance & Support 35,000                   35,000                  20,266                  35,000          57.90% 14,734                  

EQUIPMENT/RELATED COSTS SUBTOTAL: 97,000                   97,000                  37,461                  -                   97,000          38.62% 59,539                  

-                             
GENERAL OFFICE EXPENSES -                             
Communications 55,000                   55,000                  15,561                  55,000          28.29% 39,439                  
Advertising 5,000                     5,000                    -                            5,000            0.00% 5,000                    
Insurances 235,000                 300,000                98,279                  300,000        32.76% 201,721                
Office Supplies 34,000                   34,000                  12,619                  34,000          37.11% 21,381                  
Postage/Shipping/Other 4,000                     4,000                    1,109                    4,000            27.71% 2,891                    
Printing, Binding & Reproduction 10,500                   10,500                  4,313                    10,500          41.07% 6,187                    
Publications & Subscriptions 5,500                     5,500                    2,075                    5,500            37.73% 3,425                    
Dues 25,000                   25,000                  9,941                    25,000          39.76% 15,059                  
Storage 8,000                     8,000                    4,887                    8,000            61.09% 3,113                    
Marketing (External) 90,000                   90,000                  2,112                    -                   90,000          2.35% 87,888                  
Miscellaneous Costs 10,000                   10,000                  86                         10,000          0.86% 9,914                    
Non Federal 50,000                   50,000                  35,244                  50,000          70.49% 14,756                  

GENERAL OFFICE EXP SUBTOTAL: 532,000                 597,000                186,227                -                   597,000        31.19% 410,773                

-                             
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES -                             
Legal Services-Corporate 90,000                   90,000                  45,000                  -                   90,000          50.00% 45,000                  
Legal Services-Other 85,000                   85,000                  19,841                  -                   85,000          23.34% 65,159                  
Audit 80,000                   80,000                  8,500                    80,000          10.63% 71,500                  
Fiscal Monitoring (Contractor) 300,000                 300,000                80,809                  300,000        26.94% 219,191                
Professional Services 172,000                 172,000                141,477                122,000        294,000        48.12% 152,523                

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SUBTOTAL: 727,000                 727,000                295,627                122,000        849,000        40.66% 553,373                

-                             -                        

BOARD EXPENSES -                             -                        
Board Member Travel 8,000                     8,000                    1,271                    8,000            15.89% 6,729                    
Board Member Training/Development 7,000                     7,000                    -                            7,000            0.00% 7,000                    
Board Meetings & Misc. Costs 20,000                   20,000                  7,543                    20,000          37.72% 12,457                  

BOARD EXPENSES SUBTOTAL: 35,000                   35,000                  8,814                    -                   35,000          25.18% 26,186                  

-                             -                        

-                             -                         
TOTAL EXPENSES 5,685,034              5,750,034             2,310,533             122,000        5,872,034     40.18% 3,561,501             

-                             -                        

-                             -                        

SUMMARY: -                             -                        
Personnel 3,954,034              3,954,034             1,636,159             -                   3,954,034     41.38% 2,317,875             
Board Facility 340,000                 340,000                146,244                -                   340,000        43.01% 193,756                
Equipment/Related Costs 97,000                   97,000                  37,461                  -                   97,000          38.62% 59,539                  
General Office Expenses 532,000                 597,000                186,227                -                   597,000        31.19% 410,773                
Professional Services 727,000                 727,000                295,627                122,000        849,000        34.82% 553,373                
Board Expenses 35,000                   35,000                  8,814                    -                   35,000          25.18% 26,186                  

TOTAL CORPORATE EXPENSES 5,685,034              5,750,034             2,310,533             122,000        5,872,034     40.18% 3,561,501             

59



WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS ALAMO
Board Fiscal Year October 01, 2019 - September 30, 2020

Facilities & 
Infrastructure Budgeted Amt. Amendment #1

Revised Budgeted 
Amt. YTD Expenses % Expensed

% 
Straightline 
Benchmark Balance

4,977,776 883,000 5,860,776                2,740,857                   46.77% 50.00% 3,119,919                   

Facilities: End of Lease General Expense Item*
Walzem 12/31/2023 Rent
Datapoint 11/30/2029 Utilities  
Datapoint - Child Care 11/30/2029 Janitorial
Marbach 5/31/2021 Repair & Maintenance
S. Flores 7/31/2028 Security

* E. Houston 1/31/2020 Copiers / Printers
New Braunfels 1/31/2022 Phones
Hondo 12/31/2021 Computer Equipment
Seguin 1/15/2027 Misc.
Kenedy 1/31/2022 *Not all general expenses items are applicable to each location
Floresville 12/31/2020
Kerrville 4/30/2024
Boerne 11/30/2021
Pleasanton 1/31/2022
Pearsall 10/31/2021
Fredericksburg No Expiration
Bandera No Expiration

* Seguin 1/16/2027

Report Period:   10/01/19 - 3/31/20

Facilities & Infrastructure Report

* To ensure continuation of services while the E. Houston location is under renovation, the workforce center is temporarily relocated to EETC. The sublease term for EETC
is from February 2020- August 2020.

60



43921

GRANT FUND GRANT END DATE Grant Budget YTD  03/31/2020 Balance Grant % Exp. as 3/31/2020

Month left in 

Contract

WIOA ADULT 18WA1 6/30/2020 690,608.00           610,791.52 79,816.48 88.44% 3

18WA2 6/30/2020 3,025,854.00         2,940,078.51 85,775.49 97.17% 3

19WA1 6/30/2021 753,296.00           95,892.42 657,403.58 12.73% 15

19WA2 6/30/2021 3,300,517.00         1,584,555.78 1,715,961.22 48.01% 15

WIOA DISLOCATED 18WD1 6/30/2020 623,704.00           532,659.05 91,044.95 85.40% 3

18WD2 6/30/2020 2,656,388.00         2,201,242.02 455,145.98 82.87% 3

19WD1 6/30/2021 711,177.00           125,732.84 585,444.16 17.68% 15

19WD2 6/30/2021 2,946,453.00         1,216,345.14 1,730,107.86 41.28% 15

WIOA YOUTH 18WOY 6/30/2020 4,005,365.00         3,951,598.72 53,766.28 98.66% 3

19WOY 6/30/2021 4,373,355.00         2,656,110.86 1,717,244.14 60.73% 15

WIOA RAPID RESPONSE 19WOR 6/30/2021 95,735.00             81,476.00 14,259.00 85.11% 15

TANF 19TAF 10/31/2020 5,547,913.00         5,547,981.43 -68.43 100.00% 7

20TAF 10/31/2020 6,169,544.00         2,062,640.36 4,106,903.64 33.43% 7

SNAP E&T 20SNE 9/30/2020 1,886,220.00         1,056,335.97 829,884.03 56.00% 6

NON CUSTODIAL PARENT 20NCP 9/30/2020 437,578.00           245,367.14 192,210.86 56.07% 6

CHILD CARE CCF 20CCF 10/31/2020 77,236,918.00       26,286,093.11 50,950,824.89 34.03% 7

CHILD CARE CCM 20CCM 12/31/2020 7,210,326.00         0.00 7,210,326.00 0.00% 9

CHILD CARE CCP 20CCP 8/31/2020 10,019,800.00       4,457,779.07 5,562,020.93 44.49% 5

TRADE ACT SERVICES 20TRA 12/31/2020 226,315.00           65,186.53 161,128.47 28.80% 9

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 20WPA 12/31/2020 974,962.00           229,516.23 745,445.77 23.54% 9

RESOURCE ADMIN GRANT 20RAG 12/31/2020 11,857.00             4,380.84 7,476.16 36.95% 9

CHILD CARE ATTENDANCE AUTOMATION20CAA 9/30/2020 361,164.00           182,985.88 178,178.12 50.67% 6

CCQ QUALITY 19CCQ 4/30/2020 2,473,628.00         2,301,155.60 172,472.40 93.03% 1

20CCQ 10/31/2020 1,941,072.00         558,249.93 1,382,822.07 28.76% 7

WORK  COMMISION INITIATIVES 19WCI 5/31/2021 144,333.00           104,135.66 40,197.34 72.15% 14

20WCI 9/30/2020 105,272.00           47,323.76 57,948.24 44.95% 6

REEMPLOYMENT 20REA 12/31/2020 651,116.00           411,056.27 240,059.73 63.13% 9

MILITARY 20WSA 12/31/2020 222,630.00           78,626.74 144,003.26 35.32% 9

Workforce Solutions Alamo

Board Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020

Active Grants Only

61



43921

GRANT FUND GRANT END DATE Grant Budget YTD  03/31/2020 Balance Grant % Exp. as 3/31/2020

Month left in 

Contract

Workforce Solutions Alamo

Board Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020

Active Grants Only

WIOA ALTERNATIVE FUNDING 19WAF 8/31/2020 479,224.00           29,861.82 449,362.18 6.23% 5

YOUTH JOB SKILL INIIATIVE 19WS2 8/31/2020 286,000.00           11,556.20 274,443.80 4.04% 5
139,568,324.00     59,676,715.40 79,891,608.60 42.76%

62



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:    Executive Committee     

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  LaVonia Horne-Williams, Procurement & Contracts Director 

 

Date:    June 5, 2020  

 

Subject:                                    Procurement Projects and Contracts Summary 

 

 

Summary: Workforce Solutions Alamo (WSA) issues Request for Qualifications (RFQ), 
Request for Proposals (RFP), and Request for Quotes (RFQ) to acquire services and 
goods. Procurements are conducted in a manner which provides for full, open and free 
competition. The procurement of all goods and services for WSA is governed by the 
requirements and specifications outlined in the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) 
Financial Manual for Grants and Contracts, Chapter 14, Office of Management and 
Budget’s “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards” (Uniform Guidance (UG)) which is codified at Title 2, 
Part 200 of the Code of Federal Regulations (2 CFR part 200) and the Uniform Grant 
Management Standards (UGMS), Part III, Chapter 783 Texas Government Code. 
 
Analysis: As an entity supported by public funds, WSA has a legal obligation to spend 
public funds wisely and prudently, to act in the public interest, to be transparent in its 
actions, and be accountable to the public. As the Director of Procurement and 
Contracting, the goal of my team is to ensure our department reviews all requests for 
purchases of goods, services, equipment, software, hardware, and subscriptions for best 
value.  

 Currently we have two renovation projects underway. The East Houston workforce center 
location is on schedule to be completed in late July, early August. The Seguin workforce 
center is relocating. The new location renovations are scheduled to be complete in early 
August. As we plan for re-opening all workforce centers, we have procured all the 
necessary PPE and prepared an installation plan of required items in each workforce 
center.  

We are also focusing on contract amendments for program services, renewal contracts 
and assessing future service needs. We are working to dedicate time to staff development 
and training, creating best practices, updating policies and procedures and improving our  

63



 

 

 

 

 

 

risk mitigation by designing new business processes with built-in risk control and 
containment measures. 

Alternatives: N/A 

 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 

 

Recommendation: Approving the currently updated Procurement Policies and 

Procedures Manual. Continuing current course of action to build improved business 

processes that mitigate the agency’s risk, work within budgeted allocations, and provide 

the highest quality of service to our internal and external customers. 

 

Next Steps: Providing Procurement staff training - Basic Texas Purchaser Course; 
Provide WSA staff quarterly briefs on emergency procurements, sole source/proprietary 
procurements, and procurement process flow. 

64



Procurement Department
Contracts and Procurement 

June 5, 2020

65



All 
Procurements

66



East Houston  Renovation Schedule
Interior/Exterior Schedule

All interior selections are completed and demolition permit received for contractor to proceed. On schedule 
for completion in late July. 

All WSA selections are completed for exterior of the building. Permitting held currently for review of traffic 
analysis and parking spots, bike paths and bike racks. On schedule for completion in early August.

67



Seguin Renovation Schedule
Interior/Exterior Schedule

All interior selections are completed and demolition permit received for contractor to proceed. On 
schedule for completion in late July.

68



New Procurement Contracts

• Subscriptions/Renewals 

o Fiscal

o Marketing

o IT 

o Programs

• Services

o Moving Services

o Locksmith Services

o Maintenance/Handyman Services

o Postage Meter Services

o Janitorial Services

o Call Center Services- new

o HR Consulting Services- new

o Robocall Services- new

o Electrical Services

o Interpreter Services

o Pest Control Services

o Plumbing services

o Management Advisory Services

o HVAC Services –renewal in progress

o Website Services

• COSA Childcare Amendments

o Amendment #2

o Amendment #3 –in progress

• ATEAMS Teacher’s Externship Contract- in progress

• C2 Contract Amendment- in progress

• MOA w/City of Dilley for DX80 project

• MOA w/City of Schertz for DX80 project- in process

• Equipment Contracts
o 24 new Xerox Copiers deployed

o Video Conferencing Equipment

• PPE Supplies/Equipment

69



Future FY20 Procurement Contracts/Amendments
(10/1/2019-09/30/20)

• Childcare Quality Contract

• Legal Services Contract

• Audit Services Contract

• Fiscal Monitoring Services Contract

• Temporary Employment Services Contract

• Contract amendment to include the TX-36 Disaster Recovery Dislocated Worker Grant-COVID-19 

• Contract or contract amendment for ABIP CPA, after letter of engagement issued 

• Contract to pay for curriculum development by Partners incurred for SEAL 2020 

70



Questions?

71



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:    Workforce Solutions Alamo Executive Committee    

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Date:    June 5, 2020   

 

Subject:   WSA Employee Handbook Revision 

 

 

Summary:  This item is to provide an update on WSA’s Employee Handbook Revision. 

 

Analysis:  The current Handbook was published in 2013.  Since that time, it has been updated 

periodically addressing policies as issues arose and as needed in order to remain consistent 

with current management direction. Starting December 2019, HR began drafting a more 

cohesive handbook. HR took a deep dive into the root causes of the prior claims and complaints 

and to identify the policies in the current handbook that staff have issues with. To that end, HR 

reached out to staff in December, asking for their input on policies that are problematic for them 

in addition to policies they would like to be included.  

 

The common themes of the input from WSA staff were:  

- Desire for transparency when filling vacancies  

- Seeking clarification for hours worked away from the office for exempt staff as well as 

the use of discretionary time 

- Requests to increase the PTO sellback and carryover thresholds 

- Expansion and further definition of flex schedules 

- Clarification of the process to grant administrative leave 

 

HR also compared WSA’s employee Handbook to best practices as identified by SHRM 

(Society for Human Resources Management) and Texas Workforce Commission’s Guide for 

Texas Employers.  In addition, we compared our handbook with the handbooks of Workforce 

Solutions Greater Dallas, Workforce Solutions Lower Rio Grande Valley and Alamo Area 

Council of Governments (AACOG) to identify policies that vary from WSA’s Employee 

Handbook.  

HR presented recommendations for things that need to be updated to WSA’s management 

team in a series of meetings.  This draft was then sent to outside legal counsel before WSA’s 

Marketing and Design team will begin final formatting.  

 

72



 

 

 

 

 

 

A workgroup, of CEO, WSA legal counsel and HR will be held June 8, 2020.  This workgroup 

will produce the final draft of the handbook.  

Alternatives: No viable alternatives to staff recommendation and/or process.   

 

Fiscal Impact:  Updates to the employee handbook were performed internally and reviewed by 

outside counsel.  

 

Recommendation:  None 

 

Next Steps:  The handbook workgroup will meet on June 8, 2020 to produce final draft. This 

final draft will be presented to the HR Committee June 11, 2020.  Lastly, the Handbook will be 

rolled out to all staff at a mandatory staff meeting, where acknowledgement of receipt forms will 

be collected from all staff the first week of July. 

 

 

73



 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK REVISIONS  

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE SUMMARY 

June 5,2020 

 

CURRENT POLICIES CHANGED 
  

JOB POSTING AND APPLICATION 
ISSUES 

o Job posted is not job performed; Posted without an approved, accurate job 

descriptions; job descriptions not developed in collaboration with HR 

o Interview process allegedly bias; Perception of pre-selection 

ANALYSIS 

o Best practice is to post all positions. 

o Independent panels provide defense against allegations of favoritism and/or 

preselection. 

o Consistent with TWC 

o Consistent with SHRM 

o Consistent with other Large Boards’ policies. 

RECOMMENDATION 

o All Positions will be posted and must be competed for. 

o Approval Process to fill vacancies better defined and adhered to. 

o New Staff jobs are created through the following procedure:  Supervisors who 

require the creation of a new job are to discuss the need for the job and its 

related duties and responsibilities with their immediate supervisor.  The request 

for approval of new jobs is to proceed up through increasingly higher levels of 

supervision until it reaches a supervisory level that reports directly to the 

President 

o The Human Resources Department is to be a clearing house for all applicants.  

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

ISSUES 

o Decentralized and ad hoc 

o Allegations of favoritism 

o No clearinghouse to bring knowledge back to agency. 

o Agency training budget unknown at department level. 

o Career pathways not tied to training plan. 

o No consistent process for maintaining record of training in HR 

74



 

ANALYSIS 

o Quarterly mandatory Human Resources training for all staff is a best practice  

o Training is a main area scrutinized for claims of discrimination and retaliation by 

EEOC 

o Consistent with TWC 

o Consistent with SHRM 

o Consistent with other large boards 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Implement LMS Software (SWBCU+) 

o Departmental training programs written annually 

o Cross departmental concurrent learning paths 

o Training repository on share drive 

o Leadership take same SWBCU Courses Concurrently 

 Excelling as a Manager or Supervisor (9 Part SERIES):  

 Strategic Planning (4 Part SERIES) 

 

Personal Behavior Expectations 
ISSUES 

o Interdepartmental conflict in cubicle area 

o Lack of courtesy and respect for rights of other staff working in shared spaces. 

(ex. Speakerphone use, visitors, music, uncovered coughs and sneezing)  

o Cross departmental tension 

o Interdepartmental tension 

o Lack of virus contamination protocol 

o Productivity impacted 

 

ANALYSIS 

o Spread of contagious illness requires preventative behaviors as defined by CDC  

o Office Environment Policy reduces tensions 

o Communicates agency expectations for standards of behavior 

o Consistent with TWC 

o Consistent with SHRM 

o Consistent with other Large Boards 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Conflict resolution training for all staff 

o When possible use headphone rather than Speakerphone  

75



 

o Meetings with visitors kept to a minimum & short duration  

o If meeting will last for a while with more than 2 attendees, please meet in a 

conference room, team room, or a vacant office 

  

 

 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES 

  ISSUES 

o Grievances and conflicts exasperated by misapplication of grievance process 

o Confusion regarding classes of employees covered by the grievance process 

o Policy published before Anonymous Hotline was implemented at WSA 

o Informal Resolution not emphasized enough. 

o Staff and HR weaponized. 

ANALYSIS 

o Issues dealt with as soon as possible avoid an escalation of the problem and  

o provides management with the opportunity to resolve the matter  

o Consistent with TWC 

o Consistent with SHRM 

o Consistent with other boards 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Addition of Supervisory policy 

o Clarify who is covered by grievance policy 

o Does not apply to terminated employees 

o Does not apply if term’ d during probationary period 

o Additional Time to Report guidance   

o Emphasize Hotline Availability. 

 

  

 

 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY PROCESS  

ISSUES 

o Documentation of progressive discipline administered at the department level 

without set standards. 

o Copies are not routed to Human Resources. 

o Diminishes HR’s ability to defend against allegations 

o Verbal counseling not documented 

 

76



 

ANALYSIS 
o Universal HR concept - if you don’t write it down it did not happen 

o Turnovers in leadership combined with lack of documentation has resulted in the 

defensible becoming indefensible 

o Need for documentation emphasized by SHRM 

o Need for documentation emphasized by TWC  

RECOMMENDATION 

o Assign training on documentation and the disciplinary process using LMS. 

o Compliance with training part of performance evaluation.  

 

 

PAID TIME OFF  
ISSUES 

o Inability to take earned PTO 

o PTO payout at termination. 

o Carryover amount allowed to remain in balance 

o Exempt staff PTO decremented for pay periods  

      when actual hours work exceeds the minimum weekly threshold  

ANALYSIS 

o Per TWC guidance requiring deductions from a leave balance is allowable under 

FLSA. However, extreme caution should be used when requiring deductions from 

leave balance in a week where actual hours work exceed the minimum threshold 

o Greater Dallas has compensatory time policy 

o SHRM recommends addressing attendance issues Via attendance policies not 

partial day deductions for exempts. 

o Agency has a history of claims being filed as a result of inconsistent application 

of policies to capture and record hours worked by exempt staff  

o Workload and reporting deadlines require some departments to request 

exception memos to avoid leave forfeiture. 

o Universal best practice is to require staff to take leave. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Implement WSA comp time policy that provides a policy of application by default 

thereby reducing complaints about inconsistent applications between 

departments. 

  

 

77



 

 

ATTENDANCE AND TARDINESS  
ISSUES 

o Lax enforcement of tardiness 

o Requirement to sign out in book loosely complied with 

o Decentralized criteria for granting discretionary time. 

ANALYSIS 

o Supervisors have decentralized unwritten tracking systems 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Department managers utilize standardized attendance tracking metric. 

o Deviations discussed at weekly management meetings. 

  

 

ALTERNATIVE WORK SCHEDULES 
ISSUES 

o Misnomer it is actually 

o Adequate department coverage required 

ANALYSIS 

o Best practice is to include as part of total reward strategy 

o WSA’s departments are covered during critical times 

o Majority of staff are using it to improve work life balance 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Remove 4 10-hour days option 

o Record Alternate Schedules in EWS 

 

  

 

 

WAGE AND SALARY ADMINISTRATION 
ISSUES 

o Capture exempt hours worked. 

o Ad hoc Merit increases without performance evaluation. 

ANALYSIS 

o Inconsistent application of policy leads to increased litigation and expenses. 

o Exempts should be paid their full weekly salary, regardless of hours worked 

unless absent for full day with no work performed. 

78



 

RECOMMENDATION 

o All time worked, and leave taken is to be recorded by the employee on biweekly 

timesheets and approved by the employee's supervisor. 

o submitted to Payroll by 5:00 p.m. on the last Friday of the pay period.   

o Overtime worked must receive prior approval and be reported with an 

explanation on the timesheet.  

 

  

NEW POLICIES 
 

 

SUPERVISORY POLICY 
ISSUES 

o Lack of structured training for supervisors and managers 

o Variation in interpretation of policies and expectations of have led to allegations 

of discrimination  

ANALYSIS 

o Standardized guidelines best practice to protect agency and staff. 

o Better trained supervisors and managers improve staff retention. 

o Per numerous studies employees don’t quit jobs they quit what they perceive to 

be toxic managers. 

o Consistent with other Large Boards 

o Per TWC managers and supervisors are front line defense for the agency 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Adopt Dallas Boards Supervision policy 

o Deviations require executive level written approval. 

 

 

  

WEAPONS 
ISSUES 

o Texas is an open carry state need to have written policy to opt out 

o Need a policy that does not infringe on the rights of licensed concealed carry 

permit holders. 

ANALYSIS 

79



 

o Favoring one side over the other in the gun debate tends to lower morale and 

impact retention. 

o Safety of staff is primary concern. 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Adopt weapons policy copied from TTNA 

  

EMERGENCY LEAVE POOL 
ISSUES 

o Staff has expressed desire to help colleagues going through catastrophic 

circumstances. 

o Staff experiencing unexpected catastrophic events face financial hardship if they 

go into a LWOP scenario 

ANALYSIS 

o HR studies confirm policies such as this fosters better morale and improved 

relations among employees 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Reinstate Emergency Sick Leave Pool 

 

WSA COMPENSATORY TIME POLICY 
ISSUES 

o Exempt staff are regularly working well over the 40-hour work week and often 

must take PTO in weeks where they have already exceeded the minimum 

threshold. 

o Staff are sacrificing home-life balance to meet deadlines and get assignments 

done 

ANALYSIS 

o Working excessive hours are a leading cause of burnout in today’s workforce 

o Flexible work arrangements, such as telecommuting, compressed work weeks, 

and flexible working hours/flextime, may increase employee job satisfaction and 

retention. 

o Incentivizing exempt staff to meet business objectives is a critical factor in 

designing Total Rewards plans. 

o SHRM recommends that organizations should focus on what they can do to 

counter workers’ perceptions of being underpaid.  

  

80



 

RECOMMENDATION 

• Adopt Comp time policy based on information contained in the Greater Dallas 

Boards Employee Handbook  

 

WSA TELECOMMUTE POLICY 
ISSUES 

o While out on paid absences, staff attends meeting remotely, responds to emails 

and works on taskings. 

o Some jobs do not require being in the office to complete 

o Some staff choose to take a full day off and use PTO when their home 

obligations on a day are compatible with working from home. 

ANALYSIS 

o Families and Work Institute (FWI) CEO and President Ellen Galinsky says 

“Telecommuting Cuts Across Gender, Generations” 

o Linda Batiste, J.D., a principal consultant at the Job Accommodation Network 

(JAN), said “Offering flexibility”—telecommuting, alternate schedules, job 

sharing— “is helpful to everybody instead of having a very rigid policy,” 

o “Having people ask for accommodations tends not to be as worker friendly.” 

o According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, in 2015, 38 percent of individuals in 

management, business and financial operations, and 35 percent of individuals in 

professional and related occupations did some or all their work from home. 

o Survey data indicate that employees who telecommute benefit by having: 

o Greater productivity 

o Increased job satisfaction 

o Less stress and better health 

o Lower commuting costs 

o More flexibility to balance and manage work and home responsibilities 

o Survey data show that companies benefit by having: 

o Increased productivity 

o Reduced absenteeism 

o Increased job satisfaction, leading to increased employee retention and lower 

recruitment costs. 

o Reduced office space needs and corresponding expenses 

RECOMMENDATION 

o Managers identify which if any of their positions are suitable to telecommuting 

o Adopt a version of Telecommuting policy that will acknowledge work done by 

staff when not physically in the office. 

81



Human Resources 
Department

June 5, 2020 

82



WSA 
Employee 
Handbook 

Review

83



Best Practices Sources

1. Society for Human Resources Management

2. Texas Workforce Commission

3. Workforce Solutions Greater Dallas

4.  Workforce Solutions Lower Rio Grande Valley 

5. Alamo Area Counsel of Governments  (AACOG)

6.  Toyotetsu 84



Staff Concerns/Input
Hours Worked 
• Including worked away from the office for exempt staff.
• Use of discretionary time, Desire to, expansion and further definition of flex schedules
• Clarification of the process to grant Administrative Leave.
• Expansion and further definition of flex schedules,

PTO 
• Increase the PTO sellback thresholds 
• Increase allowable carryover 

Recruiting
• Transparency of process used to fill vacancies.

85



Policies Changed
ØJob posting and application

ØTraining and development

ØPersonal behavior expectations

ØGrievance procedures

ØStandards of conduct and disciplinary process

ØPaid time off 

ØAttendance and tardiness

ØAlternative work schedules 86



New Policies Added 

Ø Supervisory policy

Ø Weapons

Ø Emergency leave pool

Ø WSA compensatory time policy

Ø WSA telecommute policy

87



Questions?

88



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE POLICY HANDBOOK 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________, 2020 

89



TABLE OF 
CONTENTS 

 

 

Employee Welcome Message ……………………………………………………… 5 
Introductory Statement ………………………………………………………………. 6 
About Us (Identity, Mission, Vision, Core Values, Service Area)…… 7 
Employee Acknowledgment Statement ……………………………………. .. 8 

 
Section I: General Provisions 
1.1 Employment at Will……………………………………………………………………. 10 
1.2 Equal Employment Opportunity Statement ……………………………….. 11 
1.3 Harassment and Discrimination …………………………………………………. 12 
1.4 Drugs and Alcohol Use ……………………………………………………………….. 17 
1.5 Confidential Information…………………………………………………………….. 20 
1.6 Americans with Disabilities Act /ADA/ADAAA…………………………….. 21 
1.7 Customer Relations …………………………………………………………………… 23 
1.8 Open Communication………………………………………………………………… 24 
1.9 Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Officer …………………………… 25 
1.10 Violence in the Workplace ………………………………………………………… 26 
1.11 Ethics and Conflicts of Interest …………………………………………………. 28 

 
Section II: Employment 
2.1 Classification and Categories of Employees ……………………………… 31 
2.2 Application for Employment and Background Investigation ……… 33 
2.3 Job Posting and Application Process ………………………………………… 35 
2.4 Expectations for Employee Behavior ……………………………………….. 36 
2.5 Nepotism (Employment of Relatives) ………………………………………. 38 
2.6 Selection of the CEO…………………………………………… 40 
2.7 Promotions ……………………………………………………………………………… 41 
2.8 Transfers…………………………………………………………………………………… 42 
2.9 Demotions……………………………………………………………………………….. 43 
2.10 Immigration Law Compliance …………………………………………………. 44 
2.11 Outside Employment ………………………………………………………………. 45 
2.12 Performance Evaluation/Work Performance Improvement Plans 46 
2.13 Introductory Period of Employment.……………………………………….. 48 
2.14 New Employee Orientation……………………………………………………….. 49 

 
Section III: Compensation 
3.1 Wage and Salary Administration……………………………………………… 51 
3.2 Overtime ………………………………………………………………………………… 54 
3.3 Travel Time …………………………………………………………………………….. 55 
3.4 Payroll Schedule and Time Records ………………………………………… 56 
3.5 Pay Deductions ………………………………………………………………………. 57 

90



3.6 Final Wage Payments ……………………………………………………………... 58 
 
 

 

Section IV: Employee Benefits 
 Introduction to Benefits …………………………………………………………. 60 
4.1 Medical and Health Insurance …………………………………………………. 60 
4.2 Life and Disability Insurance ……………………………………………………. 62 
4.3 Retirement – Defined Contribution Plan …..…………………………….. 64 
4.4 Training and Development ……………………………………………………… 65 
4.5 Travel Expenses ………………………………………………………………………. 66 
4.6 Paid Time Off (PTO) ………………………………………………………………… 69 
4.7 Emergency Leave Pool…………………………………………………………….. 7ϱ 
4.8 Administrative Leave ……………………………………………………………… 7ϳ 
4.9 Holiday Observances ……………………………………………………………… 7ϴ 
4.10 Workers’ Compensation Insurance ………………………………………… 7ϵ 
4.11 Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA)…….. ϴϬ 
4.12 Education Assistance Program ……………………………………………….. 8Ϯ 
4.13 Employee Assistance Program ……………………………………………….. 8ϱ 
4.14 Direct Deposit ………………………………………………….......................... 8ϲ 
4.15 Alternative Work Schedules …………………………………………………… 8ϳ 

 

Section V:  Safety 
5.1 Safety ………………………………………………………………………………………. 9Ϭ 

 
Section VI: Leaves of Absence 
6.1 Bereavement Leave ……………………………………………………………….. 9ϯ 
6.2 Military Leave ………………………………………………………………………… 9ϰ 
6.3 Jury/Witness Duty ………………………………………………………………….. 9ϱ 
6.4 Leaves of Absence ……………………………………………......................... 9ϲ 
6.5 Registration and Voting …………………………………………………………. 9ϵ 

 

Section VII: General Work Rules 
7.1 Work Hours ……………………………………………………………………………. 10ϭ 
7.2 Lunch Periods …………………………………………………………………………. 10Ϯ 
7.3 Attendance and Tardiness ………………………………………………………. 10ϯ 
7.4 Inclement Weather and Emergencies …………………………………….. 104 
7.5 Dress Code ……………………………………………………………………………… 105 
7.6 Security of Personal Property ………………………………………………… 106 
7.7 Non-Smoking Policy ………………………………………………………………… 107 
7.8 Political Activities ………………………………………………………………….... 108 
7.9 Personal Behavior Expectations………………………………………………. 109 
7.10 Use of Agency Equipment and Resources ……………………………….. 110 
7.11 Use of Computer Resources ……………………………………………………. 111 

91



7.12 Personal Telephone Calls ………………………………………………………… 115 
7.13 Access to Personnel Information …………………………………………….. 116 
7.14 Visitors in the Workplace ………………………………………………………… 117 
7.15 Employees with Serious Diseases …………………………………………….. 118 
7.16 Solicitation and Distribution …………………………………………………….. 119 

 

7.17 Agency-Issued Cellular Telephone Usage …………………………………. 120 
7.18 Use of Agency Owned or Leased Vehicles and Driving for Company 

Business         122 
 
Section VIII: Rules of Conduct and Disciplinary Process 
8.1 Standards of Conduct and Disciplinary Process ………………………… 128 
8.2 Grievance Procedures ……………………………………………………………… 134 

 
Section IX: Termination of Employment 
9.1 Employment Termination ………………………………………………………… 137 
9.2 Reduction in Force …………………………………………………………………… 139 
9.3 Exit Interviews …………………………………………………………………………. 140 

  

92



 

Welcome New Employees! 
 
On behalf of your colleagues, I welcome you to Workforce Solutions Alamo (“WSA”) and 

wish you every success here. 
 
We believe that each employee contributes directly to WSA's growth and success, and 

we hope you will take pride in being a member of our team 
 
This Handbook was developed to outline the policies, programs, and benefits available 

to eligible employees, as they currently exist. This Handbook applies to both new and current 
employees. Employees should familiarize themselves with the contents of the  Handbook as 
soon as possible, for  it will  answer many questions about  employment  with WSA.    

 
We hope that your experience here will be challenging, enjoyable, and rewarding. Again, 

welcome! 

 

Adrian Lopez 

CEO 

  

93



INTRODUCTORY 
STATEMENT 

 
 

This Handbook is designed to acquaint you with  WSA and to provide you with 
information about the current working conditions, employee benefits, and policies affecting 
your employment. It is important that you take the time to carefully read, understand and 
follow all of the provisions of the Handbook.   It describes many of your responsibilities as an 
employee and outlines the programs developed by WSA to benefit employees.  One of our 
objectives is to provide a work environment that is conducive to both personal and 
professional growth. 

 
The following guidelines are provided to you as a guide to employment-related policies 

that currently exist and does not serve as an employment contract.  Except for the at-will 
employment policies, all policies are subject to change and may be changed from time to time, 
at WSA’s discretion.  Employees will be notified of such changes to the Handbook as they occur. 
After publication of changes, your continued employment will signify your acceptance of the 
policy change(s). 

 
About Us: 
 

IDENTITY 
The WSA Board serves as the governing board for the regional workforce system, a network of 
service providers and contractors that brings people and jobs together. We represent the 
taxpayers of the 13-county Alamo region. Our membership reflects the diverse constituencies 
of the regional community: business, economic development, education, labor, community 
organizations, and government. 
 

MISSION 
The mission of WSA is building a premier workforce that meets business demand through 
investments that support economic growth. 
 

VISION 
The WSA’s vision is to be the partner of choice for employers and people seeking a competitive 
edge. 
 

CORE VALUES 
The WSA Board embraces the values of accountability, innovation, integrity, relevance, 
excellence, and partnering. 
 

SERVICE AREA 
WSA serves the counties of Atascosa, Bandera, Bexar, Comal, Frio, Gillespie, Guadalupe, 
Karnes, Kendall, Kerr, McMullen, Medina and Wilson counties. 
  

94



EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM 
 
 

The Handbook describes important information about WSA, and I understand that I should 
consult with HR regarding any questions not answered in this Handbook. 

 
Since all of the information, policies, procedures, and benefits described here are subject to 
change, I acknowledge that revisions to the Handbook, and all of WSA's underlying programs, 
benefits, rules and policies, may occur.  Any such changes will be approved by the CEO and 
will be communicated through official notices.  I understand that revised information may 
supersede, modify, or eliminate existing policies, programs, rules and benefits. 

 
Furthermore, I acknowledge that this Handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a legal 
document.  Employment with WSA is at-will and may be terminated by either the employee or 
employer at any time, with or without cause.  No manager, employee, recruiter, representative, 
supervisor, agent, officer or director of the WSA, has any authority, power, or permission to 
change the at-will status of any employee or to enter into any agreement, oral or written, which 
changes the at-will status of an employee.  Therefore, any representations, statements, 
promises, words, writings, or other actions by anybody employed or affiliated with WSA which 
purports or attempts to change the at-will status of any employee are void, unauthorized and 
without any effect. 

 
I have received the Handbook or have been given access to an electronic copy, and I understand 
that it is my responsibility to read and comply with the policies and procedures contained in 
this Handbook and any revisions made to it. 
 
 
 

 
EMPLOYEE'S Name (printed)    
 
EMPLOYEE’S SIGNATURE 
 
DATE 
 
 

  

95



SECTION I 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
1.1 Definitions 

 

Words in the Handbook have the following meanings: 

 

Applicable Law:  federal, state, and local laws and regulations, guidelines, and executive 
orders, as amended or recodified from time to time, that affect employees and govern 
the operation of WSA, including, but not limited to:  Equal Employment Opportunity Act, 
Family and Medical Leave Act, Occupational Safety and Health Act, Davis-Bacon Act, 
Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act, Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, Walsh-Healy Act, Whistleblower Protection provisions; Workforce Investment 
Opportunity Act, Civil Rights Act, Age Discrimination in Employment Act, Americans with 
Disabilities Act, Equal Pay Act and similar laws. 

 

Board:  Board of WSA. 

 

CEO:  The Chief Executive Officer engaged by the Board from time to time. 

 

COBRA:  Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act. 

 

Director:  the direct supervisor of an employee at WSA. 

 

Drug:  the term “drug” includes alcoholic beverages; inhalants; illegal substances; 
“designer” drugs; controlled substances which are used without prescriptions, used 
unlawfully, and/or not taken in accordance with the prescription given to the employee; 
and non-prescription drugs or medicines which are abused.  By way of example only, 
“drugs” includes narcotics, marijuana, hashish, cocaine, diet pills, tranquillizers, and 
hallucinogens. 

 

Exempt:  An employee who is not subject to the minimum wage and overtime provisions 
of Applicable Law and meets the three-part required test by the Department of Labor; 
generally does not receive overtime pay for work performed in excess of forty (40) hours 
in a workweek. 

 

Full-time Employment:  Employment of an individual for forty (40) hours in a workweek. 

 

Grievance:  a claim by an employee that a violation has occurred relating to employment. 

Commented [LMB1]: CARES and FFCRA? 
COBRA 

Commented [LMB2]: All supervisors are not directors 

Commented [LMB3]: Different the period defines for 
benefits eligibilty 

96



 

Handbook:  the Employee Policy of WSA as may be amended from time to time. 

 

HR:  the director of Human Relations at WSA, who also serves as the Equal Opportunity 
officer.  

 

HR-Forms:  forms, applications, and other documents provided to employee by WSA. 

 

Non-Classified Employee:  a staff employee whose position entails significant 
administrative or professional duties and who title is not included in the classified pay 
plan.   

 

Non-Exempt:  an employee who, because of his/her position duties, is covered under the 
overtime provisions of Applicable Law and, therefore, must receive compensatory time 
off or overtime pay for work performed in excess of the forty (40) house in a workweek. 

 

Overtime:  time worked by a non-exempt employee in excess of forty (40) hours in a 
workweek. 

 

PAN:  Personnel Action Notice is the formal personnel file for each employee. 

 

TWC:  Texas Workforce Commission. 

 

USERRA:  Uniform Services Employment & Reemployment Rights Act. 

 

WSA:  Workforce Solutions Alamo.   

 

1.2 Employment At-Will 

 
1.2.1 All employees, except for the CEO, who is under a signed 
employment contract, are employed on an at-will basis.  This means that you or WSA 
may terminate your employment relationship at any time, with or without notice and 
with or without cause or reason.  At all times, employees shall remain as at-will 
employees throughout their employment with WSA. 
 

1.2.2 This Handbook provides specific information on the regulations 

governing all employees.   While strict compliance with these provisions is 

required, WSA understands that from time to time exceptions or 

modifications may be warranted.   Approval must be provided by your 

Commented [LMB4]:  

 

Commented [LMB5R4]: EO Officer pertains to center 
staff and customers. On file at TWC COO IS  is EO Officer.   
Board staff EO needs are handled by  HR Manager. 

Commented [LMB6R4]:  

Commented [LMB7]: Which staff member are or were 
part of this category 

Commented [LMB8]: Is the official document for status 
changes. 

97



Director, HR, or the CEO for any exceptions.  

If there are violations of provisions of the Handbook, HR and the CEO will 

decide on appropriate action, including, but not? limited to, termination of 

employment.  

 
1.2.3 WSA’s Handbook, guidelines and policies are not contracts and nothing in them 
should be interpreted or given the effect of a promise, guarantee, or contract.  With the 
exception of this at-will policy, all of the agency’s policies, guidelines, benefits, personnel 
procedures, practices, and Handbook provisions are subject to change, modification, 
exceptions, deletion, or supplementation at the sole and exclusive discretion of WSA 
at any time, with or without notice or reason. 
 
1.2.4 Any statements contained in this, or any other employee Handbook, employment 
applications, representations, recruiting materials, applications, memoranda, policies, 
cannot modify the at-will status of an employee or any other materials provided to 
employees or applicants. None of these documents, whether singly or combined, will 
create any express or implied contract concerning any terms or conditions of 
employment. 

 

1.3 Equal Employment Opportunity Statement 
 

WSA is an Equal Opportunity Employer. We are committed to providing equal opportunity 
without regard to race, color, gender, sexual orientation, equal pay, retaliation, sex, sexual 
harassment, religion, national origin, age, disability, genetic information, marital status, 
pregnancy, political affiliation or belief, military/veteran status, or any other factor protected 
by law.  This equal opportunity policy applies to all areas of employment including, but not 
limited to, recruiting, hiring, training, promotion, transfer, compensation, benefits, 
advancement, discipline, layoff, termination and other terms and conditions of employment. 

 
1.3.1 WSA conforms to all Applicable L a w  and provides equal employment 
opportunity in all employment and employee relations: 

 
 

1.3.2 WSA cooperates with agencies responsible for the enforcement of state and 
federal laws, executive orders, court rulings, and other regulations dealing with unlawful 
discriminatory practices related to employment. 
 
1.3.3 WSA investigates all charges of alleged discrimination in employment, and 
informs the general public and WSA employees of their rights in regard to equal 
employment opportunity.  Anyone found to be engaging in any type of unlawful 
discrimination will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
employment. 

Commented [LMB9]: CEO’S  desired approvers. C SUITE 
ONLY? 

98



 
1.3.4 It is the responsibility of all WSA managers, supervisors, and employees to 
conform to both the letter and spirit of such executive orders as may be enforced from 
time to time and all related civil rights orders and laws 

 
 

1.4  Harassment and/or Discrimination 
 

WE DO NOT TOLERATE HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION OR RETALIATION BASED ON GENDER, 
RACE, COLOR, AGE, NATIONAL ORIGIN, RELIGION, POLITICAL AFFILIATION OR BELIEF, DISABILITY, 
GENETIC INFORMATION, OR ANY OTHER BASIS PROTECTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. 

 
1.4.1. Summary of policy. WSA is committed to maintaining a work environment 
characterized by respect, courtesy, dignity and professionalism.  Therefore, WSA strictly 
prohibits and will not tolerate any harassment of an employee or any inappropriate 
behavior.  The prohibitions against harassment apply not only to WSA employees, 
supervisors, and offices, but also to vendors, customers, and others with whom the 
agency does business.  In other words, WSA will not tolerate any harassment of its 
employees by anyone 

 
1.4.1.1 To maintain a positive work environment for all WSA employees, we ask 

that you immediately report any conduct or words that violate our policies, 

regardless of whether they are directed at you or someone else. Since WSA will 

not tolerate anyone engaging in harassment, discrimination, retaliation or 

inappropriate conduct toward our employees, we ask that you report the 

misconduct, regardless of whether it is by an employee, manager, vendor, 

customer, or anyone else doing business with WSA. 

 
1.4.1.2 Upon receiving a report of this nature, Workforce Solutions Alamo will 

promptly investigate the matter and take a prompt remedial action, as may be 

appropriate.  Anyone working at WSA who is found to have violated these 

policies will receive appropriate corrective action, including discipline, up to and 

including discharge. 

 
1.4.1.3 We strongly encourage the reporting of misconduct. No one will be 

retaliated against in any manner for making valid reports in good faith.  Every 

employee, manager and supervisor has the responsibility of reporting any 

conduct or words, which violate WSA's policies against unlawful harassment 

(sexual or otherwise), discrimination, retaliation or inappropriate conduct. 

 
1.4.1.4 A more detailed explanation of our policies, the types of prohibited 

misconduct, and the possible avenues for reporting violations of the policies, 

99



follow: 

 
1.4.1.4.1 Prohibited Conduct and Words.  It is not feasible to list 

all of the types of behavior, misconduct, and comments that violate 

policy and could subject an employee to discipline, including discharge.  

The following are examples of misconduct, which are strictly prohibited. 

 
1.4.1.4.2 Sexual harassment will not be tolerated.  Sexual 

harassment includes, but is not limited to: comments or behavior related 

to gender which are insulting, offensive, degrading, or disparaging, or 

other unwelcome physical or verbal conduct of a sexual nature where: 

 
1.4.1.4.2.1 Submission to such conduct is either an expressed 

or implied term or condition of employment; or 

 
1.4.1.4.2.2 Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used 

as the basis for an employment decision affecting the harassed 

person; or 

 
1.4.1.4.2.3 The conduct has the purpose or effect of 

unreasonably interfering with an affected person's work 

performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 

work environment. 

 
1.4.1.4.3 Examples of sexual harassment that violate our policies 

include: unwelcome or uninvited sexual advances, requests for sexual 

favors, suggestive remarks, touching or physical contact, flirting, 

comments about any individual's body, questions of a personal or sexual 

nature; sexually related jokes, comments or wisecracks, stalking, 

attempts to initiate a personal relationship, displays or circulation of 

sexually suggestive or offensive graphics, pictures or other material; 

invitations to meals, requests for dates, etc., and other words or actions.  

Our policies prohibit harassment regardless of whether the words or 

conduct are directed at the same sex or the opposite sex as the person 

engaging on the conduct or comments. 

 

1.4.1.4.4 Other kinds of prohibited harassment.  WSA also strictly 

prohibits and will not tolerate any kind of comments, statements, 

innuendoes, slurs, nicknames, derogatory comments, jokes, pranks, 

100



circulation or posting of pictures or other materials, or other verbal or 

physical conduct that are/is in any manner related to sex, pregnancy, 

race, ethnic or national origin, religion, color, citizenship, culture, gender, 

marital status, veteran status, age, disability, and/or any other factor 

protected by law. 

 

1.4.1.4.5 Inappropriate  Behavior.  WSA also strictly prohibits any 

comments or conduct that is insulting, disrespectful, bothersome, 

offensive, annoying or degrading, even though the words or conduct 

may not constitute "sexual harassment" or other prohibited harassment.  

Examples of behavior include violating someone's privacy with personal 

questions or conduct, rudeness, yelling, ridiculing individuals, disclosing 

personal or medical information, unprofessional behavior, 

intimidation, disrespectful behavior, name-calling, using inappropriate 

nicknames or descriptions to refer to persons, annoying others with 

teasing, practical jokes, mischief, or other behavior. 

 

 

1.4.1.4.6 Retaliation is Prohibited.  WSA also strictly prohibits any 

unlawful retaliation against anyone who has reported any violation of our 

policies; made any objection to any discriminatory or retaliatory act, or 

participated in any investigation, whether as a witness, provider of 

information, or a complainant. 

 

1.4.1.5 Policy Applies to All Communications.  WSA's email system, internet 

access system, other elements of its information technology system and 

communications facilities, intra-office mail, voice mail, and all 

other means of communication are subject to WSA's anti-harassment 

and anti-discrimination policies.  WSA expressly prohibits the use of email, 

Internet or other means to transmit, view, access, or receive lewd, offensive, 

discriminatory, harassing or inappropriate messages, images, or other materials. 

Screen savers on computers, as well as all other images and messages on 

computers, must be appropriate for a business environment and conform to 

WSA's policies. 

 

1.4.2 How to report Violations of Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation 
 

1.4.2.1 Ways to make a report:  WSA strongly encourages employees to 

101



report any conduct or words that violate policy. If you believe that you or any 

other employee has been subjected to any verbal or physical conduct that 

violates our policies prohibiting harassment (sexual or otherwise), 

discrimination, retaliation or inappropriate conduct, report it immediately.  

WSA assures you that there will not be any unlawful retaliation or reprisal for 

making a valid report.  The following are possible avenues for making a report 

or complaint of harassment (sexual or otherwise), discrimination, retaliation or 

inappropriate conduct or words. 

 

1.4.2.2 Generally, the report of misconduct could be made to 

_______________.  However, if for any reason you feel it would not be 

appropriate or effective to report it to your ___________ (for example, if 

unavailable, not objective, a participant in the issue to be reported, or for any 

other reason), you should make the report to HR. 

 

1.4.2.3 Exercising rights under this policy, does not in any way preclude 

your right as an employee to seek relief through the TWC Civil Rights Division, 

the Equal Opportunity Commission, or in a court of proper jurisdiction for any 

complaint for which a remedy is provided under Applicable Law. 

 

1.4.3 Investigation of the Complaint.  After a report or complaint has been received, 
WSA will assign an appropriate person to immediately begin investigating the complaint.  
The investigators may vary depending on the circumstances and the nature of the 
allegations.  In order to facilitate the investigation, you may be asked to submit your 
complaint in a written form, which gives details and specific information concerning the 
harassment. 
 

1.4.3.1 WSA reserves the right to place an employee on Investigatory 

Administrative Leave, with pay, during the period of investigation. 

 
1.4.3.2 After the investigation is completed, WSA will provide you with a 

verbal summary of its determination.  If the complaint is substantiated, WSA will 

take appropriate prompt, remedial action to correct the situation, and you will 

be notified that action has been taken.  Individuals determined to have violated 

any of our policies prohibiting harassment, discrimination, or inappropriate 

behavior will be subject to disciplinary actions up to and including termination. 

1.4.4 Report Any Additional Issues that Arise.  So that they may also be investigated and 

appropriately addressed, you should immediately report any additional or later issues, 

Commented [LMB10]: ADD HOTLINE REFERENCE 

Commented [LMB11]: CEO NEEDS TO DESIGNATE 

102



problems, or concerns that may arise to the investigator or as outlined above.  Other 

matters that should be reported include: 

1.4.4.1 Any concern you may have that not enough is being done to address or 

resolve your complaint; 

 

1.4.4.2 Any new or other harassment, discrimination or retaliation that has 

occurred; 

 

1.4.4.3 Any concern you may have that the investigation was not properly done 

or that  the remedial action taken was not enough; 

 

1.4.4.4 Any violations of these policies that continue despite the remedial action 

undertaken by WSA; 

 

1.4.4.5 Any circumstances, events, or words you believe are retaliation; and/or 

 

1.4.4.6 Any other concerns or issues you might have. 

 

1.4.5 No Retaliation.  Since WSA prohibits  retaliation  against anyone for  making bona 

fide reports of harassment, misconduct, discrimination or other inappropriate conduct, 

we emphatically request that all violations of our policies be reported immediately. WSA 

assures you that there will be no retaliation against anyone for having brought forth a 

complaint of sexual harassment, inappropriate behavior, any other kind of harassment, 

or discrimination in good faith. WSA also prohibits retaliation against anyone who may 

have provided information or acted as a witness during an investigation, or has 

otherwise participated in an investigation, or engaged in any protected activity. 

 

1.4.6 Confidential Records Maintenance.  WSA maintains all records generated by a 

complaint of equal opportunity and /or retaliation in a secure and confidential manner in 

the HR office, in a accordance with Applicable Law. 

 

1.4.7 The notice, Equal Opportunity is the Law, is posted at WSA. 

1.5 Drugs and Alcohol ` 
 

1.5.1 Statement of Purpose and Scope. WSA strives to provide a safe, healthful, and 
Drug/alcohol free workplace that supports the level of productivity and quality necessary 
to meet the needs of our business.  Also, WSA recognizes that alcohol and Drug abuse in 
the work place has become a major concern throughout the nation and the state, which 

103



creates a serious negative impact on employees and their jobs. Therefore, we are 
committed to the principle of a Drug and alcohol free work place and have implemented 
these policies to facilitate reaching that goal. 

 
1.5.2 Our objective is to provide a safe and healthy work place for all employees, 
improve productivity, and prevent accidents.  Through this policy, it is also our intent to 
inform our employees of the dangers of Drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace and 
to advise them of the penalties that may be imposed for violations of our alcohol and 
Drug abuse policies. All employees are required to comply with these policies as a 
condition of continued employment. 

 
1.5.3 WSA reserves the right to conduct medical tests of employee’s urine, hair, or 
blood to validate compliance with the policy, in the interest of maintaining a safe 
workplace.  Such testing will ordinarily be conducted prior to employment, at a time 
when behavior indicates a reasonable suspicion that the employee may be under the 
influence of Drugs and, when an employee has been involved in an on-the-job accident 
or injury under circumstances that suggest possible use of Drugs and/or alcohol in the 
accident or injury event may be asked to submit to a Drug and/or alcohol test. “Involved 
in an on-the-job accident or injury” means not only the individual who was injured, but 
also any employee who potentially contributed to the accident or injury in any way. 

 
The presence of any detectable amount of prohibited substance in the employee’s 
system while at work, while on the premises of the company or its clients, or while on 
company business is strictly prohibited. 

 
 

1.5.4 Requirements and Prohibitions. In keeping with our commitment to prohibit 
"Drugs" in the workplace, WSA expects all of its employees to adhere to the following 
rules and policies: 

 
1.5.4.1 Employees must comply with all applicable laws whenever working or 
conducting WSA business, using a personal or leased vehicle while on agency 
business, when representing Workforce Solutions Alamo, or when present on 
WSA property. 

 
1.5.4.2 Employees shall not use, sell, transfer, manufacture, distribute, dispense, 
consume, or possess "Drugs" in any of the following circumstances or places: 

 
1.5.4.2.1 on WSA property; 
 
1.5.4.2.2 when working, traveling on business, or representing WSA, and 
 
1.5.4.2.3 when operating WSA vehicles or driving in connection with their 
employment. 

104



 
1.5.5.3 Employees shall not report to work, perform work, represent WSA, 
operate WSA vehicles, operate their own vehicles while working, or be present 
on WSA property while they are under the influence of Drugs. 

 
1.5.5.4 WSA will conduct drug testing if it appears that an employee may be 
under the influence of Drugs or alcohol, including but not limited to the following 
circumstances: evidence of Drugs or alcohol on or about the employee’s person 
or in the employee’s vicinity; unusual conduct on the part of the employee that 
suggests impairment or influence of Drugs or alcohol; negative performance 
patterns or excessive and unexplained absenteeism or tardiness. 

 
1.5.5.5 Employees shall immediately advise HR if convicted (including any plea of 
no contest, receipt of deferred adjudication or probation, or other similar 
proceeding) of any crime involving the sale, possession, transportation, or use of 
illegal Drugs controlled substances or other Drugs. 

 
1.5.5.6 If an employee is tested for Drugs or alcohol outside of the workplace and 
the results indicate a violation of this policy, the employee may be subject to 
appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including discharge from employment. 

 

In such case, the employee will be given the opportunity to explain the 
circumstances prior to any final employment action being taken. 

 
1.5.5.7 Any employee who refuses to submit drug testing or to a search after fair 
warning will be subject to immediate termination. 

 
1.5.5 Prescription Medication. If prescription medication results in your inability to 
perform the essential functions of your job safely and/or effectively, notify your 
supervisor (with a minimum of medical or specific details) so that appropriate safety 
precautions and/or reasonable accommodations can be explored.  WSA complies with 
the Applicable Law and will provide reasonable accommodation. 

 
1.5.6 WSA reserves the right to inspect all property (desks, file drawers, bookcases, 
lunch boxes, purses, vehicles, etc.) that is on WSA premises, to determine whether 
Drugs prohibited by this policy are present.  WSA will conduct such searches whenever 
it has reason to believe that this policy has been violated. 

 
1.6 Confidential Information 

 
1.6.1 WSA is committed to conducting its business in an open and forthright manner.  
As part of this commitment, we regularly inform our customers, the community, and 
other concerned groups about certain aspects of our operations.  At the same time, we 
are entrusted with maintaining the confidentiality of important information about our 

105



customers, contractors, our employees, and proprietary information about our plans, 
procurements, and systems. 

 
1.6.2 While employed at WSA, you may have access to information about our 
customers, operations, plans, or other employees.  You must be alert to the sensitivity of 
this information and protect against its unauthorized or inappropriate disclosure, both on 
and off the job and during and after employment with WSA.  A seemingly innocent remark 
or a careless action may cause WSA to suffer a loss in employee and public confidence, 
and may also have legal implications. 

 
1.6.3 You must be knowledgeable of and carefully follow all procedures related to: 

 
1.6.3.1 Use of computer hardware and software and the safeguarding of 
computer information; 
 

1.6.3.2 Proper storage, reproduction, distribution, and disposal of WSA 
information; 
 

1.6.3.3 The appropriate release of privileged information about WSA, our 
customers, and employees; 
 

1.6.3.4 Encryption of documents containing personal identity data, such as Social 
Security numbers, addresses, phone numbers, and dates of birth via email. 

 
1.6.4 It is the policy of WSA that the ________________ authorize/approve all 
communication of nonpublic information in advance, whether oral or written. Non-
public information includes any information that has not previously been released to the 
public by WSA through a press release. 

 
1.6.5 Employees violating this policy shall be subject to appropriate discipline, up to and 
including termination of employment. 
 

1.7 Employees with Disabilities 
 

WSA is committed to complying with Applicable Law and will provide reasonable 
accommodations to qualified applicants and employees who seek accommodation. 

 
1.7.1 Definitions: 

 
1.7.1.1 Disability - has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits 
or significantly restricts one or more major life activities, including but not limited 
to: 

 
1.7.1.1.1 Major life activities - caring for oneself, performing 

106



manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, lifting, 
bending, speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, 
communicating, and working, and 

 
1.7.1.1.2 The operation of major bodily functions including, but not 
limited to physical and/or mental impairment to include psychological 
disorders, cosmetic disfigurement and anatomical loss, effecting one of 
the bodily functions: neurological, musco-skeletal, special sense 
organs, respiratory (including speech), cardiovascular, reproductive, 
digestive, genitourinary, immune, circulatory, blood and lymphatic, skin, 
and endocrine systems. 

 
1.7.1.1.2.1 Mental or psychological disorders include: 
intellectual disability, organic brain syndrome, emotional or 
mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. 

 
1.7.1.2 Record of such an impairment- history of one that is episodic or in 
remission may meet the definition when active; 

 
1.7.1.3 Direct threat – a significant risk to the health and safety of the individual 
or others in the workplace, requiring accommodation; 

 
1.7.1.4 A qualified individual is someone who has the necessary skill, work 
experience, education, training, licensing or certification, or other job related 
requirements of the position to perform the essential functions of the job, with 
or without accommodation; 

 
1.7.1.5 Essential job functions – job activities, determined by the agency, that 
are core to job performance and cannot be modified; 

 
1.7.1.6 Reasonable accommodation - any change to the work environment, such 
as job restructuring, part time or modified work schedules, telecommuting, 
reassignment to a vacant position, acquisition or modification of equipment or 
devices, and other such modifications; 

 
1.7.1.7 Undue hardship – any action taken by the agency that would require 
significant difficulty or expense.  Factors to consider would be: the nature or cost 
of the accommodation, the overall financial resources of the employer and the 
impact on the workplace facility and agency operations. 

 
1.7.2 WSA is committed to ensuring equal employment opportunities for qualified 
persons with disabilities.  The agency will accommodate employees or qualified 
applicants, by making reasonable changes in the work environment if the changes do 
not pose an undue hardship on WSA, alter the essential functions of the job, or pose a 

107



direct threat to the individual or to others in the workplace. 

 
1.7.2.1 Employees must comply with safety standards.  Any who would pose a 
direct threat to themselves or others in the workplace will be placed on 
appropriate leave until an agency decision is made regarding the immediate 
employment situation. 

 
1.7.2.2 Employees are asked to notify their supervisors and HR for assistance 
when the need for accommodation arises.  

 
1.7.2.3 Individuals currently using illegal drugs are excluded from accommodation 
under this policy.  
 

Team Members are encouraged to seek assistance before alcohol or drug problems become a 
problem. In that regard, WSA will make reasonable efforts to accommodate Team Members 
who voluntarily seek assistance for a drug or alcohol problem. However, the Team Member 
must: 
● Immediately discontinue use of drugs and alcohol that would be in violation of this policy. 
●Consistently participate in the rehabilitation program and comply with recommendations 
made by the rehabilitation program. 
●Maintain good attendance, behavior, job performance, quality and safety. 
●This request must be made prior to a notification for testing or recommendation for 
termination for any reason. 
●WSA may require the Team Member to undergo additional 
substance abuse testing during the time period that the Team Member is participating in a 
rehabilitation program and continuing for two years following completion. 
 
To comply with this policy, I will immediately:  

- Complete a drug / alcohol test as directed by WSA 

- Contact our Employee Assistance Program for direction and enroll in a Substance Abuse 

Treatment Program as designated by the EAP.  

- Discontinue use of drugs / alcohol in violation of WSA policy.  

I agree that my continued employment with WSA is dependent on my successful completion of 

a Substance Abuse Treatment Program and continued cooperation with our Drug and Alcohol 

Policy.  If during the duration of this Agreement, I violate the requirements and conditions of 

the EAP, Substance Treatment Program, WSA Drug and Alcohol Policy including refusal to 

submit to a drug test, I understand that I would face a termination review and be subject to 

possible termination from WSA.  

 

 

108



1.7.2.4 HR is responsible for this policy implementation and, in consultation with 
senior management, will facilitate the resolution of reasonable accommodation, 
safety/direct threat, and undue hardship matters. 

 

1.8 Customer Relations 
 

1.8.1 Customers are among WSA's most valuable assets.  Every employee represents 
WSA to our customers and to the general public. Our job performance presents an image 
of our entire organization.  Therefore, a major business priority is to assist any customer 
or potential customer.  Nothing is more important than being courteous, friendly, helpful, 
and prompt in the attention given to internal and external customers. 

 
1.8.2 Our personal contact with the public, our manners on the telephone, and the 
communications we send to customers and fellow employees are a reflection not only 
of ourselves, but also of the professionalism of WSA. Positive customer relations not only 
enhance the public's perception or image of WSA, but also pay off in greater employee 
loyalty and increased efficiency in our processes. 

 
1.8.3 It is the policy of WSA to provide equal employment opportunity to applicants 
and employees and to assist employees and members of the general public, who have a 
disability, by providing reasonable accommodation, as appropriate, in employment, the 
application for employment, services, training, programs, and activities. 

 

1.9 Open Communication 
 

WSA firmly believes that the best way to further its business goals and to enhance teamwork is 
to maintain frank and open communication with its employees.  Experience has shown that the 
first step toward resolving a problem is to talk about it frankly and openly, in the appropriate 
setting.  We strongly encourage such discussions.  To enhance communications with our 
employees, we have established what we refer to as open communication. 

 
1.9.1 At any time you have a question, problem, concern or suggestion regarding your 
job or working conditions, we encourage you to speak with your Director or HR. 

 
1.9.2 You will also find that, from time to time, your supervisor or manager will initiate 
discussions about employment-related issues or business matters with you individually 
or with our employees as a group.  You may direct questions about policy issues or fair 
treatment to HR for discussion and interpretation. 

 
1.9.3 HR will set these meetings as quickly as possible, and employees are expected to 
understand that their issues/concerns may not be addressed at the time they arise. 

 
1.9.4 Staff members should be able to discuss their concerns without fear of retaliation.  
Open communication and early problem resolution aid in maintaining a pleasant and 
productive workplace environment. 

109



 
1.10 Equal Opportunity Officer 
 

1.10.1 WSA's CEO has designated HR as its EO Officer.  The EO Officer is responsible for 
Equal Opportunity and Non-Discrimination Requirements and Complaints as they pertain 
to the Board and its service providers. Any Equal Employment Opportunity complaints 
should be directed to HR. 

 
1.11 Violence in the Workplace 

 
It is the goal of WSA to promote a safe, respectful, and productive work environment. To this 
end, WSA will not tolerate, condone or ignore threats, stalking, threatening or abusive behavior, 
or acts of violence, as described in this policy. 

 
1.11.1 Each department supervisor, manager, and employee is responsible for keeping 
the workplace free of harassment, intimidation and/or violence. 

 
1.11.2 Behavior prohibited by this policy include any acts, words, omissions or actions 
by employees or non-employees, such as vendors, job applicants, visitors, spouses, or 
others who are actually or potentially intimidating, hostile, destructive, disruptive, 
threatening, or violent behavior regardless of whether directed against any employee, 
the employee him/herself, others, WSA property, or property belonging to others. 

 
1.11.3 This prohibition includes all WSA premises, activities, work areas, and WSA 
sponsored events. 

 
1.11.4 No form of intimidating, threatening, or violent behavior will be tolerated. Such 
behavior includes but is not limited to: 

 
1.11.4.1 Intimidating or hostile behavior includes language or action that 
disrupts the work environment, causes undue emotional distress to another, or 
creates a reasonable fear of injury to a person. 

 
1.11.4.2 Threatening behavior includes physical actions without physical 
contact or injury, and general or implied threats to people or property. 

 
1.11.4.3 Violent behavior includes any physical assault with or without 
weapons, throwing objects, destroying property, specific or expressed threats 
to inflict harm to people or destruction of property, and other conduct which 
appears to pose a threat of injury to persons or property. 

 
1.11.4.4 Behavior, words, or other conduct, which is self-destructive or 
potentially harmful to the employee him/herself and/or others. 

 

110



1.11.5 Any person who experiences, observes or has knowledge of actual or threatened 
workplace harassment or violence has a responsibility to report the situation to a 
member of management or to HR as soon as possible. 

 

1.11.6 All reports of workplace harassment, intimidation or violence will be investigated 
promptly and impartially.  Employees are required to cooperate in any investigation.  A 
timely resolution of each report should be reached and communicated to all parties 
involved as soon as possible. 

 
1.11.7 Any form of retaliation against employees for making bona fide reports 
concerning workplace harassment or violence is prohibited; therefore, such retaliation 
must be reported. 

 
1.11.8 Employees who are victims of domestic or non-work related violence, or who 
believe they are potentially victims of such violence, and fear it may enter the workplace, 
are encouraged to promptly notify ________________________. 

 
1.11.9 Those who believe they are victims of harassment or violence, whether 
workplace or non-work related, may also contact WSA's Employee Assistance Plan (EAP) 
to obtain advice in dealing with the situation. 

 
1.11.10 Violations of this policy will lead to corrective action, up to and including 
termination and/or referral to the appropriate law enforcement agencies for arrest and 
prosecution.  WSA reserves the right to take any necessary legal action to protect its 
employees.  

 

1.12 Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 

 
Employees are expected to use good judgment, adhere to high ethical standards, and to avoid 
situations that create an actual or perceived conflict between their own personal interests and 
those of WSA. 

 
1.12.1 Therefore, WSA prohibits its employees from engaging in any activity, practice, 
or act which conflicts with, or appears to conflict with the interests of WSA.  Such activity 
is influenced by considerations of one or more of the following: gain to the employee, 
entity, or organization in which the employee, his/her parent, child, adopted child, or 
spouse has employment interest, substantial financial interest, or other interest that 
influences the employee’s ability to perform his or her job duties and responsibilities. 

 
1.12.2 The prohibitions included in this policy are not exhaustive and serve as examples. 

 
1.12.2.1 Employees are not to engage, directly or indirectly, any conduct 
which is disloyal, disruptive, competitive, or damaging to WSA. 

 

111



1.12.2.2 Employees and their immediate families are not to accept gifts, 
except those of nominal value ($25.00 or less), money, or any other item of value 
from any person or group doing, or seeking to do or doing, business with WSA. 

 
1.12.2.3 Employees are not to give, offer, or promise, directly or indirectly, 
anything of value, including services outside the ordinary course of business, to 
any customer, vendor, relative, potential customer, or any other person or entity. 

 
1.12.2.4 WSA’s operational strategies and business decisions are 
confidential.  Employees are not to disclose inside, confidential, or proprietary 
information to anyone, whether inside or outside the organization, who does not 
have a legitimate need to know. 

 
1.12.2.5 Employees are not to hold any positions with any entity doing 
business or seeking to do business with WSA. 

 
1.12.2.6 Employees must refrain from engaging in any conduct, which either 
creates or appears to create a conflict of interest with WSA. 

 
1.12.2.7 Misusing any confidential or proprietary information or violating 
policies on such information. 

 
1.12.3 Employees have an obligation to avoid conflicts of interest and to refer such 
questions and concerns about potential conflicts to their supervisor or HR. 

 
1.12.4 Violation of any of the foregoing policies could result in disciplinary action up to 
and including termination of employment.  WSA has sole discretion to determine where 
a conflict of interest exists.  Should you have any questions or doubts about the 
interpretation or applicability of any of these policies to yourself or others, contact HR. 

SECTION II 

EMPLOYMENT 

2.1  Classification and Categories of Employees 
 
Employees of WSA are classified as either "exempt" or "nonexempt/' according to the provisions 

of Applicable Law.  Classification is based on the nature of the job duties, responsibilities, and 

compensation in accordance with Applicable Law. 

 
2.1.1 Nonexempt (hourly) employees enjoy full coverage under Applicable Law, and 

receive pay for overtime work. They report hours, according to current practice, for bi-

weekly payment. 

 
2.1.2 Exempt employees are salaried and meet the other criteria for exempt status 

112



under Applicable Law.  They do not receive overtime pay. The emphasis is not on the exact 

number of hours they work, but on the results they produce, i.e. project completion or 

appropriate management of their departments  

 
2.1.3 Within these two classifications, WSA employees are grouped by employment 

status: 

 
2.1.3.1 Regular Full-time Employees: These employees have successfully 

completed an introductory period of employment and are regularly scheduled 

to work 40 hours per week. 

 
2.1.3.2 Regular Part-time Employees: These employees have successfully 

completed an introductory period and are regularly scheduled to work at least 

20 but less than 40 hours per week. 

 

2.1.3.3 Temporary Employees: Occasionally an employee will be hired for a short 

time to complete a project or fill a vacancy until a regular employee is hired 

or returns to work. Temporary employees seldom work for more than three 

months and are not eligible for regular employee benefits. 

 
2.1.4 Independent Contractors: From time to time, WSA may engage an independent 

third party to provide services for a particular project and/or for a limited period of time. 

These independent third parties are self-employed; are responsible for their own taxes 

and expenses; are not subject to an employer's direction and control; have the 

opportunity for profit and loss; and are not WSA employees for any purpose.  

Consequently, such independent contractors are not eligible to receive and do not receive 

any of WSA's employment benefits. 

2.2 Application for Employment and Background Investigation 
 

WSA requires that any person interested in being employed by this agency must first complete 
an application for employment and all supplemental sheets, as required.  Forms are provided 
from HR for many of the operating rules for employees in this Handbook, including requests, 
reimbursements, applications, and grievances.  These forms must be completed in full before any 
action can be taken by WSA. 

 
2.2.1 Applications are accepted only for current positions available. An employment 
application must be submitted for each vacancy. The application must be complete, and 
all the questions must be answered. Any skills, education, licenses, etc. required for the 
position must also be included with the application to ensure that the applicant meets 
minimum qualifications for the position. HR and the hiring managers will screen 

113



applications to insure that applicants meet the minimum qualifications for the open 
position. 

 
2.2.1.1 WSA has no obligation or practice of utilizing or referring to the 
applications in connection with vacancies that occur after the filling of the 
vacancy for which the application was submitted but does retain applications, 
on file, to meet statutory regulations. 

 
2.2.2 All WSA applicants must be legally authorized or eligible to work in the United 
States as provided by Applicable Law. 

 
2.2.3 All WSA employees are required to have a valid Social Security number. 

 
2.2.4 Qualification for employment -  In making its hiring decisions, WSA relies on the 
qualifications, work history, experience, achievements, attributes and other information 
described and provided (directly or indirectly) to WSA, its recruiters, interviewers, or 
others during the application and hiring process (e.g. resume, application form, 
interviews, correspondence, and other materials and information). Therefore, if at any 
time WSA discovers a misrepresentation, omission, misstatement, or other inaccuracy, 
intentional or unintentional, in any of the information provided, employees will be 
subject to immediate discharge if WSA, in its sole discretion, determines the 
misrepresentation, omission, misstatement, or inaccuracy was not trivial. 
 

2.2.4.1 Job Qualification Review – the agency will review the appropriateness of 
all job qualifications annually in conformance with requirements of Applicable Law 
to ensure that job qualifications do not exclude disabled individuals because of 
their handicaps, are related to the performance of the job, and are consistent with 
business necessity and safe performance. 
 

2.2.5 Background Investigation – To assure that WSA hires qualified employees to meet 
the various requirements for carrying out its mission and goals, it conducts verification of 
previous employment, background investigations, and drug screening through a third 
party, a federal credit reporting agency.  The following screening is sought, with disclosure 
to the applicant/employee: 

 
2.2.5.1 Credit history - for fiscal and procurement positions 

 
2.2.5.2 State and county criminal history with social security number trace - for all 

 
2.2.5.3 Education verification if a degree is required for the position 

 
2.2.5.4 Drug test for all (urine drug testing must be completed within 24 hours 
of receiving chain of custody forms for continued consideration for employment); 
applicant must present chain of custody form and picture ID at the lab. 

114



 
2.2.5.5 If WSA were to take adverse action as a result of the findings of the 
investigation completed by a third party, it will provide the applicant/employee 
with a copy of the applicant’s rights under Applicable Law.  This affords the 
applicant an opportunity to dispute information believed to be inaccurate with 
the third-party agency and for that reporting agency to re-investigate and remedy 
inaccuracies, if appropriate. Adverse action is defined as denial of employment 
or any other decision for employment purposes that adversely affects any current 
or prospective employee. 

2.3  Job Posting and Application Process 

HR is responsible for the development and posting of appropriate job descriptions.  An open 
position, whether it is a replacement position or a new one, will be first posted in-house for five 
(5) working days. 

2.3.1 Any WSA employee, who is not in an introductory period, performance probation, 
suspension, or pending disciplinary action, may apply for any open position for which 
he/she is interested and qualified.  After an in-house posting, WSA may elect to contact 
outside sources to identify and attract additional candidates for consideration. In 
particular situations, WSA may determine, at its sole discretion, that it is more 
appropriate to seek external candidates without posting inhouse or to seek outside 
candidates contemporaneously with its in-house posting. 

2.3.2 All applicants, both internal and external, must complete an application for 
employment  HR will review applications to ensure they meet minimum qualifications. 
Only applicants meeting minimum requirements of the position will be considered. 

2.3.3.1 Only employees who resigned with at least two weeks' notice, four weeks' 

notice for all levels of management,  or were released by WSA under favorable 

conditions shall be eligible to apply for rehire. 

2.3.3.2 After the screening process, the hiring managers and HR will initiate the 

interview process.  Candidates, either internal or external, are required to be 

interviewed before being offered a position. 

2.3.3.3 Vacancies will be filled based on WSA's assessment of which candidate 

best meets the needs of the organization for the position, utilizing such factors as: 

merit, qualifications, potential for career growth, adaptability, ability to learn or 

perform the essential functions of the job, and/or other factors it deems 

appropriate. 

2.3.3.4 Any applicant recommended to fill a vacancy must have received the 

115



recommendation based on his/her qualifications and ability. 

2.3.4 Interim appointments.  WSA may determine it is in the best interests of WSA to 

appoint an Interim to immediately fill that vacated position. 

2.3.4.1 The word Interim will be added to the beginning title of the position. 

2.3.4.2 There is no guarantee that the Interim will automatically assume the 

position on a full time permanent basis. 

2.3.4.3 At the successful completion of the Initial 90 days as an Interim, the 

Interim's performance will be reviewed by the CEO.  If the Interim has performed 

the duties of the position in an above average manner, the Interim Is eligible to be 

considered to carry on In the position without the Interim designator. 

2.4 Expectations for Employee Behavior 

WSA maintains certain rules and regulations regarding employee behavior that are necessary 
for the efficient operation of the agency and for the benefit and safety of all employees. 
Conduct that uses WSA's resources inappropriately, impedes the providing of our services, 
interferes with operations, discredits WSA, or is offensive to customers or fellow employees 
will not be tolerated. 

2.4.1 Employees are expected to conduct themselves in a professional manner in 
order to promote the best interests of Workforce Solutions Alamo.  Such conduct 
includes but is not limited to: 

 
2.4.1.1 Reporting to work punctually as scheduled and being at the proper work 
location, ready for work, at the beginning of your scheduled work day; 

 
2.4.1.2 Giving  proper advance notice whenever unable to work or report  on time; 

 
2.4.1.3 Complying with all WSA safety and security regulations; 

 
2.4.1.4 Refraining from spreading vicious rumors about employees, supervisors, 
customers or WSA; 

 
2.4.1.5 Wearing clothing appropriate for the work being performed; 

 
2.4.1.6 Maintaining your workplace and work area in a clean and orderly manner 
to foster workplace safety; 

 
2.4.1.7 Treating all customers, visitors, and fellow employees in a professional 

116



manner; 

 
2.4.1.8 Refraining from behavior or conduct deemed offensive or undesirable, or 
which is not in the best interest of WSA, such as: 

 
2.4.1.8.1 Name calling; demeaning jokes; taking credit for another’s 
work or ideas; refusing to communicate or speak with another co-worker; 
offensive verbal, visual, or physical contact; invading another’s 
privacy/personal space; knowingly blaming others for mistakes they did 
not make; gossiping and bullying. 

 
2.4.1.9 Performing assigned tasks efficiently and in accordance with quality 
standards set by WSA 

 
2.4.1.10 Reporting to management suspicious, unethical, or illegal 
conduct of fellow employees, customers, or visitors. 

 
2.4.2 This Handbook outlines prohibited conduct, that will subject the employee to 
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 

 
2.5 Nepotism (Employment of Relatives) 
 

WSA ensures that all employees are hired, promoted, or transferred on the basis of individual 
merit.  Realizing that supervisory positions have a certain amount of influence that might lead to 
accusations of favoritism or discrimination, the employment of relatives is prohibited according 
to the guidelines below: 

 
2.5.1 WSA may not employ anyone who is related to a Board member or to the CEO 
by marriage or within a third degree relationship. 

 
2.5.2 WSA discourages the employment of relatives of any WSA employee when the 
employment might reasonably present a conflict due to the relationship. 

 
 

2.5.3 If a situation that runs contrary to this policy is created due to a promotion, 
transfer, or marriage, the affected individuals will have a period of three (3) months to 
settle the issue voluntarily.  In such situations, one of the affected employees should 
request a transfer or resign.  There is no guarantee, however, that a transfer will be an 
option in every case.  If the individuals are unable to resolve the issue on their own, the 
department manager will decide, (with the assistance from HR and CEO), which employee 
is to be transferred or terminated to achieve compliance with the policy. 

 

2.6 Promotions 
 

117



WSA provides fair and equal promotion opportunities to all employees. 

 
2.6.1 Qualified internal candidates must complete application and participate in the 
interview process. 

 
2.6.2 A promotion is a move to a job with greater responsibilities and offers qualified 
employees an opportunity to advance in the organization. 

 
2.6.3 Employees promoted to a higher position may receive a pay adjustment. 

 

2.7 Transfers 
 

WSA offers employees the opportunity to transfer laterally to a job within the person's 
current work area or to another department within WSA.  A lateral transfer may be the change 
of an employee’s job title or duties that does not immediately affect the person's salary grade. 

 
2.7.1 Any employee requesting a transfer between divisions must get the approval of 
the gaining and losing department directors/managers. 
 
2.7.2 WSA has the authority to transfer employees to positions, within the 
organization, as he/she deems necessary for the efficient utilization of personnel and to 
meet organizational requirements. 
 

2.7.3 A salary increase is not required nor normally given in the case of a transfer.  

2.8 Demotions 
 

WSA has guidelines for managing employee demotions. 

 
2.8.1 A demotion is the movement of an employee from a position of higher pay grade 
to a lower one. This reduction, which will be accompanied by a pay reduction, may be 
the result of the following: 

 
2.8.1.1 The employee's inability to fulfill the functions of his/her job at any time 
or during the probationary period; 
 
2.8.1.2 The employee's request for a demotion; 

 
2.8.1.3 Disciplinary action; 

 
2.8.1.4 Reduction in force or the reorganization of functions, jobs, or activities; 

 
2.8.1.5 The best interests of the agency. 

 
2.8.2 WSA will determine, in its sole and exclusive discretion, whether the 
circumstances warrant a demotion. 

118



 
2.8.3 __________________ will determine the employee's new salary. 

 
2.8.4 An employee who is demoted may return to his/her former position and salary, 
if such an opening is available 
 

2.9 Immigration Law Compliance 
 

WSA is committed to employing only individuals who are legally authorized to work in the 
United States, and does not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of citizenship status or national 
origin. 

 
2.9.1 In compliance with the Applicable Law, each new employee, as a condition of 
employment, must complete the Employment Eligibility Verification Form I-9 within three 
(3) days of hire. Employees who are rehired must also complete the form if they have 
not completed an I-9 with WSA within the past three years, or if their previous I-9 is no 
longer retained or valid. 

 
2.9.2 The agency utilizes the services of E verify to verify the employee’s right to work 
in the United States. WSA completes the process within three(3) days of date of hire. 
 
2.9.3 Employees with questions or who seek more information on immigration law are 
encouraged to contact the HR.  Employees may raise questions or complaints about 
immigration law compliance without fear of reprisal. 

 

2.10 Outside Employment 
 

WSA does not prohibit employees from having a second job, but provides guidelines for the 
outside employment of its employees. Outside employment is defined as "work for wages, 
income, salary, commission, percentage, or compensation of any type, which is prohibited from 
being performed during normal hours at WSA. This includes, but is not limited to: self-
employment, contractual employment, or employment by an agency, business, enterprise or 
others." 

 
2.10.1 Employees will not allow, for any reason, their outside employment to impair the 
efficiency and effectiveness of duties assigned by WSA. 

 
2.10.2 Employees are prohibited from accepting or engaging in outside business, 
employment, or work that results in even the appearance of impropriety or a conflict 
of interest. 
 
2.10.3 WSA prohibits the use of its premises and/or property to be used in connection 
with any outside employment. 
 

119



2.10.4 Working a second job is prohibited while on any kind of leave of absence, except 
as required by a military commitment, and could result in revocation of the leave of 
absence and/or termination of employment. 

 
 

 

2.11 Performance Evaluation/ Work Performance Improvement 
 
WSA expects its employees to perform their assigned duties to the best of their abilities, 
according to the directions of their supervisors, agency policies and procedures and the 
standards, outlined in the respective job descriptions. Supervisors and managers are tasked 
with discussing job performance expectations at time of employment and throughout the 
employee’s tenure.  Additionally, WSA believes that it is important that employees be 
recognized for good performance; receive appropriate suggestions for improvement when 
necessary; and be compensated for their contributions to WSA. 

 
2.11.1 A performance evaluation will be presented according to the following 
guidelines: 

 

2.11.1.1 Once a year prior to  July 1st; 

 
2.11.1.2 Prior to a promotion; 

 
2.11.1.3 At the successful completion of the initial 90 days of employment 
or after 90 days in a new position; and 
 
2.11.1.4 New employees’ first pay increase, based on performance, will be 
prorated and will be based on number of days from date of hire to the July 1st 

evaluation date. Employees who have been on extended leaves of absence may 
receive prorated pay increases to reflect the absence. 
 

2.11.2 The performance review can be useful in helping an employee to understand the 
manager's expectations and if they are met. It can also assist in planning performance 
goals for the next review period and in identifying appropriate training, when needed. 
 
2.11.3 The frequency and focus of performance appraisal discussions may vary, 
depending on the specific job. However, discussions about performance need not be 
limited to formal performance appraisal discussions initiated by the manager. Managers 
welcome questions about an individual’s performance or manager's expectations at any 
time. 
 
2.11.4 Being placed on a Work Performance Improvement Plan may result in a change in 
the effective date of a pay increase, as a result of a performance evaluation.  HR, with 
the approval of the Executive Director, will be responsible for adjusting the effective date 

120



of the pay increase. 
 

2.11.5 Work Performance Improvement - Directors are responsible for developing 
performance improvement plans with their employees, when warranted, and for 
completing the appropriate performance-monitoring forms. 

 
2.11.5.1 Employees who are placed on formal Work Performance 
Improvement Plans (WPIP) are considered to be on work performance probation. 
Progress toward satisfactory performance of job duties is required for continued 
employment.  If, at any time during the period of the plan, the Director 
determines that the employee is not making satisfactory progress, employment 
may be terminated. 

 
2.11.5.2 The Director completes Work Performance Improvement Plan, 
outlining the action plan for a period of time, not to exceed 60 days, during which 
the employee will demonstrate consistent, satisfactory performance. 

 
2.11.5.2.1 Directors are expected to meet at least bi-weekly with 
the employee to discuss the employee’s progress and to monitor 
resources provided. 

 
2.11.5.3 If the employee is on a WPIP at the time the annual evaluation is 
due or if the employee is placed on a plan as a result of the annual evaluation, 
the employee will not receive a pay increase until he/she has successfully 
completed the WPIP. The pay increase, when effective, will not be retroactive. 

 
2.11.6   All evaluations will be placed in the employee's personnel file. Employees are 
encouraged to ask for a copy of evaluations and performance improvement plans to 
maintain their own records of expectations. 

 
2.12 Introductory Period of Employment 
 
WSA provides for an introductory period for all new employees and employees who are new in 
a position to give new employees or those new to the position the opportunity to demonstrate 
their ability to achieve a satisfactory level of performance and to determine whether the new 
position meets the employee’s expectations. 

 
2.12.1 New employees are considered to be in an introductory period during the first 90 
days of employment.  The purpose of this period is to give WSA and the employee time 
to determine the suitability of the match and whether the employment relationship 
should continue.  During this period the employee's performance, behavior, and 
attendance will be closely monitored. Either the employee or WSA may end the 
employment relationship at-will any time during or after the introductory period, with or 
without cause or advanced notice. The employee's supervisor will fully document the 

121



decision to terminate or demote. 
 

2.12.2 Managers are expected to clarify performance expectations and, when 
appropriate, to develop performance improvement plans to aid the employee in meeting 
goals and expectations.. 

 
2.12.3 Employees are also considered to be in an introductory period for the 90 days 
following any change or advancement to another position with WSA. This includes 
transfers, promotions, and demotions. If a recently promoted employee is unable to 
satisfactorily meet the new responsibilities, the manager will consult with HR. 

 
2.12.4 At any time during the initial 90 day introductory period, employment may be 
terminated, without prior warning or consultation.  Without any limitation to the right 
to terminate or demote at will, the employee’s manager will fully document the decision 
to terminate or demote.  Employees terminated during the probationary period, or as a 
result of the formal evaluation made at the end of the probationary period, do not have 
access to the grievance procedures relative to their termination 

 
2.12.5 Employees who are placed on formal performance improvement plans are 
considered “on performance probation” for the length of the plan. 

 

 

SECTION III 

COMPENSATION 

3.1    Wage and Salary Administration 
 
The salary administration program at WSA has been created to achieve consistent pay practices, 
and offer competitive salaries within our labor market.  Because recruiting  and  retaining 
talented employees is critical to our success, WSA is committed to paying employees equitable 
wages that reflect WSA's assessment of the requirements and responsibilities of the positions 
and are comparable to the pay received by employees in similar organizations. 

 
3.1.1 Compensation for every position is determined by several factors, including the 
essential duties and functions of the job, salary survey data from third party providers, 
budgetary considerations, agency goals and priorities, and other factors deemed 
appropriate by WSA. Periodic review and revision of the salary administration program 
will be performed. Merit-based pay adjustments may be awarded in conjunction with 
employee performance, documented during the performance evaluation process. 

 
3.1.1.1 Employees should bring their pay-related questions or concerns to the 
attention of their immediate supervisors, who are responsible for the fair 
administration of departmental pay practices.  HR is available to answer specific 
questions about the salary administration program. 

122



 
3.1.2 New Positions 

 
3.1.2.1 Hiring salaries will be based on the qualifications of the candidate in 
relation to the job requirements and to the experience and qualifications of 
current employees in the same classification and grade. 

 
3.1.2.2 Several exceptions may be considered regarding hiring salaries: 

 
3.1.2.2.1 Unusual market conditions may require premium-hiring 
rates up to the salary range midpoint. 

 
3.1.2.2.2 Exceptions to the standard may be requested from 
__________________. 

 
3.1.2.2.3 Availability of budgetary resources. 

 
3.1.2.2.4 Priorities, goals, or business challenges. 
 

3.1.3 Annual Salary Reviews 
 

3.1.3.1 The objective of salary increases is to move an employee's pay through 
the assigned salary range over several years, at rates reflecting the employee's 
job performance. 

 
3.1.3.2 The salary increase is dependent upon the individual's overall 
performance, the position of the individual's salary within the assigned salary 
range, and the percentage increases allocated for the given fiscal year. 
 
3.1.3.3 If an employee has reached the maximum of the salary range for the 
position, s/he will not be eligible for an annual increase in salary.  Instead, based 
on the performance review, s/he will receive a one-time bonus, based on the 
increase rate determined for that fiscal year. 

 
3.1.4 Promotions 

 
3.1.3.1 A promotion is the assignment of an employee to a position classified in a 
salary grade higher than is currently assigned. 

 
3.1.4.2 The new salary after promotion will at least meet the minimum of the 
new grade level and not exceed a 10% increase. 

 
3.1.5 Transfers 

 

123



3.1.5.1 A transfer is the voluntary or involuntary assignment of an employee to 
another position classified in the same salary grade level as the position to which 
the employee is currently assigned. 

 
3.1.5.2 A salary increase is not required or normally given in the case of a transfer.  

 
3.1.6 Demotions 

 
3.1.6.1 A demotion is the movement of an employee from a higher pay grade to 
a lower one. 

 
3.1.6.2 A demotion is accompanied by a pay adjustment to the previous rate of 
pay, if the individual is returning to the prior position. If moving to another 
position, in a lower pay grade, the reduction in pay will depend on factors such 
as transferrable experience, skills, and abilities.  The CEO will make the 
determination in consultation with the Director and HR. 

 
3.17 Changes from Nonexempt to Exempt Status 

 
3.1.7.1 Reassignment from a non-exempt to an exempt position, or vice versa, is 
considered on a case-by-case basis by HR. 

 
 

3.2 Overtime Work and Compensatory Leave 

WSA employees are covered by the minimum wage and overtime provisions of the Applicable 

Law.  An employee is either exempt or non-exempt from overtime provisions depending on 

his/her job responsibilities.  If an employee changes job positions, he/she may be reclassified.  

Overtime must be approved, in writing, in advance by an employee’s supervisor.  It must then be 
reported on the employee’s time sheet with an explanation for the time worked.  If it is not 
possible to obtain permission in writing, verbal permission may be obtained and then reported 
on the time sheet. 

3.5. 1. Regular and temporary full-time non-exempt employees are to be paid time and 
a half for hours worked over 40 during a standard work week.  Work performed during 
regular scheduled holidays, will count toward over time.  PTO taken will not be counted 
as hours worked for the calculation of hours that are to be paid at time and a half.  

3.5.2 Regular full-time:  Regular full-time exempt employees are expected to work the 
hours necessary to complete the task.  Where an unusual number of hours are required 
by management to complete special projects, employees must obtain prior written 
approval from their supervisors.  

124



3.5.3 Regular full-time exempt employees may accrue compensatory time for hours 
worked over 40 during a standard work week.  Such activity must be approved in 
advanced by all levels of supervision.  Failure to receive advance approval may result in 
compensatory time being denied.  Work performed during a regularly scheduled holiday 
may count toward compensatory time.  

Employees may carry forward a maximum of 160 hours of compensatory time.  Any hours 
in excess of 160 at 12/31 each year will be forfeited.  

Temporary full-time:  Temporary full-time exempt employees are to be paid their regular 
hourly rate for each hour worked over 40 during a standard work week.  

3.5.4 Distribution upon termination:  Upon voluntary termination and in the event of 
termination due to employee’s death, compensatory hours will be distributed according 
to the following vesting schedule:  

Service  Vested Amount 

0 to 2.5 years (900 days)  0% Vested 

2.51 to 3.5 years  40% Vested 

3.51 to 4.5 years     80% Vested 

4.51 years+     100% Vested 

 

Termination for cause may result in the forfeiture of compensatory hours.  

3.3 Travel Time 
 

WSA may require employees to travel within the scope of their job duties. Under these 
circumstances, compensation for travel as worked time will be based on the nature and time 
of the travel required and whether the employee is in an exempt or nonexempt position. Exempt 
employees will not receive travel time compensation. 
 

3.3.1 An employee is not entitled to paid travel time when commuting to and from 
home to WSA work site.  This is also true for travel time involved when an employee 
travels to different local work sites.  Similarly, travel time back to the employee's home, 
from any local WSA facility or worksite is not compensated. 

 
3.3.2 An exception exists when a non-exempt employee commutes to/from a work 
site outside Bexar County.  In that case, travel time will be considered as time worked for 
overtime calculation. 
 
3.3.3 If the employee is required to travel from the primary work site to another, as 
part of his/her job duties, that time will be regarded as time worked for overtime 
calculation. If an employee returns from out of town travel during the normal workday 
hours, s/he is expected to return to work or request the appropriate time-off. 

125



 
3.3.4 If the non-exempt/hourly employee drives to a work commitment out of the 
area on a non-working day, (e.g. on a Saturday or Sunday), during hours that would be 
part of the workweek schedule (8 a.m.-5 p.m.), the driving time will be counted as 
hours worked.  If an employee opts to travel outside those normal working hours and/or 
travels as a passenger in a car on a public carrier (airplane), this time not considered 
time worked. 

 

3.4 Payroll Schedule and Time Records 
 

Payroll periods are on a bi-weekly schedule.  Paychecks will be distributed every other Friday at 
the office unless authorized for direct deposit. Paychecks will not be given to a person other 
than to the employee, unless written authorization by the employee is given to WSA. Requests 
must be submitted to the Fiscal department at least 24 hours prior to payday. 

 
3.4.1 In the event that a regularly scheduled payday falls on a holiday, employees will 
receive paychecks on the last day of work before the regularly scheduled payday. 
 
3.4.2 Recording of time is required for all employees on Time records must be true 
and complete and approved by the manager no later than 10:00 a.m. on the Monday 
prior to a payday.  Employees will post their hours worked to the codes assigned to the 
various agency programs. 

 
3.4.3 Accurate recording of time worked is the responsibility of every employee. Federal 
and state laws require that WSA maintain an accurate record of time worked to 
calculate employee pay and benefits.  For non-exempt/hourly employees, time worked 
is all the time actually spent on the job, performing assigned duties. 

 
3.4.4 Altering, falsifying, tampering with time records, or recording time on another 
employee's time record will result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination 
of employment. 

3.5 Pay Deductions 
 

Various statutes require that WSA makes certain deductions from employees’ paychecks. WSA 
also must deduct Social Security taxes on each employee's earnings up to a specified limit, called 
the Social Security "wage base." 
 

3.5.1 Except for federal withholding taxes (FIT), Social Security and Medicare (FICA), and 
court-mandated garnishments, no other deductions will be made without written 
consent of the employee. 

 
3.5.2 In accordance with the Texas Payday Law, WSA requires that employees give the 
agency the right to deduct monies from their paychecks, in certain instances, on Form 
3.5 #1 Wage Deduction Authorization Agreement, found in the HR folder of the shared 

126



drive in the Forms sub-folder: 

 
3.5.2.1 The employee’s share of group health plans or the full amount 
(employer and employee contribution), if the employee is on an unpaid leave of 
absence; 

 
3.5.2.2 Employee salary deferral that the employee elects to have invested in 
the 401(k) plan; 

 
3.5.2.3 Prorated tuition assistance when the employee leaves employment, if 
s/he has not completed a full year of employment since receiving the last 
reimbursement; 

 
3.5.2.4 Any overpayment of wages; 

 
3.5.2.5 401(K) loan repayments; and 

 
3.5.2.6 The cost of repairing or replacing any WSA supplies, materials, equipment, 
money, or other property that s/he might damage (other than normal wear and 
tear), lose, fail to return, or take without appropriate authorization from WSA 
during employment. 
 

3.6 Final Wage Payments 
 

An employee who leaves employment with WSA will be paid in full for all wages earned as of 
the date of separation. 

 
3.6.1 Final payment will include accrued but unused PTO, if the employee has been 
employed for three (3) months or more and has left in good standing. 

 
3.6.2 If any amount is owed for insurance, the payment will be deducted from the final 
paycheck. 

 
3.6.3 Additional deductions will be made for items or amounts that the employee has 
previously authorized in writing. 
 
3.6.4 When an employee is discharged, she/he will be paid his/her final paycheck not 
later than the sixth day after the date of the discharge, as required by the Applicable Law.  
Discharge for cause will result in forfeiture of accrued, unused PTO. 

 
3.6.5 Employees who voluntarily leave employment will be paid not later than the next 
regularly scheduled payday. 

 

127



SECTION IV 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 

Introduction to Benefits. WSA is engaged in an on-going process of reviewing and implementing 
new ideas and benefit programs.  This process involves implementing changes, modifications or 
improvements to match budgetary resources and available funds, to meet business needs, to 
reduce operating expenses, or to better attract and retain the best possible personnel.  Other 
factors may also lead to significant changes in the compensation or fringe benefits under which 
employees were hired or have continued to work.  Accordingly, all of WSA’s insurance programs, 
compensation plans, levels of insurance coverage and related costs, employee benefit programs, 
insurance carriers, fringe benefits, and their underlying policies and terms are subject to change, 
modification, elimination, or substitution at any time, at the discretion of WSA.  In the sections 
that follow, we have described the fringe benefits that are currently available to regular 
employees. 
 

4.1 Medical and Health Insurance 

 
4.1.1 WSA currently provides its full-time employees and those, who regularly work at 
least 30 or more hours per week, with health insurance coverage. 

4.1.1.1 The plan offers the following options: a preferred provider organization 
(PPO), a health savings account (HSA), or health maintenance organization (HMO). 
Annual enrollment for the plan is held in April in anticipation of the new plan year, 
May 1. 

4.1.1.2 Medical, dental, and vision insurance are effective on the first day of the 
month following hire on a full-time basis with WSA or when employment status 
changes to a regular schedule of at least 30 hours per week. Individual questions 
on enrollment situations should be addressed with HR. 

4.1.1.3 Dental Insurance: offers special pricing on dental work for employees and 
their dependents through designated dentists. 

4.1.1.4 Vision Insurance: offers special pricing on eye care, glasses, and contact 
lenses. 

4.1.2 Supplemental plans, such as: cancer, specified, illness, additional life, and accident 
insurance are voluntary and are paid in full by the employee by payroll deduction. 
 

4.1.3 WSA currently subsidizes a portion of employee and dependent coverage for 
medical, dental, and vision coverage.  Pre-tax deductions may be available and differ 
with the plans.  Deductions are taken 24 times each year (two times each month.) 
Any questions on these health plans should be directed to the HR department. 

 

128



4.2 Life and Disability Insurance 
 

4.2.1 Group Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance 
 
WSA provides term life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance for all 
regular full-time employees and those who regularly work at least 30 hours per week, in 
the amount of two times their annual compensation, for a maximum insurance of 
$300,000.  The cost of this insurance is paid entirely by WSA.  This insurance is effective 
on the first of the month following full time active employment or change of status to 
reflect that the employee is working at least 30 hours each week.  The opportunity exists 
to purchase additional life and AD&D insurance through payroll deduction. 

 
4.2.2 Short-term Disability 
 
WSA also provides, at no cost to the employee, a short-term disability plan (STD), 
offering financial protection by paying a portion of your income if you are disabled. 
Under the current plan, the amount you receive is based on the amount you earned 
before the disability began.  There is a 14 day elimination period for sickness or injury 
within this plan.  Employees will not receive STD benefits during the first 14 calendar 
days of disability and are encouraged to maintain PTO to cover this non-paid period. 

 
4.2.2.1 Eligibility begins at the first of the month following 90 days of employment 
for all regular full time employees and for those who regularly work at least 30 
hours per week. 

 
4.2.2.2 While you are on short term disability, you will receive 60% of your weekly 
earnings, to a maximum of $750.00 per week.  The maximum period of payment 
is 11 weeks.  Your payment may be reduced by deductible sources of income. 

 
4.2.3 Long-term Disability 
 
WSA provides, at no cost to the employee, a long-term disability plan (LTD).  It pays 60% 
of pre-disability earnings to a maximum benefit of $6,000 per month.  The amount you 
receive under the plan is based on the amount you earned before your disability began.  
There is a 90 day or end of maximum STD benefit elimination period.  Employees will 
not receive LTD benefits until that time period has expired.  The maximum period of 
payment is based on your age at the time of disability.  Your payment may be reduced by 
deductible sources of income and disability earnings. 

 
4.2.3.1 Enrollment in LTD begins at the first of the month following 90 days of 
employment for all regular full time employees and those who regularly work at 
least 30 hours a week. 

 

4.2.4 Supplemental Disability Coverage 

129



 
Supplemental disability coverage is available for purchase through various carriers by 
payroll deduction, on an after tax basis.  Evidence of insurability may be required before 
the supplemental products may be purchased. 

 
4.3 Retirement – Defined Contribution Plan 

 
To assist its employees in planning for retirement, WSA offers a tax favored retirement savings 
plan, which allows employees to contribute a portion of their salary before federal taxes are 
deducted. 

 
4.3.1 This defined contribution 401(k) plan is available to all regular part-time and 
fulltime employees.  The agency may match a portion of the employee’s contribution 
provided funding is available. 

 
4.3.1.1 The match amount is determined in the agency’s budget, annually.  HR 
can answer questions about the match. 

 
4.3.2 Each year the federal government determines the maximum amount of taxable 
income you may defer through payroll deduction.  Employees may begin deferment at 
the same time they become eligible for health benefits or the first of the month following 
employment.  After you enroll, your contributions to this program are automatically 
deducted from your paycheck each pay period and credited to whatever account(s) you 
chose.  Since that money is deferred, that is, not "paid" to you, it is not considered 
income and you do not pay current federal (or state if applicable) income tax on it. 

 
4.3.3 The plan also allows for an after tax Roth 401(k).  For more information, ask HR. 

 
4.3.4 The plan provides participants the opportunity to apply for loans against their 
accounts, provided certain requirements are met.  HR can assist you in applying for a 
401(k) loan.  Employees must elect to repay their loans by payroll deduction.   

 
4.3.5 The plan also allows participants the opportunity to change the amount of pre-
tax deferral made to their 401(k) plans quarterly.  Changes may be elected prior to the 
beginning of each quarter: January 1, April 1, July 1, and October 1. 

 
4.3.6 Enrollment forms and additional information may be obtained from HR. 

 

4.4 Training and Development 
 

WSA supports the continuing professional development of its employees and encourages them 
to request to attend job-related workshops, seminars, and conferences. Such requests are 
subject to the approval of WSA, based on such factors as workload requirements, schedules, and 
budgetary resources. 

130



 
4.4.1 Process: 

 
4.4.1.1 Seek approval from your immediate supervisor. 

 
4.4.1.2 If the program/seminar is to be held outside the Alamo region, provide 
_______________ with supporting information such as the training/conference 
agenda and meeting logistics and any special travel needs. 

 
4.4.1.3 The ______________ prepares the Travel Authorization form (AWD 
FORMTA .10) for the CEO’s approval.  When, approved, the Executive Secretary 
arranges for lodging and transportation, payment of fees, and notifies the 
attendee of the per diem rates for the area. 

 
 

4.4.2 Employee Responsibility 

 
4.4.2.1 Employees are expected to share information relevant to other agency and 
contractor staff upon their return. 

 

4.5 Travel Expenses 

 

4.51 Employees of WSA may be reimbursed for certain allowable travel expenses, 
related to official WSA business, when the expenses have been approved by WSA, in 
advance, and proper documentation has been submitted to verify the expense.  
Reimbursement rates are set by the Texas Legislature and are consistent with the 
requirements of the General Services Administration.  This document incorporates all 
changes made by either the TWC or the Texas Legislature.  The Fiscal Department 
maintains the most current documents as published on and reimbursed accordingly: 

 

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fm/travel/travelrates.php  

 

4.5.2 Travel outside of the WSA Area requires prior written approval. Employees 
traveling out-of-state, within the continental United States, receive a locality-based 
allowance for meals and lodging (single rate).  Employees should consult with their 
managers and travel coordinator (Executive Secretary) regarding travel requests and 
forms. 

 
4.5.3 Reimbursement  -  Employees will be reimbursed for authorized travel and related 
expenses incurred while performing official WSA business. 

 
4.5.3.1 All WSA staff must utilize the State Travel Management Program (STMP) 
when traveling on WSA official business.  The ____________________ will be the 

131

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fm/travel/travelrates.php


point of contact when utilizing the STMP. 
 

4.5.3.2 The STMP assists WSA by utilizing vendor contracts to provide discounted 
travel services such as travel reservations, ticketing, and lodging and rental car 
reservations. 

 
4.5.3.3 When using the STMP, each WSA employee must: 

 
4.5.3.3.1 Obtain prior managerial approval when preparing to travel 
outside the Alamo region; 

 
4.5.3.3.2 After approval, the travel coordinator (Executive Secretary) 
will compete the TSR (Travel Authorization, AWD FORMTA.10) and will 
then schedule travel services through a designated contract travel agency 
and confirm hotel accommodations; 

 
4.5.3.3.3 WSA staff, when traveling to Washington D.C., must closely 
coordinate with the WSA travel coordinator, who informs the Office of 
State Federal Regulations (OSFR) regarding the time of the trip, the trips 
purpose and the name of a contact person for additional information. 

 
4.5.4 Annually, the reimbursement rate for mileage is determined and posted by the 
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts.  The Fiscal Department will announce changes as 
they are made. 

 
4.5.5 When using a personal vehicle for travel, under no circumstances shall an 
employee be reimbursed for normal travel between home and work or for personal travel 
(e.g. personal errands, medical appointments, etc.). 

 
4.5.6 The number of reimbursable miles may not exceed the number of miles of the 
most cost-effective, reasonably safe route between two duty points.  In determining the 
most cost-effective, reasonably safe route, WSA may consider the route that provides the 
shortest distance, the quickest drive time, or the safest road conditions. 

 
4.5.7 The number of miles traveled by an employee on agency business may be 
determined by point-to-point itemization, documented by the employee’s vehicle 
odometer reading or by a readily available online mapping service. 

 

4.5.7.1 An increase in the number of miles due to the employee’s receipt of 

inadequate directions or being “lost” is not reimbursable. 

 

4.5.8 Overnight travel -  Employees may claim actual expenses for meals up to a 
maximum daily allowance as noted in the GSA table for eligible travel events (e.g. 

132



training, conferences, meetings, etc.) outside the WSA area, without taxable 
consequences.  There is no maximum per meal allowance (i.e. breakfast, lunch, dinner).  
For the first and last calendar days of travel, daily allowances are calculated at 75% of 
a full day’s allowance.  Employees should request the specific daily allowances from the 
Fiscal Department prior to traveling outside the WSA area. 

 
4.5.9 Travel without an overnight stay – Employees may claim actual meals if they are 
away/outside the WSA area at least six hours of the day; the meal reimbursement cannot 
exceed $36.00 for the day and is taxable as wages, because travel must be away from 
home overnight to be excludable. 

 
4.5.10 Employees may claim actual travel related expenses, such as parking or cab fare 
associated with eligible travel events.  Such expenses must be documented (i.e. receipts 
required).  If a receipt cannot be obtained (e.g. unattended parking), the employee must 
submit a signed statement attesting to the expenditure. 

 
4.5.11 Lodging, transportation, and registration costs for eligible travel events shall be 
arranged by WSA; check with your manager for details.  Cancellations for lodging, 
transportation, registration, etc. are the responsibility of the employee.  Failure to make 
appropriate cancellations may result in costs being billed to the employee. 

 
4.5.12 When travel is completed, employees are to submit travel reports using 
authorized forms within five (5) working days upon the completion of travel.  Receipts, 
as necessary, for individual expenses must accompany reports. 

 
4.5.13 Employees should consult with their managers for guidance and assistance with 
procedures related to travel authorization, arrangements, advances, expense reports, 
reimbursement for specific expenses, or any other business travel issues. 

 

4.6  Paid Time Off (PTO)  
 
WSA provides regular full-time and regular part-time employees Paid Time Off (PTO) that is 
responsive to the needs of the employees and the staffing requirements of WSA. PTO, which is 
time away from work with pay, may be used for vacation, appointments, personal time, 
illness/injury or to care for dependents. WSA does not offer separate vacation or additional sick 
leave 

 
4.6.1 Time off, under this policy, does not account for scheduled WSA holidays, paid 
administrative leave, military leave, time off for jury duty or bereavement leave. 

 
4.6.2  Eligible employees will accrue PTO benefit hours from the date of hire and be 
eligible to use PTO benefit hours after the successful completion of the 90-day 
introductory period.  For personal illness only, or to care for a dependent family member, 
(one who lives in the employee's home and is a dependent for income tax purposes), 

133



employees may be permitted to use PTO time as it accrues during the first 90 days of 
employment.  For each occurrence of absence, documentation from a licensed medical 
provider is required when using PTO to care for a family member. PTO must be scheduled 
in advance and approved by your supervisor, except in cases of illness or emergency.  
Questions about PTO earned and used should be referred to your supervisor or to HR. 

 
4.6.3 Definitions: 

 
 

4.6.3.1 PTO Benefit Hours -  Benefit hours accrued by regular full and part-time 

employees to provide salary continuation during authorized absences on 

scheduled work days.  PTO accrual rates are determined by employee status, 

paid/worked hours and length of service. 

 
4.6.3.2 Planned Absence-An absence from work that is requested and authorized 

at least 24 hours in advance. 

 
4.6.3.3 Unplanned Absence -An absence from work that was not requested at 

least 24 hours in advance but is authorized due to a bona fide illness, injury or 

other emergency that prevents the employee from working.  In case of unplanned 

absences employees are required to call their immediate supervisors at the 

earliest opportunity and no later than one (1) hour after the employee's normal 

reporting time.  If supervisor is not available or unreachable, contact HR or the 

Deputy CEO. 

 

4.6.3.4 Unexcused Absence - An absence from work that is not authorized. 

Unexcused absences may be incurred if the employee: fails to report to work for 

a scheduled shift, fails to report to work when time off has been requested but 

not authorized or incurs an unplanned absence that is not a bona fide emergency. 

PTO hours will not be granted for unexcused absences. 

 
4.6.3.5 Dependent family member - for employees who are in the first 180 days 

of employment and desire to use accrued PTO hours for care of family members, 

those family members are confined to dependents who live in the employee’s 

home and are dependents for income tax purposes. 

 
4.6.4 Eligibility and Accrual Rates 

 
4.6.4.1 All regular fulltime employees (those authorized to work 40 hours per 

week) will earn PTO hours each pay period based on years of service and the 

number of paid hours for that pay-period, excluding overtime. 

134



 
Months of Service Days Accrued 

Per Employment Year 
Biweekly 

Accrual Rate 

0 – 24/(before 2nd anniv) 18 days 5.54 hours 
25 – 48/(before 4th anniv) 24 days 7.39 hours 
49 –108/(between 4th & 9th anniv) 28 days 8.62 hours 
109+(after 9th anniv) 31 days 9.54 hours 

Accrual example: 24 days x 8 hours = 192 divided by 26 pay periods = 7.39 hours 

 
4.6.4.2 The PTO accrual year begins from October 1 to September 30.  All regular 
part-time employees (those authorized to work 20 to 39 hours per week) will earn 
PTO hours on a pro-rated basis, based on the number of hours worked, excluding 
overtime. 

 
4.6.4.3 Employees will earn PTO for scheduled hours when absent from work in 
connection with PTO, holidays, paid leave of absences, bereavement leave, and 
jury duty.  PTO hours will not accrue while an employee is away from work on any 
type of unpaid status, or unpaid leave. 

 
4.6.4.4 PTO carry over is limited to one years accrual into the next fiscal year.  Prior 
written approval from the CEO is required in order to carry over more than one- 
years accrual.  Any PTO hours in excess of your year accrual as of June 30th will be 
lost. 

 
4.6.4.5 Overtime hours worked beyond a staff member’s regular schedule are not 
subject to PTO accrual. 

 
4.6.5  Using PTO Benefits 

 
4.6.5.1 WSA has a responsibility to maintain adequate staffing levels in order to 
provide expected services.  Employees have a responsibility to their employer and 
co-workers to work scheduled shifts and plan absences in advance. 

 
4.6.5.2 PTO must be requested and authorized in advance except in cases of bona 
fide illness, injury or unanticipated emergencies. 

 
4.6.5.3 PTO must be requested by the employee at least 24 hours in advance of 
the absence.  Department requirements for more than 24 hours advance notice 
may be established, based on workload. 

 
4.6.5.4 Employees will submit PTO requests.  Employees may seek assistance from 
their supervisors or from the Payroll Administrator. 

 
4.6.5.5 Supervisors will respond to PTO requests promptly and on a fair and 

135



equitable basis, when the staffing needs of the department permit.  Employees 
are not to assume PTO is approved until the supervisor has responded. 

 
4.6.5.6 Supervisors may deny or cancel any PTO requests that would create a 
staffing shortage or an inequitable distribution of time off. 

 

4.6.5.7 After completion of the 90-day introductory period, employees use PTO 
whenever they are authorized to be away from work at their request (except 
for holidays, birthday, jury duty, military reserve duty, or bereavement 
leave). 

 
4.6.5.7.1 Non-exempt (hourly) employees request PTO hours and 
note the time away from work for each hour and fraction of an hour 
taken. 

 
4.6.5.7.2 Exempt employees request and note time away from work 
for PTO in excess of two (2) hours in a work day.  These requests should 
be occasional, preapproved by your Director and not weekly or on a 
regular basis. 

 
4.6.5.7.2.1 If you are gone more than two hours you must 
request PTO for all the hours you were gone that day as PTO.  
Example if you are going to be gone three (3) hours request 
three hours PTO. Exempt employees who abuse the policy by 
frequent short periods away from work will be. 

 

4.6.5.7.2.2 Deductions will not be made from salaries for Jury 
Duty, attendance as a witness, temporary military duty (reserve 
duty), absences caused by the employer (admin days), partial days 
other than noted above. 

 
4.6.5.7.2.3 Deduction from salary may be made for one or more 
full days for illness/disability when the employee has exhausted 
PTO but may not be made for partial days when PTO is exhausted. 

 
4.6.5.8 PTO will accrue during the entry probation period, but may only be used 
during the 90-day introductory period with supervisor approval and for 
documented personal illness or for the care of a dependent family member, as 
defined in Section 4.6.3.5. 

 
4.6.6  Planned and Unplanned Absences 

 
4.6.6.1 Employees are responsible for anticipating the amount of PTO that may be 
needed to cover future absences for vacation, sick time, and personal and family 

136



matters. Employees are encouraged to use PTO for planned rest and recreation. 
WSA believes that planned, regular breaks in the work routine promote wellness 
and contribute to optimum performance on the job. 

 
4.6.6.2 An occurrence of unplanned absence is a period of one or more 
consecutive days of absence, regardless of the total length of the absence. 

 
4.6.6.3 Unplanned absences compromise the quality of WSA operations, services, 
costs and morale.  An excessive number of unplanned PTO days are cause for 
progressive disciplinary action up to and including termination.  Supervisors may 
request medical provider documentation for any medical use of PTO when such 
absences are frequent. 

 
4.6.6.4 Employees who are absent for medical reasons, for a period in excess of 
three (3) days must provide physician documentation of visit upon return to work. 

 
4.6.6.5 A medical leave of absence is a period of greater than five (5) working days 
in succession, as documented by a licensed healthcare provider.  An employee may 
remain on active employment status for up to six months while on such a leave. 
However, the employee must make arrangements for the payment of all required 
premiums, employee and WSA contributions, should PTO accrual be exhausted 
during the medical leave. 

 
4.6.6.6 In the event of illness or emergency, preventing the employee from 
reporting to work for periods exceeding one day, the employee must contact their 
supervisor, or HR, if the supervisor is not available, each subsequent day, no later 
than an hour after the start of the scheduled sh i f t .   S ta f f  who do not adhere to 
this policy or who are directed to report to work and fail to do so will not be paid 
and may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

 
4.6.6.7 Each day of unexcused absence is cause for progressive disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination.  PTO may not be used to cover unexcused 
absences. 

 
4.6.6.8 Regardless of the reason, should an employee's unscheduled absences 
occur with such frequency so as to adversely affect operations and prevent the 
employee from meeting their employment obligations, WSA may take disciplinary 
action up to and including termination. 

 
4.6.7 PTO Sell-Back 

 

4.6.7.1 Employees may elect to sell back a portion of their PTO balances one time each 

fiscal year (October through September), after they have accumulated enough hours to 

cover the hours they wish to sell and the number of hours that must remain in the PTO 

bank.  Sell-back may not reduce the employee's PTO balance below the hours that 

must remain at time of sellback (see schedule below).  Employees may convert 

between 72-124 hours each fiscal year to cash, less taxes and 401(k) contributions.  

These sell-back hours will be cashed in at 100% of base pay rate.  Sell-back requests 

will be submitted to the Payroll Administrator on Form 4.6 #1, Request for PTO Sell 

137



Back for verification of hours eligible, requests will be forwarded to HR and then the 

CEO for approval. 

 

 
 
4.6.8 PTO Payout at Termination 

4.6.8.1 Employees who separate from employment after successfully completing 

their initial 90-day introductory period and, who have retired or resigned in 

good standing, after giving appropriate notice of at least two weeks' notice for 

staff and four weeks for all levels of management, will be paid for unused PTO 

time depending on the amount of years of service, according to the following 

schedule. 

 

4.7 Emergency Leave Pool 

WSA has established an Emergency Leave Pool to provide employees who have exhausted all 
other accrued paid leave the ability to remain in paid status because they or their immediate family 
member(s) have suffered a catastrophic illness or injury. 
 

4.7.1  Definitions 
 
4.7.1.1 Immediate Family Member is defined as those individuals who live in the 
same household as the employee and are related by kinship,adoption, or marriage; 
or are foster children certified by Applicable Law.  If not in the same household, an 
immediate family is strictly limited to the employee's spouse, child or parent. 
 

138



4.7.1.2 Licensed Practitioner includes a licensed physician, nurse practitioner, or 
other licensed health care professional as defined in Applicable Law, who is 
practicing within the scope of his/her license. 
 
4.7.1.3 Catastrophic Illness or Injury is a condition or combination of conditions 
affecting the mental or physical health of the employee or member of the 
employee's immediate family that requires the services of a licensed practitioner 
for a prolonged period and that forces the employee  to exhaust all leave time 
earned and therefore results in a loss of compensation. 
 
4.7.1.4 Condition or Combination of Conditions is an illness or injury that may result 
in death if not treated; requires hospitalization for more than 72 consecutive hours; 
requires prolonged convalescence at home or a rehabilitation facility; or causes a 
person to be legally declared a danger to him/herself or others.  For purposes of 
this policy, pregnancy and elective surgery are not considered severe conditions, 
except when life-threatening complications arise from them. 
 

4.7.2  Eligibility 
 

To be eligible to participate in the Emergency Leave Pool, an employee must meet the 

following criteria: 
 

a. Completed at least one year of continuous, satisfactory employment. 
 

b. Is not on any type of disciplinary action at the time of application or at any 
time during the preceding 12 months. 

 
c. Have a satisfactory performance rating. 

 
d. Has exhausted all available PTO time. 

 
e. The employee's condition is not an on-the-job injury covered by Workers' 

Compensation Insurance. 
 

f. The employee is not on short-term or long-term disability. 
 

g. The employee or employee's immediate family member has a severe 
condition or combination of conditions, as defined in this policy, that 
require the services of a licensed practitioner.  The employee must provide 
certification of the condition by a licensed practitioner. 

 
4.7.3  Application and Award Process 

 
a. The employee or the employee's personal representative can request an 

award of time from the Emergency Leave Pool by submitting a completed 
application to the HR.  The application should be submitted at least two (2) 
weeks before the hours are needed, or as soon as possible after the need 

139



arises. The application shall include a written statement from a licensed 
practitioner that provides sufficient information to allow an appropriate 
evaluation of the condition for which time is being requested. 
 

b. Employees who have exhausted all accrued paid leave will be place on 
leave without pay status pending a decision of their application for 
Emergency Leave Pool time. 

 
c. HR shall be the Emergency Leave Pool Administrator, who in conjunction 

the CEO, shall review all applications.  Decisions of the Pool Administrator 
shall be final. 

 
d. If an employee has been placed on leave without pay status pending a 

decision on their application, their status will be changed to on pay with 
leave and emergency leave hours applied retroactively if their application 
is approved. 

 
e. Award limit.  The amount of time approved for an award cannot exceed 

the maximum of 240 hours per calendar year.  WSA reserves the right to 
alter the maximum award based on circumstances at the discretion of the 
CEO.  The availability of time from the Emergency Leave Pool is subject to 
the number of hours available in the Pool, number of competing 
applications, and other factors as determined by WSA. 

 
f. A deceased employee's estate is not entitled to payment for any unused 

Emergency Leave Pool time credited to the employee. 
 
4.7.4 Use and Modification of Emergency leave Pool Award 
 

a. Emergency Leave Pool time may only be used for the reason requested.  
Employees shall immediately notify the HR if there is any change in the 
nature or severity of his/her condition that modifies the need for 
Emergency Leave Pool time. 

 
b. Awarded Emergency Leave Pool hours that are no longer needed or 

justified will be cancelled and returned to the Pool. 
 
4.7.5  Return to Work Certification 

Prior to returning to work, the employee must submit a written statement to the HR 

from his/her licensed practitioner that the employee is able to return to work.  The 

statement must also specify what, if any, limitations or restrictions exist to the 

employee's  ability to perform his/her job duties. 

140



4.7.6  Contributions to the Emergency Leave Pool 
 

a. Employees are not required to contribute to the Emergency Leave Pool. 
 

b. Employees may make voluntary contributions of PTO hours to the 
Emergency Leave Pool by submitted a Leave Pool Transfer form to the 
HR Manager.  Contributions may not be designated for a specific person 
or for a particular illness/injury. 

 
c. Employees may contribute an unlimited number of hours, provided that 

the contribution will not cause the donor's balance to drop below 80 
hours 

 
d. Once a contribution is made to the Emergency Leave Pool, the donor 

may not request a return of the hours donated. 

4.8 Administrative Leave 
 

4.8.1 WSA may allow employees administrative leave, with or without pay, granted by 
____________________________________________________, for situations such as: 

 
4.8.1.1 Inclement weather or local emergencies; 
 

4.8.1.2 Early dismissal; 
 

4.8.1.3 Formal disciplinary investigations.   
 

4.8.1.4 For celebrating an eligible employee’s birthday; and for 
 

4.8.1.5 Other situations for which s/he feels appropriate in the conduct of agency 
business. 

 
4.8.2 If an external organization is conducting an investigation, such as after an 
indictment, unpaid Administrative leave may be granted.  The employee may elect to 
use PTO during this period. After PTO is exhausted, if the issue has not been resolved 
and the employee has not returned to work, he/she will be formally terminated from 
employment. 

 
4.8.3 Paid Administrative leave is not usually considered worked time and does not 
enter into the overtime calculation for non-exempt employees. 
 
4.8.4 Paid time away from the workplace to participate in workshops, panels, staff 
development activities or conferences, or to provide testimony on behalf of the agency 
is not considered Administrative Leave but worked time.  It is considered in the overtime 
calculation. 

141



 
4.8.5 Regular full and part time employees, who are benefit eligible, will receive a day 
of administrative leave with pay in celebration of his/her birthday.  If the birthday falls 
on a day other than on a normal work day, if the employee must work on his/her 
birthday, or if the employee desires, he/she may request another day off.  The alternate 
day must be approved at least 24 hours in advance by entering the request into the 
electronic time and attendance system. Birthday leave may be taken on or after the 
employee’s actual birthday but not before. 
 

4.9 Holiday Observances 
 

4.9.1 WSA provides additional paid time off to all regular employees (and designated 
part-time employees) on observed holidays.  The holidays to be taken are designated 
each year by the CEO.  The dates will differ, but the following are the normally observed 
holidays each year: 

 
New Year's Day 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 
President's Day 
Battle of Flowers - 
Fiesta Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day Veterans 
Day Thanksgiving 
Day Thanksgiving 
Holiday Christmas 
Day Christmas 
Holiday 

 
4.9.2 Holidays falling on a Saturday are normally observed on the preceding Friday. 
Holidays falling on a Sunday are normally observed on the following Monday. 

 
4.9.3 Time off to celebrate an employee’s birthday is considered administrative leave. 
See policy 4.8 Administrative Leave for details. 

 
4.9.4 If your religious beliefs require a variation from the above schedule such as the 
observation of holidays other than those listed above, promptly notify HR so that WSA 
can determine how it can reasonably accommodate your needs. 
 

4.10 Workers Compensation Insurance 

 

WSA provides Workers Compensation insurance coverage for all of its employees. The 
coverage provides for the payment of medical expenses and benefits in accordance with state 

142



law, in the event that an employee suffers a work-related injury or occupational illness.  Please 
see the HR for assistance in submitting a claim. 

 
4.10.1 Notice to the Employee - You may elect to retain your common law of right of 
action if, no later than five days after you begin your employment, you notify WSA in 
writing that you wish to retain your common law right to recover damages for personal 
injury. If you elect to retain your common law right of action, you cannot obtain workers' 
compensation income or medical benefits if you are injured. 

 
4.10.2 Additional information on workers' compensation coverage and applicable 
procedures can be obtained from the notices posted on our agency bulletin board 
in the break room and from HR. 

 
4.10.3 It is extremely important that employees notify their supervisors and HR 
immediately in the event of a work-related accident. Failure to report these matters 
immediately, within 24 hours, could result in the delay of benefits. 

 
4.10.4 Funds from the Emergency Leave Pool, through special PTO, may be available to 
employees, who must be away from work, on doctor’s orders, during the first week 
following the injury, for whole and partial days to seek medical intervention for injuries 
suffered at work.   
 

4.11 Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) 
 

WSA makes every attempt to assist employees in understanding their eligibility for COBRA 
benefits.  COBRA provides eligible employees and their dependents rights to continuation of 
group health plan coverage after their employment ends with WSA as provided in that federal 
law. The following is a very brief and generalized description of the rights under COBRA. 

 
4.11.1 Employees, their spouses, dependent children, and other defined beneficiaries, 
who are covered under a group health plan on the day before a qualifying event, may 
extend their coverage under the health plan in accordance with the provisions of COBRA. 

 
4.11.2 Qualifying for COBRA 

 
A qualifying event includes: 

 
4.11.2.1 Voluntary or involuntary termination of employment for reasons 
other than gross misconduct; 

 
4.11.2.2 Reduction in the number of hours of employment below those 
qualifying for coverage (e.g. hours reduced below 30 on a regular basis); 

 
4.11.2.3 Loss of dependent status. 

143



 
4.11.2.4 To continue receiving group health benefits under COBRA: 

 
4.11.2.4.1 HR mails the COBRA Notification to the employee’s last 
known address within 14 days of termination of employment or provides 
the employee with the Notification when notified of a qualifying event. 

 
4.11.2.4.2 Eligible employees must complete an election notice and 
pay 100% of the full month premium for a specified time period.  Eligible 
employees may continue participation for various lengths of time, 
depending on the circumstances as outlined in the Notification. 

 

4.11.3 Continuation of COBRA coverage may be terminated for any of the following 
reasons: 

 
4.11.3.1 WSA no longer offers group health insurance to any of its 
employees; 

 
4.11.3.2 A recipient does not pay premiums on time; 

 
4.11.3.3 A recipient is covered under another group health plan that does 
not contain a limitation for preexisting conditions; 

 
4.11.3.4 A recipient becomes entitled to Medicare. 

 

Any questions about COBRA benefits should be directed to HR. 
 

4.12 Education Assistance Program 

 
WSA encourages its regular full-time employees, who have successfully completed the 90-day 
introductory period, to further their education and professional development. Education 
expenses are not taxable as income to the employee if the courses taken maintain or improve 
skills required for the employee’s present job (IRC §127 

 
4.12.1 WSA will assist by providing employee, approved for inclusion in the program, a 
maximum reimbursement benefit of $2,000 per calendar year.  Employees may use this 
reimbursement benefit to defray the cost of pre-approved courses taken at accredited 
colleges, universities or recognized technical schools, and related college fees.  Textbooks 
and materials will not be covered under this policy. 

 
4.12.1.1 Courses must be related to the employee's present job, a position 
the employee could reasonably progress to, or those that are determined to 
benefit WSA. This is a mutually beneficial investment in the employee and WSA, 
because the increased knowledge and skills acquired by the employee, will 

144



contribute to the success of WSA. 

 
4.12.2 Conditions for participation are as follows: 

 
4.12.2.1 Courses must be reviewed by HR and approved by the CEO. 

 
4.12.2.2 Courses taken must not interfere with operational needs of WSA 
and reimbursement is limited to a maximum of six (6) hours per semester or 18 
hours per calendar year. 

 
4.12.2.3 The education assistance program does not cover College Level 
Examination Program (CLEP) examinations nor courses taken for audit. 

 
4.12.2.4 Courses may be required as part of a course leading to a 
certification or licensure related to the employees current job. 

 
4.12.3 WSA will reimburse only to the cost of semester hour tuition and fees charged 
by the University of Texas at San Antonio for the semester for which expenses are 
incurred.  Employees will be responsible for the remainder of the cost.  WSA 
educational assistance will be secondary to other sources of financial assistance such as 
GI Bill, Scholarships, Pell grants, etc. Reimbursement may or may not be taxable 
depending upon tax laws in effect. 

 
4.12.4 WSA will reimburse costs as follows: 

 

100% = Grade A 
75% = Grade B 
50% = Grade C 

 

4.12.5 WSA employees may use this benefit to pay for fees that are mandatory for the 
student such as exam, registration, lab, general, library use, insurance, graduation, 
parking, etc. 

 
4.12.6 Participating employees will incur a voluntary one-year (12-month) retention 
commitment based on the last date of reimbursement payment.  If the employee 
voluntarily leaves WSA within 12 months of receiving reimbursement, a pro-ration (by 
month) of the cost will be deducted from final payment of salary, wages, and unused PTO. 

 

 

Example:  If the employee is reimbursed in December and terminates employment during 
following March, s/he will be responsible for reimbursing 9/12s of the total 
reimbursement for the prior twelve months. 

 

4.12.7 If the employee is involuntarily terminated due to department realignment or 
organization, the WSA share of the cost for tuition reimbursement will not be deducted 

145



from the final paycheck. 
 

4.12.8 Educational institutions must be accredited and/or recognized by the American 
Association of Colleges and Universities, Western Association of Schools and Colleges or 
the Southern Association of Colleges and Universities. In the case or professional 
certification, associations or governing bodies recognized as industry authorities will 
satisfy this requirement. 

 
4.12.9 Employees will obtain approval from the Director and submit the completed 
application to HR. HR and the CEO will review the form and either approve or disapprove 
the course study based on relevance to WSA need. 

 
4.12.10 After completion of the course the employee will bring a verifiable copy 
of course completion and grade(s) to HR, who will then send the complete education 
assistance package to Fiscal for reimbursement. 

 
4.12.11 Requests for reimbursement will not be honored after the course is 
completed if an application had not been pre-approved or if the employee terminates 
employment prior to course completion. 

 
4.12.12 Requests for graduate program consideration must be reviewed by the 
CEO for approval and is subject to change, based on funding. 

 
4.12.13 For courses that are not graded, (i.e. Pass/Fail) proof of course 
completion, by certificate or license, must be provided in order for reimbursement to be 
paid. 
 

4.13 Employee Assistance Program 
 

WSA recognizes that certain issues may arise that could adversely affect an employee's health, 
safety or job performance.  Therefore, it provides an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) that 
offers, at no cost, counseling and referral services to assist employees and their family members 
in addressing a variety of personal problems.  HR will provide you with the contact information 
you will need to access the services. 

 
4.13.1 Employees and members of their immediate households may voluntarily use this 
program.  Employees may also be referred to the program by their managers or 
supervisors. 
 
4.13.2 EAP services can help you resolve a broad range of issues, such as:  

 
Relationship and marriage problems 
Family issues 
Life changes 

146



Legal and financial issues  
Stress and emotional issues  
Alcohol and drug dependency 
Identity theft 
Health and wellness concerns 
 

4.13.2.1 EAP services are available to employees on the first of the month 
following 90 days of employment, when they become eligible to receive long 
term and short term insurance coverage, which is paid by WSA. 

 
4.13.3 Any counseling, treatment or records that result from the voluntary use of the 
EAP is confidential, and will be released only on a need-to-know basis. 

 
4.13.4 The employee's decision to seek such assistance will not be used for disciplinary 
action, nor will it be used against the employee in any disciplinary proceeding. 

 
4.13.4.1 Participation in such programs will not protect the employee from 
discipline for violation of WSA policies. 
 

4.14 Direct Deposit 

 
WSA offers its employees the option of having their paychecks directly deposited to their 
checking or savings accounts. 

 
4.14.1 Employees who take advantage of direct deposit, have the convenience of having 
the funds immediately available on payday, whether in the office, away, or in a remote 
location where mail delays may occur. 

 
4.14.2 Employees wishing to take advantage of this program provide HR Authorization 
for Automatic Payroll Deposits and a voided check to validate account and routing 
information. 

 
4.14.3 Final pay checks may be directly deposited if that has been the prior arrangement 
for employee who voluntarily resign from employment. 

 

4.15 Alternative Work Schedules 
 

WSA may provide regular (and designated part-time employees) employees the option to choose 
an alternative work schedule, if that schedule is in the best interest of the workflow in the 
department. 

 
4.15.1 WSA is interested in alternative work schedules as a method of staff retention 
through work/life balance. Alternative scheduling may be available to assist employees 
in meeting their personal work performance goals and family needs. 

147



 
4.15.2 All WSA employees will be considered for alternative work scheduling on a case-
by-case basis, where creative work schedules have been shown to accomplish both work 
and personal goals, to provide coverage for individual department operations and to 
serve WSA with increased productivity at no expense to quality output. 

 
4.15.3 Various alternative work schedules may be considered. The options include: 

 
4.15.3.1 Flex-time - a block of time at the start and end of traditional 8-
hour shifts during which employees may report and complete their required hours 
of work. 

 
4.15.3.2 Ten-hour day, four-day workweek - an employee works ten hours 
per day, not including lunch, reducing the workweek to four days. 

 
4.15.3.3 Customary work week hours: Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. 
to 5 p.m.  Other variations of the 8 hour day may be negotiated with the 
department manager/director to assure department coverage. 

 
4.15.4 The following guidelines apply to the WSA Alternative Work Schedule Policy: 

 
4.15.4.1 Employees who are approved to work an alternative work 
schedule, may opt out at any time but will not be allowed to re-enter for six 
months. Staff opting out will revert to a normal Monday - Friday workweek. 

 
4.15.4.2 All schedule changes must be approved in writing by the Director, 
Personnel Action Notice, found on the shared drive in the Forms section of the 
HR folder, and filed in the employee’s personnel file in HR. 

 
4.15.4.3 For employees approved to work a 4/10 schedule: 

 
4.15.4.3.1 When a holiday falls within the pay period, those working 
a 4/10 schedule will revert to a regular 8-hour work schedule during the 
week of the holiday but not for the entire pay period. 

 
4.15.4.3.2 When using full days of PTO, 10 hours will be charged to 
your PTO. 

 
4.15.4.3.3   The regularly scheduled day off cannot replace a PTO day 
taken earlier/later in that week. (e.g. If you work 4/10 with Friday as your 
scheduled day off and Monday you take a PTO day, you will not be 
allowed to work Friday to make up for the PTO day on Monday). 

 
4.15.4.3.4  The Department Director or CEO may terminate an employee's 

148



alternative work schedule if the schedule is being abused, if the employee 
is not productively accomplishing goals, or for any other reason not 
benefiting WSA. 

 
 

SECTION V 

SAFETY 

5.1 Safety 
 

WSA complies with all applicable federal, state, and local health and safety regulations to 
provide a work environment as free as possible from recognized hazards. Employees are 
expected to comply with all safety and health requirements whether established by WSA or by 
federal, state, or local law. 

 
This policy is applicable at all times when employees are on the premises including, but not 
limited to: before, during and after normal working hours, weekends, holidays and while visiting 
the premises when not on duty.  It is also applicable when employees are engaged in work or 
conducting business on behalf of WSA and when participating in sanctioned events during 
business hours.   

 
WSA encourages its employees to bring any concerns or suggestions for improved safety in the 
workplace to their supervisors or HR. 

 
5.1.1 All employees must know and follow common sense safety precautions that 
protect the employee and their fellow workers from harm and increase effectiveness on 
the job.  The following list covers some of the precautions employees are required to 
take when performing their work: 

 
5.1.1.1 Do not engage in horseplay; 

 
5.1.1.2 Do not engage in any physical or verbal acts and/or threats of violence, 
whether made in jest or seriously, by any person(s) while on the premises of or 
while conducting business on behalf of WSA; 

 
5.1.1.3 Never use equipment unless trained and authorized; 

 
5.1.1.4 Do not bring any concealed weapons, either licensed or unlicensed, on 
company premises; 

 
5.1.1.5 Keep passageways to fire extinguishers, aisles, and doorways clear; 

 
5.1.1.6 Know where fire extinguishers are located; 

 

149



5.1.1.7 Always use proper lifting techniques; 

 
5.1.1.8 Store flammable and hazardous waste materials in proper containers; 
 

5.1.1.9 Turn off equipment not in use; 

 
5.1.1.10 Know first aid kit locations and how to use them; 

 
5.1.1.11 Report unsafe conditions to your supervisor immediately; and 

 
5.1.1.12 Know the most direct and safe exit route in case of fire. 

 
5.1.2 The above list of precautions is not exhaustive; rather it is intended only to 
highlight some of the practices which employees are expected to follow.  Employees who 
violate safety standards, who cause hazardous or dangerous situations, or who fail to 
report or, where appropriate, remedy situations, may be subject to discipline, up to and 
including termination.   

 
5.1.3 All accidents, no matter how minor, which could have or actually do result in an 
injury to anyone (employee, customer, visitor, vendor, etc.) should be reported to a 
supervisor immediately. 

SECTION VI 

LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

6.1 Bereavement Leave 
 

WSA permits its employees to take up to three (3) consecutive paid days in event of a death in 
the immediate family.  For the purpose of this policy the immediate family shall be defined as: 
spouse, children, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, and siblings.  It also includes the 
immediate family member of the employee's spouse. 

 
6.1.1 When a death in an employee's immediate family occurs within a 100-mile 
radius of Bexar County, paid leave will not be charged to the employee's accrued leave 
bank (PTO), for a period up to three (3) eight (8) hour days.  Any additional time may be 
charged to the employee's accrued PTO. 

 
6.1.2 When a death in an employee's immediate family occurs beyond the 100-mile 
radius of Bexar County, leave will not be charged to the employee’s accrued leave 
bank (PTO), for up to five (5) eight (8) hour days.  Any additional time may be charged to 
the employee's accrued PTO. 

 
6.1.3 Employees may qualify for one (1) eight (8) hour day paid day for the death of a 
family member other than those defined as immediate family above. 

 

150



6.1.4 While on approved bereavement leave, employees are paid at the regular base pay 
rate. 

 
6.1.5 Requests for bereavement leave should be submitted to the employee's 
immediate supervisor. 
 

6.2 Military Leave 
 

WSA provides employees (including those in their introductory period) paid and unpaid military 
leaves of absence for service in a uniformed service, as provided for under the USERRA.  
Examples of matters qualifying for such unpaid leave include service, attendance or 
participation in a uniformed service's drills, training, or active duty. 

 
6.2.1 In addition to the unpaid leave provided under USERRA, regular full time 
employees will be granted paid  Military Leave upon presentation of valid orders or 
other appropriate verification. Regular fulltime employees are eligible to receive 
supplemented pay during the first 120 hours or 15 days of paid Military Leave annually, 
if the gross military pay is less than the gross wages paid by WSA. Non-work days, falling 
within a period of absence on military training duty, are included in the 15 days of allowed 
Military Leave. 

 
6.2.2 An employee, who has exhausted his/her Military Leave with Pay may continue 
to use Military Leave Without Pay as provided in USERRA.  Employees may use 
accumulated PTO during their unpaid Military Leave but are not required to do so.  Paid 
military leave cannot be accumulated and will be lost at the end of each calendar year. 

 
6.2.3 To be granted paid Military Leave, an employee must submit a copy of official 
orders or other relevant military documents, no later than 30 days prior to the start of 
training. This notice will allow the supervisor time to adjust the workload in the 
department for the scheduled time off. 

 
6.2.4 Eligibility for unpaid military leave, applicable conditions, and other matters 
related to it and the provisions of USERRA and the State of Texas will govern 
reinstatement rights. 

 
WSA complies with all of the applicable requirements of USERRA and the State of Texas and 
prohibits discrimination and/or retaliation against any individual who has served in the 
uniformed services or has engaged in any other actions protected by USERRA and the State of 
Texas. 
 

6.3 Jury/Witness Duty 
 

WSA grants leave with pay for the entire period that an employee is summoned to/serves jury 
duty.  Paid leave, in this case, is defined as the authorized absence, without charge to leave or 

151



compensation, for official Jury Duty or for attending court in a nonofficial capacity as a witness 
on behalf of WSA or other agencies as approved by WSA. 

 
6.3.1 Employees will notify their supervisors or managers as soon as possible after 
they receive a summons so arrangements can be made to accommodate their absences.  
The manager may ask to review the summons or subpoena to confirm the time away from 
work. 

 
6.3.2 Court appearances resulting from personal or off duty problems and not in an 
official capacity, will be charged as PTO or leave without pay, if PTO is not available. 

 
6.3.3 If an employee receives fees when called for Jury Duty, the employee is authorized 
to retain such fees to help defray daily expenses. 

 
6.3.4 Employees are expected to notify their supervisors of the end of the court 
commitment, if it falls within the work day and return to work if reasonable. 

 
6.3.5 Paid leave for Jury/Witness Duty is not considered work time for overtime 
calculation for non-exempt employees. 
 

6.4 Leaves of Absence 

WSA provides a Leave of Absence (LOA) program and has established procedures for 
requesting this leave.  The granting of LOA will be a matter of administrative discretion.  The 
agency is not subject to the Family and Medical Leave Act but chooses to offer similar, but not 
exact, leave benefits to its employees.   

LOA is an approved unpaid leave of absence available to eligible regular full-time and part-time 
employees.  Employees are eligible if they have been employed a total of 12-months or more and 
have provided at least 1,250 hours of service during the previous 12 months.  A leave of absence 
is a period greater than five work days in succession.  The maximum amount of LOA is 12 weeks 
in any 12-month period.  An eligible employee may take LOA for any of the following reasons: 

6.4.1 Family Leave 
 

6.4.1.1 Birth of an employee’s child; and 
 
6.4.1.2 Placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care. 

 
6.4.2 Medical Leave 
 

6.4.2.1 To care for the employee’s child, spouse, or parent who has a serious 
health condition; and 

 

152



6.4.2.2 When the employee is unable to perform the essential functions of their 
position because of the employee’s serious health condition. 

 
6.4.3 Personal Leave – Other reasons approved by the employee’s supervisor/manager 
and the CEO. 

 
6.4.4 An eligible employee may be granted leave up to 12 work weeks (480 hours) 
during any 12-month period, counted from the first day LOA is taken. The next 12- month 
period and its 12 week (480 hour) eligibility begins with the first day of a subsequent LOA. 

 
6.4.4.1 Employees may be eligible for additional leave as a reasonable 
accommodation, if appropriate, and approved by the Manager. 

 
6.4.4.2 WSA will engage in an individualized assessment to determine if the 
employee can be reasonably accommodated. 

 
6.4.5 General rules for the LOA program: 

 
6.4.5.1 LOA leave is permitted to support special needs of the employee, spouse, 
child and parent.  Former spouses and in-laws do not qualify as spouses or parents; 

 
6.4.5.2 LOA is generally unpaid leave and offers job protection for qualifying family 
or medical events.  Workforce Solutions requires that PTO be exhausted before 
continuing unpaid LOA, except for Military Leave, with orders.  Upon the 
exhaustion of paid leave, the balance of the leave will be without pay; 

 
6.4.5.3 Each request for LOA will be examined closely to ensure that the needs of 
WSA and the employee are met; 

 
6.4.5.4 During the time an employee is on a LOA, the position will not be offered 
to another person; 

 
6.4.5.5 Employees on LOA, who exhaust their PTO accrual, will not accrue PTO 
hours. 

 
6.4.6 Employee responsibilities for the LOA program: 

 
6.4.6.1 Any request for LOA must be submitted seven days in advance to the 
department manager, if practicable; 

 
6.4.6.2 Employees are required to report every 30 calendar days to HR on their 
leave status and intent to return to work; 

 
6.4.6.3 Employees will be responsible for paying all benefit plan premiums 

153



(employee and employer contributions) and will coordinate continuation of all 
insurance coverage with HR and the Fiscal Department.  Failure to pay premiums 
will result in a loss of benefit coverage or repayment of amount due. 

 
6.4.7 LOA procedures for both supervisors and employees are as follows: 

 
6.4.7.1 The employee will first contact his/her supervisor regarding the potential 
for LOA.  Through discussions with the employee and HR, the supervisor will 
determine employee’s eligibility for LOA; 

 
6.4.7.2 Employees are required to provide documentation from a health care 
provider ordering leave for a medical condition; 

 
6.4.7.3 If the nature of the leave has been determined a LOA is appropriate, the 
supervisor will refer the employee to HR;  

 

6.4.7.4 HR will provide the employee with the appropriate form, review the 
program and responsibilities and assist employee in filling out the form, if needed.  
After the form is completed, it will be approved by the supervisor and forwarded 
to HR for review and for approval by the CEO; 
 

6.4.8 To be released to full duty after Medical LOA,the employee is required to bring 

healthcare provider's release, certifying the employee's ability to perform the essential 
functions of the job,with or without reasonable accommodation. 

 

6.5 Registration and Voting 
 

WSA encourages employees to fulfill civic responsibilities by participating in registration, voting, 
and state/local political conventions. 

 
6.5.1 Employees are encouraged to vote either before or after the regular work hours 
during early or regular voting periods. 

 
6.5.2 If an employee is unable to vote during non-duty hours because of work schedule, 
WSA will excuse employees for a reasonable period of time, up to 2 hours, to vote in any 
election in the community of residence. 

 
6.5.3 If sufficient time is available before or after normal work hours to meet the two 
hour limit time off from work will not be granted. 

 
6.5.4 Employees will request time off to vote at least two working days before the 
election.  Advance notice will give the manager an opportunity to adjust the department 
workload, if necessary, and schedule time off. 

 
6.5.5 Employees may be absent from work to participate in a state or local political 

154



convention.  This is unpaid leave. However, use of PTO is required, if available. 
 

SECTION VII 

GENERAL WORK RULES 
 
7.1  Work Hours 

WSA determines employees' working hours as required by customer service, agency operations, 

and available and efficient use of HR. 

7.1.1 Official work hours at WSA are from 8:00a.m. to 5:00p.m.Monday through Friday.  
Exceptions or variances may be approved in writing on a case by case basis. 

 
7.1.2 A workweek is 40 hours.  However, circumstances, department workload or 
supervisor request may necessitate working more than 40 hours in a workweek. 

 
7.1.3 Although every attempt will be made to adhere to the schedule assigned, the 
nature of agency business may necessitate schedule changes.  If schedules changes are 
necessary, WSA will attempt to give as much notice as the circumstances permit.  
Employee flexibility and adaptability with respect to changes in assigned work schedules 
are deemed crucial requirements of every employee's job. 
 

7.1.4 WSA official workweek begins at midnight each Friday, and ends exactly seven 
consecutive, 24-hour periods later. 
 
7.1.5 Employees are not permitted to work overtime without the prior approval of their 
supervisor. 
 

7.1.6 For exempt employees, hours worked outside of the official business hours and/or 
physical location cannot be used as a substitute for working the minimum required 40 
hours per week, unless preapproved by ___________.  The _____________ can approve 
time off during a regular work week when non-standard hours may be required for a job 
such as working overnight to deploy software or on a Saturday for a WSA sanctioned 
event.  Telecommuting requests shall be for extraordinary circumstances and must 
receive prior approval from the _______________.  The approval must be accompanied 
by a memo which defines the reasons the telecommuting request was granted. 

7.2 Lunch Periods 

7.2.1  The lunch time schedule typically falls between 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 

7.2.2 A lunch period is typically one hour or a specified period in conjunction with an 
approved flexible work schedule. 

155



 
7.2.3 Lunch schedules are determined at the sole discretion of ________________. 
 
7.2.4 Employees may not elect to use working during a lunch period as reason to leave 
in advance of their normally scheduled workday unless directed or approved in advance 
by their ___________________. 
 

7.3 Attendance and Tardiness 

To maintain a safe and productive work environment, WSA expects employees to be reliable and 

punctual in reporting for scheduled work.  Absenteeism and tardiness places a burden on those 

we serve, other employees, supervisors, and on the agency.  In the rare instances when 

employees cannot avoid being late to work or are unable to work as scheduled, they must notify 

their supervisor or someone in a leadership positions as soon as possible in advance of the 

anticipated absence. Leaving a voicemail or message is not sufficient notification. 

7.3.1 Hours of Work. 
 

7.3.1.1 Reporting to work on time, working all hours and schedules 
assigned, and avoiding excessive absences and tardiness are all essential 
responsibilities. 

 
7.3.2 The following procedures apply to attendance and punctuality: 
 

7.3.2.1 All WSA employees are expected to report to work as scheduled 
(start and end time), and maintain a satisfactory record of attendance; 
 
7.3.2.2 All employees are required to obtain necessary approval from 
his/her supervisor prior to being away from the work area, except for pre-
determined lunch breaks.  If the Director is not available, the employee will notify 
_______________.  All employees are expected to sign out at the front desk 
when leaving the building on agency business; 
 
7.3.2.3 Employees who are absent or leave the work area without proper 
notification are subject to disciplinary procedures, up to and including 
termination. 
 

7.3.3 An employee, whether exempt or non-exempt, is required to provide accurate 
information concerning hours worked and to notify his/her supervisor of any deviation 
from scheduled hours. 
 
7.3.4 Non-exempt employees are required to use their accrued PTO for time away from 
work, except for special leave, such as for administrative leave, bereavement, jury duty, 

156



etc.  It is the manager's responsibility to ensure that short absences do not become 
repetitive in nature and disruptive to the work. 
 
7.3.5 WSA does not have a compensatory time policy.  Directors may allow exempt 
employees short periods of time off, up to two hours, with prior approval, for special 
situations.  This is allowed in recognition that exempt employees may devote more than 
time to their responsibilities than the typical workweek allows, for which the exempt 
employ does not earn compensatory lime or extra pay.   
 
7.3.6 Employees who fail to return to work without notice for three (3) consecutive 
workdays will be considered to have voluntarily resigned from employment.  Employees 
who fail to return to work from any approved leave of absence on the date specified by 
the employer are considered to have resigned from employment. 
 
7.3.7 Poor attendance and excessive tardiness are disruptive.  Either may lead to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.   
 

7.4 Inclement Weather and Emergencies 
 
Because safety of our WSA employees is of the utmost importance, WSA has developed 
contingencies in case of inclement weather or other emergencies. 

7.4.1 In the event that inclement weather or workplace, city, or national emergency 
arise during the workday creating safety concerns, an employee may request to be 
released early and utilize PTO, at the discretion of the respective supervisor. 

7.4.2 The CEO has the authority to officially close the office and grant paid 
Administrative Leave due to impending inclement weather or workplace, city, or national 
emergency. 

7.4.2.1 In the event offices are closed before the start of the workday, efforts will 
be made to reach employees by 7:30 a.m; 

7.4.2.2 Employees are responsible for keeping their contact information up to 
date with their supervisors and HR; 

7.4.2.3 The ___________________ will notify the Directors, who will initiate a 
pyramid recall; 

7.4.2.4 The ______________ will update the agency’s phone message as soon as 
she is notified.  Employees who have not heard from their managers and question 
whether they should report to work are encouraged to call the office for the latest 
information; 

157



7.4.2.5 Paid Administrative leave is not considered worked time and does not 
enter into the overtime calculation for non-exempt employees. 

7.5 Dress Code 

While traditional business attire is standard for situations when dealing face to face with the 
public, WSA also allows employees to dress in business casual attire Monday through Friday, 
when appropriate. 

7.5.1 The well-groomed appearance of its staff maximizes customer confidence in the 
services provided by WSA and includes well-fitting, conservative, clean, pressed attire. 

7.5.2 Fridays (or the last workday proceeding a Friday holiday) will be a casual or blue 
jean day, if desired.  The jeans must be without holes, stains, tears and appear to be not 
excessively worn.  Clothing that would be worn at the gym, beach, picnic, or to clean the 
garage or do yard work is not appropriate. 

7.5.3 Supervisors and directors are responsible for ensuring that a professional 
appearance is presented at all times by employees. 

7.5.4 Employees may be charged PTO should they be required to leave the workplace 
due to not being in the appropriate attire. 

7.6 Security of Personal Property 

7.6.1 WSA will assign desks and work areas to its employee and maintains the right to 
examine the contents of desks and offices at any time, without notice.  Employees are 
expected to maintain those areas in an orderly fashion. 

7.6.2 For security reasons, personal effects should not be left unattended or stored in 
WSA offices. 

7.6.3 WSA assumes no responsibility or liability for the damage, loss or theft of personal 
property. 

7.1 Non-Smoking Policy 

Because WSA is committed to providing a safe, healthy and comfortable work environment for 
our visitors and employees, it maintains a smoke-free work  place. Smoking, including use of 
smokeless tobacco products, is prohibited  at all times in WSA facilities. 

7.7.1 WSA's policy does not mandate that each employee be a non-smoker. Employees 
are asked not smoke in the workplace out of the concern for the health of all employees 
and to decrease the risk of fire and costs of cleaning, painting and repairs. 

158



7.7.2 Employees may smoke outside of the WSA facilities, in designated locations, 
during designated break times.  Be sure to dispose of cigarettes and matches in a proper 
container. 

7.7.3 Additionally, it is a policy of the Vistana building that employees found smoking 
by Vistana personnel will be subject to fines administered by Vistana. 

7.7.4 It will be the supervisor1s responsibility to ensure that employees do not abuse 
this policy by taking an excess number of smoking breaks during the workday.  Allowable 
smoke breaks are a maximum of one break in the morning and one in the afternoon.  If 
you need extra breaks, you can use PTO.  Failure to follow this policy will lead to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.   

7.8 Political Activities 

All employees have a constitutional right to engage in political activities.  However, employees 
may not: 

7.8.1 Engage in partisan or non-partisan political activities during work hours or in WSA 
offices; 

7.8.2 Engage in partisan or non-partisan political activities in which he/she represents 
him/herself as a spokesperson or representative of WSA; 

7.8.3 Use or threaten to use the influence of his/her position to coerce or to persuade 
any person to follow a course of political action, to contribute or lend anything of value 
to a political organization or candidate for political office; 

7.8.4 Use any equipment, tools, time, resources, assets or facilities of Workforce 
Solutions Alamo for partisan political activities; or 

7.8.5 Run for partisan political office while employed at WSA. 

7.9 Personal Behavior Expectations 

WSA’s employees are expected to perform only work related activities during work hours, unless 
he/she is on break or lunch time. 

7.9.1 During assigned work periods, avoid performing personal work, personal reading, 
wasting time, visiting excessively, spreading gossip and rumors, using the telephone 
excessively for personal reasons, or behaving in a manner that distracts other employees 
or disrupts the work place. 

7.9.2 Employees are expected to be courteous and helpful to fellow employees, 

159



supervisors, subordinates, contractors, and members of the community. 

7.9.3 Employees are expected to follow supervisor instructions in performing tasks, 
following policies and procedures, and meeting WSA’s goals and objectives. 

7.9.4 Violations of this policy will cause the employee to be subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment. See Policy 8.1 for details. 

7.10 Use of Agency Equipment and Resources 

WSA provides various resources for use in performing the agency’s work.  These resources 
include, but are not limited to:  office furnishings and supplies, e-mail, computer files, voicemail, 
mail and printing services, and equipment such as telephones, fax machines, copiers, cell 
phones, and computers. 

7.10.1 Unauthorized use of WSA’s records, supplies, equipment, computers or other 
assets for personal use, without prior permission from the employee’s immediate 
supervisor, is strictly prohibited. 

7.10.2 Employees must handle all WSA property with care.  The agency’s records, files, 
supplies, equipment or other assets may not be removed from the work place without 
prior permission of the immediate supervisor and proper check-out procedures. 

7.10.3 False or misleading entries and alterations to WSA’s records, computer system, 
books, or documents is strictly prohibited. 

7.10.4 Unless specifically authorized by __________________, employees are not 
allowed to make copies of agency documents, records, or files. 

7.10.5 Employees will be held financially responsible for any WSA property or equipment 
issued to them during the course of their employment. This includes, but not limited to, 
building keys, laptops, credit cards, phones, calling cards, or any other property.  

7.10.6 At termination of employment with WSA, employees are required to return any 
and all property in their possession.  If employees fail to return this property at the time 
of termination, the employee will be required to reimburse WSA for the reasonable value 
of the property. 

7.11 Use of Computer Resources 

The computer resources and data used in performing job tasks are critical to the operation of 
WSA.  These resources and data include computer hardware and software, information about 
customers and employees, and competitive, strategic data. All employees will handle these 
resources and data with the same respect and care given to other valuable assets. 

160



7.11.1 WSA follows all state and local agency policies governing the use of its computer 
system and network.  Employees are expected to read, understand, and follow all policies, 
posted on the shared drive in the HR Folder, in the MIS sub-folder. Those include but are 
not limited to: 

7.11.1.1 ADM 32, C1, Fraud Policy, ADM 33, Remote Desktop Support 
Policy; 

7.11.1.2 ADM 37, Information Technology and Security Acceptable Usage 
Policy; 

7.11.1.3 MIS 02 and MIS 02, Change 2, Access and Security in the Workforce 
Information System of Texas (TWIST), WorkInTexas, and other State and/or Local 
Network Systems; 

7.11.1.4 MR 306, Security of Personal Identity Data; 

7.11.1.5 Memorandum of Record #334, Prevention and Detection of Fraud, 
Waste, Theft, and Program Abuse; and 

7.11.1.6 MIS 03, Monitoring the Use of Encrypting Documents 

7.11.2 Upon hire and annually, managers will present and review the TWC Information 
System Security Agreement for Board Users and Other Users; the employee will commit 
to the provisions noted by signing the form; employees who do not sign the form in a 
timely manner will be prevented from using the WSA and TWC information systems and 
may be terminated from employment. 

7.11.3 Each employee with access to computer resources and data is responsible for 
protecting them.  Employees must have knowledge of and carefully follow procedures 
related to the proper use, including, but not limited to, the following: 

7.11.3.1 No one is permitted to add any software, hardware, and computer 
configurations or attempt to make any repair to computers or the computer 
networking system without express permission of the immediate supervisor and 
the Manager of Information and Technical Services. 

7.11.3.2 Computer resources and data entrusted to employees are used 
only for their intended business purpose.  Employees will not use them for 
personal or non-company purposes. 

7.11.3.3 Employees must understand the classification(s) of information 
you use in performing your job and take appropriate steps to safeguard that 
information in all forms and at all times. 

161



7.11.3.4 Employees must keep computer log on and password information 
private and in a secure place.  Do not share your logon or password with others. 
Change your password immediately if others know it. 

7.11.3.5 Employees should notify their immediate supervisor or director, or 
HR upon learning of violations of this policy. Employees who violate this policy will 
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

7.11.3.6 Entering or maintaining personal information in the WSA computer 
system is discouraged. 

7.11.3.7 USB devices are issued by the IT Department when needed; non-
agency devices must be scanned and authorized by the IT Dept. before attaching 
them to the WSA’s system. 

7.11.3.8 Email Use 

7.11.3.8.1 Email is the WSA’s property and used for agency purposes 
only; 

7.11.3.8.2 WSA expressly prohibits the use of email to transmit, 
receive, or forward lewd, offensive, discriminatory, inappropriate or 
harassing messages; 

7.11.3.8.3 WSA reserves the right to monitor, review, and read any 
email at any time. 

7.11.3.8.3.1 Employees do not have personal privacy rights in 
any manner created, received, or sent from the email system; 

7.11.3.8.4 Nothing should be entered into the email system without 
justifiable business-related reason; 

7.11.3.8.5 When establishing passwords, employees will provide that 
information to their direct supervisors to all for access in the employee’s 
absence; 

7.11.3.8.6 Mass mailings are discouraged and may be conducted only 
with prior permission of the immediate supervisor; 

7.11.3.8.7 For inter-office communication, employees are encouraged 
to use the shared drive as a means of sharing common documents, rather 
than using the documents as email attachments; 

162



7.11.3.8.8 Employees are discouraged from using the Reply to All 
feature when answering emails. 

7.11.3.9 Internet Use – if problems with use of the Internet arise, notify your 
immediate supervisor and/or the IT Department for assistance. 

7.11.3.9.1 Internet access is granted to employees by WSA and should 
be used to conduct agency business only; 

7.11.3.9.2 Internet use will be limited to business-related research, 
client email, and sending and receiving documents via Internet email; 

7.11.3.9.3 Adjustments to the technical configuration of the Internet 
workstation are strictly prohibited; 

7.11.3.9.4 Employees are prohibited from accessing offensive, 
inappropriate, obscene, sexually oriented, or discriminatory sites, images, 
graphics, or other such materials. 

7.11.3.10 Use of Microcomputer Software 

7.11.3.10.1 WSA does not own the copyright to the software on its 
system or to its related documentation and, unless authorized by the 
developer, does not have the right to reproduce it for use on more than 
one computer; therefore, 

7.11.3.10.1.1 Employees will use software only in accordance with 
the license agreement; information is available from the IT 
Department staff. 

7.11.3.10.1.2 Employees, who become aware of software/product 
misuse, must notify ____________________. 

7.12  Personal Telephone Calls 

WSA allows its employees the privilege of making and receiving necessary personal phone calls 
while on agency time.  When necessary for employees to make or receive personal phone calls 
at work, the calls should be reasonable in length and of reasonable frequency. 

7.12.1 Employees, who must make personal long distance calls while at work,  should 
make them on personal cell phones, charge the calls to their home number or personal 
credit cards, or promptly  reimburse WSA, when asked by the Fiscal Department. 

7.12.2 Under no circumstances should WSA's phones be utilized to conduct any outside 

163



business, self-employment, or any activities that may create a conflict of interest with 
WSA. 

7.13 Access to Personnel Information 

HR maintains personnel files for each employee. These files contain documentation regarding all 
aspects of the employee’s service with WSA. 

7.13.1 Personnel files contain documents such as: application(s), performance 
evaluations; insurance forms, counseling forms, accolades, etc. 

7.13.1.1 Employees may review their files, on an as needed basis, by coming 
to HR and making the request; 

7.13.1.2 Individuals may ask for copies of information contained in their 
files, but may not take the file itself from HR.  Personnel files will be delivered to 
requestors only with a court-ordered subpoena. 

7.13.2 HR will protect the confidentiality of employee records by providing access only 
to those with a business-related need for the information and will follow agency policy by 
encrypting sensitive information when exporting data. 

7.13.3 To ensure that personnel files are kept current at all times, employees will provide 
HR with any changes, in writing, regarding their name, home address, telephone number, 
cell phone number, marital status, changes in beneficiaries, or individuals to notify in case 
of emergency. 

7.13.4 The procedures for revising personnel information (such as address, contact 
information, dependents, W-4’s, etc.) to your file are as follows: 

7.13.4.1 Obtain Form 7.13 #1, Personnel Data Change/Update form from 
the shared drive, in the Forms section of the HR folder; complete the form, and 
send it to HR to update the file. 

7.13.5 Unless HR has received a written request from the current or former employee, 
information provided for references will be limited to dates of employment and 
position(s) held while employed. 

7.13.6 Supervisors and managers are expected to forward all requests for employee 
information to HR for response. 

7.13.7 Personnel files, including medical and insurance records, and 401(k) records are 
maintained for seven (7) years after termination of employment. 

164



7.14 Visitors in the Workplace 

For everyone’s security and to reduce unnecessary interruptions in the workplace, WSA strongly 
discourages personal visits. 

7.14.1 When it is appropriate to invite a family member, vendor, friend, or business 
associate for a brief visit to your work area, seek prior approval from your supervisor and 
avoid staff interruptions; 

7.14.2 Do not allow visitors to wander freely around the department or workplace; 

7.14.3 All visitors are subject to WSA’s no-solicitation rules. 

7.14.4 Visits by children require pre-approval by the appropriate director.  They must be 
monitored at all times to avoid workplace interruptions; 

7.14.5 All visitors must sign-in with the receptionist and wear a visitor badge when 
visiting; and 

7.14.6 Visitors must be accompanied by staff while in WSA offices. 

7.15 Employees with Serious Diseases 

WSA supports its employees who have infectious, long-term, life threatening, or other serious 
disease(s), by allowing them to work as long as they are physically and mentally able to perform 
their essential job duties without undue risk to their own health or that of other employees or 
customers.  Such serious diseases include, but are not limited to:  cancer; heart disease; multiple 
sclerosis; hepatitis; tuberculosis; human immunodeficiency virus (HIV); and acquired immune 
deficiency syndrome (AIDS). 

7.15.1 Employees afflicted with a serious disease are to be treated the same as any other 
employees.  In addition, if the serious disease affects their ability to perform the essential 
functions of their job, these employees are to be treated like other employees with 
disabilities that limit their job performance. 

7.15.2 Employees who are diagnosed with a serious disease and wish to request WSA’s 
assistance with employment related issues should contact HR.  HR will review policy and 
resources available. 

7.15.3 Employees concerned about being infected with a serious disease by a co-worker, 
or customer, should convey this concern to HR in a confidential and professional manner.  
All aspects of the existing or perceived situation and any possible remedies will be 
reviewed thoroughly. 

165



7.15.4 Employees who refuse to work with or perform services for a person known or 
suspected of having a serious disease or condition will be subject to disciplinary action, 
up to and including termination. 

7.16 Solicitation and Distribution 

All employees are entitled to perform their work without being interrupted with solicitations. 
Therefore, WSA has adopted the following no-solicitation and no- distribution rules: 

7.16.1 Non-employees are not permitted on WSA premises for the purpose of solicitation 
of employees or distributing written materials or notices or consumer products to them.  
WSA may, on occasion, make the exception to the foregoing rule for limited 
communications that are both monitored by WSA and are strictly related to charitable 
purposes, sponsored by WSA. 

7.16.2 Bulletin boards (both physical and electronic), E-mail, and walls in common areas 
are to be used only for posting or distributing material directly related to WSA’s business 
purposes.  Notices and postings of a personal, organizational, social, or other non-
business nature are prohibited. 

7.16.3 The solicitation of any employee by another employee during the working time of 
either the employee being solicited or the working time of the employee doing the 
soliciting is prohibited.  Working time is defined as those time periods during which an 
employee is engaged in the actual performance of his/her work and excludes breaks, 
lunch, rest periods or other free time. 

7.16.4 The distribution of non-WSA sanctioned materials, printed or otherwise, in 
working areas is prohibited, regardless of source or time. 

7.16.5 All members of management should uniformly apply and enforce this policy and 
take action if improper solicitation or distribution of written material or products occurs. 

7.17 Agency-Issued Cellular Phone Usage 

WSA provides cellular phone equipment and service to employees to assist in the performance 
of their jobs, on an as-needed basis.  Cell phones are intended for official use.  The following 
guidelines shall apply to the use of cell phones: 

7.17.1 Phone plans are purchased for the benefit of the company.  These plans are not 
intended for regular personal use by the employee.  Reasonable use of cell phones for 
personal business is permitted, excessive personal use may result in disciplinary action or 
reimbursement, if there are excess charges. 

7.17.1.1 If the agency-issued cell phone is utilized for personal use, the 

166



employee is expected to reimburse WSA, as follows: 

7.17.1.1.1 Minutes used in excess of the plan’s monthly recurring 
charges, without justification, will be reimbursed at the plan’s overage 
rate; 

7.17.1.1.2 Charges that result in additional cost to the agency, (e.g. 
roaming or texting), related to personal use, will be reimbursed at the 
established or overage rate; 

7.17.1.1.3 It is the responsibility of the user to identify personal calls 
and promptly pay the amount due to the Fiscal Department on a monthly 
basis. 

7.17.3 Phone records are subject to a monthly audit. 

7.17.4 Use of company phones must occur only under safe operating conditions; hands- 
free operation when driving is allowed only when driving safety is not at issue. Texting 
while driving is prohibited.  Failure to comply may result in loss of cell phone privileges 
and disciplinary action. 

7.17.5 Regardless of whether the cell phone is agency-issued or personal, employees 
should never use any type of photographic feature on the phone to take pictures on 
company premises, while conducting agency business, or at company- sponsored events 
without the express consent of management. 

7.17.6 Penalty for abuse or unauthorized use of a company phone may range from loss 
of phone privileges to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 

7.18 Use of Agency Owned or Leased Vehicles and Driving for Company Business 

7.18.1 WSA provides a vehicle (owned or leased) for agency staff to use for company 
business.  Staff members who may drive the agency vehicle from time to time and those 
who drive their own vehicles for company business are required to follow this policy. 

7.18.1.1 All WSA employees will be designated as drivers when they present 
their valid Texas drivers’ licenses and proof of liability insurance to the HR 
Representative prior to driving the vehicle and have no problems with driver’s 
license, driving record, or auto insurance. 

 
7.18.1.1.1 The HR Department will use a third party to run the licenses 
through the Department of Motor Vehicles for license restriction, 
revocation, or suspension of the license at the time the license is first 
received and annually thereafter. 

167



 
7.18.1.2 The vehicle will be provided for agency related business only.  
Personal use is forbidden.  Such use will subject the employee to disciplinary 
action up to and including termination. 

 
7.18.1.3 Bona fide agency guests may be passengers in the agency vehicle. 

 
7.18.1.4 The Fiscal Department will maintain comprehensive and liability 
insurance for the vehicle.  The proof of liability insurance will be maintained in the 
vehicle at all times. 

 
7.18.1.5 WSA will provide a credit card for payment of gas and emergency 
services only. Use of the credit card for other purposes will result in disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination. 

7.18.2 Agency Vehicle scheduling and maintenance - The Director of Procurement and 
Contracting will have custodial responsibility for the vehicle and will take reasonable 
precautions ensuring that the vehicle is properly maintained, accounted for, and 
protected from damage, loss, and unreasonable deterioration, and theft 

7.18.2.1 The Director of Procurement and Contracting, or designee, will 
implement adequate maintenance procedures to keep the vehicle in good and safe 
working condition, to include: securing maintenance warranties and following the 
manufacturer’s recommended maintenance procedures and assure the vehicle is 
inspected on a regular basis to determine its overall safety, including tire inflation and 
inspection of lights, signals, and horn.  A roadside assistance plan will be procured and 
implemented to support WSA drivers. 

 
7.18.2.2 __________________________ will maintain a computerized 
schedule log on the agency’s shared drive for driver access and scheduling. 

 
7.18.2.2.1 Employees who drive for business related activities must 
check the availability of the agency vehicle before planning travel, both 
within and beyond the Alamo region, and are expected to use the vehicle 
when it is available.  Failure to use the available vehicle may result in non-
reimbursement for business travel.  Requests for exceptions to this policy 
must be made in writing to the CEO/designee, prior to travel. 

 
7.18.2.2.2 Scheduling priority will be given to the driver who must 
travel outside Bexar County or when conducting investigations, such as for 
the Fraud Investigator. 

 
7.18.2.2.3 Employees will pick up the vehicle key and 
gas/maintenance card when signing for the vehicle. 

168



 
7.18.2.3 The Procurement and Contracting Manager, or designee, will 
maintain a vehicle mileage log to include the following information: name of 
driver, date and time of vehicle sign out, reason for trip, odometer reading at end 
of travel, gas tank reading, and garage parking location. 

17.8.3 Driver’s responsibilities: When an employee drives a vehicle (personal, the 
agency’s owned, or leased/rented), in conjunction with work, he/she is responsible for 
complying with the following obligations and others, which may be applicable: 

17.8.3.1 Drive in a safe, courteous, and defensive manner; hands-free 
operation of cell phones, when driving, is allowed only when driving safety is not at 
issue; texting, tweeting, and accessing social media while driving is prohibited. 

 
17.8.3.2 Will take reasonable precautions ensuring that the vehicle is 
accounted for, and protected from damage, loss, and unreasonable deterioration, 
and theft.  Will walk around the vehicle before the trip and again at the end of the 
trip to note any changes to the exterior appearance of the vehicle and to tire 
condition or pressure.  Will report warning lights that come on during the trip or 
any changes in how the vehicle operates to WSA. 

 
17.8.3.3 Use the seatbelts or other available restraints and require 
occupants to do so, in accordance with Texas law, regardless of speed or distance 
to be traveled.  The number of passengers will never exceed the number of 
seatbelts in the vehicle. 

 
17.8.3.4 Smoking is never allowed in a WSA vehicle. 

 
17.8.3.5 Eating and drinking beverages, other than water, is not allowed in 
the WSA vehicle.  The driver is responsible for disposing of all accumulated trash 
before returning the car. 

 
17.8.3.6 Drive the vehicle at legal speeds, appropriate for traffic, weather, 
road conditions. 

 
17.8.3.7 Assume sole responsibility for all fines or traffic violations arising 
from the use of the WSA vehicle, personal or rental vehicle while on agency 
business. 

 
17.8.3.8 Will take the most direct and practical route to and from the 
intended destination while conducting company business. 

 
17.8.3.7.1 Employees are expected to use discretion in selecting 
restaurants and other businesses that are in reasonable proximity to the 

169



meeting or hotel.  Extended mileage will be questioned and may be denied 
without reasonable justification. 

 
17.8.3.9 Immediately or at most, within 24 hours, report any accident, 
even if minor, which occurs while on WSA business or in a WSA vehicle to your 
supervisor; call the police on all accidents and obtain a copy of the police report. 

 
17.8.3.10 Illegal substances, alcohol, weapons and other contraband can 
never be stored, transported, placed, or used in or on the vehicle. 

 
17.8.3.11 Drivers will not permit unauthorized individuals to ride in or 
operate the vehicle; in an emergency, may grant an exception to this policy, in 
writing. 

 
17.8.3.12 Drivers may use the vehicle to transport WSA equipment from site 
to site provided the total value of equipment beings transported does not exceed 
$10,000.00. 

 
17.8.3.13 Semi-annually, or at renewal, drivers provide HR with a copy of 
proof of insurance for your vehicle; after having renewed the Texas Driver' 
License, provide HR with the new expiration date. 

 
17.8.3.14 Immediately report any problems with your driving record, 
insurance or license to HR.  Matters you must immediately report include, but are 
not limited to: 

 
17.8.3.14.1 Revocation or suspension of your driving license; 

 
17.8.3.14.2 Termination, expiration or suspension of your auto 
insurance; 

 
17.8.3.14.3 Any arrest or conviction (including deferred adjudication) 
related to operating a vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, an 
illegal substance, or controlled substance. 

 
17.8.3.15 The driver is required to fill the tank, using the WSA fleet card, if 
the reading is below a half a tank when returning the vehicle; if a car wash is 
available and the car is in need of a car wash, the driver is authorized to use the 
credit card for the car wash. 

 
17.8.3.16 The driver will not take the vehicle home, overnight. 

 
17.8.3.17 When returning the car to the garage, the driver will note the 
garage level to which the car is being returned and whether the location is on the 

170



ascending or descending level on the log form. 
  

171



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF WSA POLICY, # 7.18 

USE OF AGENCY OWNED OR LEASED VEHICLES AND DRIVING FOR COMPANY BUSINESS with 

AUTHORIZATION FOR MVR REPORT 
 

 
 

As a driver of an agency vehicle or my own vehicle on the agency’s behalf, I understand that it 
is my responsibility to operate the vehicle in a safe manner and to drive defensively to prevent 
injuries and property damage.  I know that I must have a valid Texas Driver’s License with me 
at all times when driving on company business. I will maintain liability insurance on my own 
vehicles that I drive on company business.  I will comply with agency, state and local regulations 
regarding driving a motor vehicle. 

 
I also understand that WSA will periodically review my Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) to 
determine continued eligibility to drive an agency vehicle or operate my own/rental vehicle 
on the agency’s behalf.  In accordance with the Fair Credit Reporting Act, I have been informed 
that a Motor Vehicle Record will be obtained periodically for me for continued driving purposes.   
Inability to drive may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

 
I acknowledge the receipt of this disclosure and authorize my employer or its designated agent 
to obtain a Motor Vehicle Record Report.  This authorization if valid as long as I am employed by 
this agency or a candidate for employment and may only be rescinded in writing. 
 
 
 

     
Employee Name (Print) 
 
TDL number:  

Expiration date:  

Date of birth:  
 

 
 
 
           
Employee Signature     Date 
 
 
 
           
Reviewer Signature     Date 
 
  

172



SECTION VIII 

RULES OF CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY PROCESS 

8.1 Standards of Conduct and Disciplinary Process 
 

8.1.1 General Standards of Professional Work.  Each employee must maintain the 
highest standards of performance and conduct. When dealing with customers, business 
contacts, other employees, contractors, vendors and suppliers, agency employees will 
comply with the highest ethical, regulatory, and business standards.  If there is any 
doubt or question, employees will discuss the matter with an appropriate manager of 
WSA. 

 
8.1.2 Compliance with Professional and Regulatory Standards.  Employees are hired 
with the expectations that they are not only qualified for their positions but, that they 
will undertake the initiative and effort to maintain the necessary skills and qualifications 
for the position.  Accordingly, each employee has the following responsibilities: 

 
8.1.2.1 Knowing and complying with the highest professional and ethical 
standards applicable to the position; 

 
8.2.1.2 Acquiring and maintaining licenses, continuing education or certifications 
applicable to the services rendered by the employee; 

 
8.2.1.3 Learning, understanding, and applying any current or new standards, 
rules, regulations, or laws which may be applicable to the position; 

 
8.1.2.4 Although WSA may from time to time conduct staff and informational 
meetings, employees are still responsible for and will be held accountable for 
knowing and complying with all applicable standards and requirements 
applicable to their jobs. 

 
8.1.3 Guidelines for Employee Conduct 

 
8.1.3.1 These standards are necessary to protect the health and safety of 
employees, contractors, vendors, visitors, and clients we serve; to maintain 
uninterrupted operational deficiency; and to protect WSA goodwill, reputation, 
and property; 

 
8.1.3.2 No list of infractions can be exhaustive.  However, the following list 
includes examples of behavior that are disruptive to the workplace and are 
grounds for disciplinary action.  WSA reserves the right to interpret and apply 
these rules and guidelines and to determine, at its sole discretion, the degree of 
discipline to be issued to the employee for violating any rule or engaging in any 
other misconduct.  WSA may consider the circumstances involved, the 

173



employee’s overall work record with the agency, and other pertinent factors; 

 
8.1.3.3 WSA reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to determine the type or 
nature of discipline to be issued in each instance, interpret the applicability of any 
particular disciplinary step, and to initiate discipline at any level it deems 
appropriate under the circumstances.  Each disciplinary step shall be in writing and 
delivered to the employee at the time the disciplinary action is administered.  WSA 
still reserves the right to terminate employees at-will.  Within a 12 month period, 
from the prior disciplinary counseling/documentation, rules of conduct infractions 
and unsatisfactory work performance expectations, will be handled progressively. 
That is, each successive documented counseling will be conducted at the next 
level.  Occasionally, the infraction is so serious that a higher level of disciplinary 
action is warranted, upon approval of the CEO; 

 
8.1.3.4 Investigatory Administrative Leave – When the Executive Director deems 
it to be in the best interest of the agency to investigate a situation and to have 
the employee away from the worksite during the investigation, the employee will 
receive full pay for the days on Investigatory Administrative Leave.  Every attempt 
will be made to complete such investigations as quickly as possible.  On a rare 
occasion, when an external investigation is undertaken, such as one resultant 
from an indictment, administrative leave will be unpaid, but the employee may 
use accrued, unused PTO; 

 
8.1.3.5 All terminations must be coordinated with HR and the CEO prior to 
meeting with the employee. 

 
8.1.4 Examples of misconduct that will lead to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment: 

 
8.1.4.1 Unauthorized removal, disclosure or use of employee information or 
other information related to the WSA’s business; 

 
8.1.4.2 Excessive tardiness or absences or absence or tardiness with or without 
prior notification and with or without available accrued and unused PTO; 

 
8.1.4.3 The unlawful manufacture, distribution, possession, sale or use of alcohol 
or a controlled substance(s) during working hours, on the job, or on property 
controlled, leased, or owned by the WSA; 

 
8.1.4.4 Reporting to work under the influence of alcohol, Drugs, or controlled 
substances without medical authorization; 

 
8.1.4.5 Theft, abuse, neglect, waste, defacement or destruction of equipment, 
supplies, goods or property belonging to the WSA, a fellow employee, or any 

174



member of the public; 

 
8.1.4.6 Leaving an assigned work area or the WSA premises during working hours 
without permission of the supervisor; 

 
8.1.4.7 Creating or contributing to unhealthy, unsanitary or hazardous conditions 
which could cause harm to the employee, fellow employees, contractors, 
customers, or to the public; 

 
8.1.4.8 Possession of firearms, explosives, knives or other illegal weapons on any 
property controlled, leased or owned by the WSA; 

 
8.1.4.9 Gambling in any form, including lotteries and games of chance; 

 
8.1.4.10 Violating safety rules or safety practices; 

 
8.1.4.11 Rude, discourteous, or abusive conduct or language to fellow 
employees, supervisors, customers, or members of the public; 

 
8.1.4.12 Fighting, threatening, intimidating, or endangering a fellow 
employee, supervisor, or member of the public; 

 
8.1.4.13 Insubordination or refusal to follow lawful instructions; 

 
8.1.4.14 Theft, dishonesty or violation of business ethical or professional 
standards; 

 
8.1.4.15 Inability or unwillingness to perform essential duties of the job, 
with or without reasonable accommodation, as appropriate, as outlined in the job 
description; 

 
8.1.4.16 Carelessness, negligence, or other conduct which creates the risk 
of or which causes injury to persons or to the property of the WSA, its customers, 
fellow employees, or members of the public; 

 
8.1.4.17 Making false, vicious or malicious statements concerning a fellow 
employee, supervisor, customer, the WSA or its services; 

 
8.1.4.18 Engaging in any form of harassment or intimidating conduct or 
behavior; 

 
8.1.4.19 Falsifying or altering any WSA record or report, including but not 
limited to: application for employment, time worked records, expense reports, 
or providing misleading or fraudulent information to management orally or in 

175



written form. 

 
8.1.4.20 Illegal or unauthorized entrance into the WSA property; 

 
8.1.4.21  Behavior, regardless of whether on the premises or elsewhere which, 
in the judgment of the WSA, is: 

 
8.1.4.21.1 Indecent or immoral; or 
 
8.1.4.21.2 Inconsistent with the image of the WSA; or 
 
8.1.4.21.3 Casts the WSA in a bad light; or is 
 
8.1.4.21.4 Harmful to the WSA or its image. 

 
8.1.4.22 Sleeping on the job or not using work time productively; 

 
8.1.4.23 Abuse of lunch and other authorized breaks; 

 
8.1.4.24 Utilization of any of the WSA’s supplies, facilities, copiers, faxes, 
equipment, books, computers or other assets for personal use without 
permission; 

 
8.1.4.25 Adding or introducing any software, information, or other 
materials into the WSA’s programs, computers, software, and information 
systems without prior express permission from _______________; 

 
8.1.4.26 Altering or making changes in or to the WSA’s software, 
hardware, computer configurations or attempting to make any repairs to 
computers or the computer networking system without the express prior 
permission of the administrator; 

 
8.1.4.27 Making false or misleading entries into any of the WSA’s 
computers, records, books, files, employment documents, time records, payroll 
records, reimbursement forms or other business related papers; 

 
8.1.4.28 Making or receiving excessive personal telephone calls; 

 
8.1.4.29 Engaging in any activity or business which creates an actual or 
potential conflict of interest with the WSA; 

 
8.1.4.30 Failure to maintain a professional appearance or improper 
workplace attire; 

 

176



8.1.4.31 Failure to report to appropriate management any suspicious, 
unethical, or illegal conduct by fellow employees, contractors, customers, 
suppliers, or visitors; 

 
8.1.4.32 Breach of confidentiality policies, including encryption of sensitive 
information; 

 
8.1.4.33 Failure to maintain required licenses, certifications, and other 
qualifications to perform his/her work; and/or 

 
8.1.4.34 Failure to attend mandatory staff development sessions, staff 
meetings, and other meetings; 

 
8.1.4.35 Smoking in unauthorized locations. 

 
8.1.5 Disciplinary action for infractions may proceed as follows unless WSA determines, 
at its sole discretion, that a variation, acceleration of discipline, or exception is 
appropriate and are defined as follows: 

 
8.1.5.1 Documented Oral Warning (Counseling) -To be used when the supervisor 
identifies a negative issue and discusses it with the employee.  The purpose of this 
step is to resolve problems quickly so further action is not necessary; 

 
8.1.5.2 Written warning - To be used when an employee has committed an act 
or a series of acts that ultimately may lead to further disciplinary action. This is 
often the second step of progressive discipline.  Supervisors, when issuing a 
written warning will have a third party witness, either HR or another supervisor, 
witness the disciplinary session. 

 
8.1.5.3 First and/or final warning or suspension without pay - Used when an 
employee has committed a major act or a series of acts subject to disciplinary 
action.  The final warning may be given instead of a suspension.  A suspension 
without pay may be set for a period of time ranging from one (1) day to one 
work week.  During a suspension, an employee shall not be eligible to use or 
accrue PTO. 

 
8.1.5.4 Demotion - Used when an employee has committed a major disciplinary 
infraction or cannot perform the essential job duties, as outlined in the job 
description, with reasonable accommodation if appropriate, to the satisfaction 
of management. 

 
8.1.5.5 Termination - Used when an employee has committed a major act, 
repeated acts for which prior disciplinary action has been taken, or for inability 
to perform  essential job duties, as outlined in the job description, with 

177



reasonable accommodation if appropriate, to the satisfaction of management. 
 

8.1.6 Disciplinary action may begin at any of the four levels indicated above depending 
on the circumstances and will follow progressive guidelines, as noted in 8.1.4.3, above. 
Among the factors which WSA may consider in the application of disciplinary are: 

 
8.2 Grievance Procedures 
 

WSA provides a procedure to settle grievances between the supervisory personnel and 
employees as quickly and, at as low administrative level as possible, to assure efficient work 
operations and maintain employee morale. 

 
8.2.1 As part of WSA’s commitment to open communication, employees are 
encouraged to ask questions and to inform their managers of work-related problems.  
Most problems can be and are resolved informally, but if attempts at informal resolution 
are not satisfactory, a formal Grievance process is available. 

 
8.2.2 A Grievance may not be filed relative to the content of any job description or 
matters related to wage, salary and benefits.  The only exception is if it pertains to the 
equal application of related policies and procedures. 

 
8.2.3 Coverage:  Regular full-time employees have full access to the grievance 
procedures.  Temporary employees have limited access to the grievance procedures.  
They may go to the supervisor one step above their own supervisor using the informal 
grievance procedures for the resolution of employment problems, but do not have access 
to the grievance procedure relative to dismissal action.  
8.2.4 If the Grievance does not allege a violation of any federal or state statute, the 
grievance should be filed with HR for review.  If the grievance is not resolved within five 
(5) days to the satisfaction of the employee, the matter will be forwarded to the CEO for 
review, whose decision shall be final (with exception of WIA employees). 

 
8.2.5 All grievances will be written, submitted within 10 days of the incident, and 
include the following items: 

 
8.2.5.1 Name, position, date of hire, date of grievance; 

 
8.2.5.2 The date the incident occurred; 

 
8.2.5.3 A brief summary of the incident, including the reason why the grievance is 
being filed; people directly involved in the incident; witnesses; 

 
8.2.5.4 Resolution requested. 
 

8.2.5 Grievances that allege discrimination on the basis of age, sex, race, color, national 

178



origin, disability, religion, political affiliation or belief, and for citizenship or participation 
in programs funded under the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) shall be processed in 
accordance with the WIA rules, Subchapter F, Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment 
Act, 20 USC, 667.600-667.650. 

 
8.2.6 In addition to the Grievance procedures set forth in 20 USC Part 660, and in 
accordance with the grievance procedures in 29 CFR, Part 37.70 et seq., 40 TAC 841.208 
etc. establishes state procedures for resolving allegations of violations of the Federal Act 
in the operation of WIA programs and activities.  These procedures cover complaints 
alleging a non-criminal violation of the Federal Act and do not apply to complaints of 
discrimination.  The State may waive specific provisions of this state grievance procedure 
upon the agreement of all parties.  Complaints alleging a WIA non-criminal violation shall 
be processed in accordance with WIA rules. 

 

SECTION IX 

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 

 

9.1 Employment Termination 
 

Termination of employment is an inevitable part of personnel activity within any organization. 
Below are examples of some of the most common circumstances under which employment is 
terminated: 

 
9.1.1 Resignation – is a voluntary employment termination initiated by an employee. 

 
9.1.1.1 An employee who desires to leave the agency in good standing will submit 
his/her resignation to his supervisor or to HR in writing, and give at least a two 
week notice of intention to leave the organization.  Failure of staff members to 
give a two week notice and managers of all levels to give four weeks’ notice 
will make the employee ineligible for re-hire.  Exceptions are at the discretion of 
the CEO; 

 
9.1.1.2 Final paychecks will be directly deposited on the next scheduled pay day, 
can be picked up at WSA, or mailed to a specified address.  It is the terminating 
employee’s responsibility to keep WSA advised of his/her current mailing address 
for post-termination mailings; 

 
9.1.1.3 Generally, an exit interview is scheduled with HR during the final few 
days of employment, to seek input about general working conditions and 
suggestions for improvement. See Policy 9.3 for details; 

 
9.1.1.4 An exit checklist will be completed and all equipment, keys, or other 
items provided by WSA will be returned and any financial settlement for 

179



equipment or special expenditures on the employee’s behalf will be discussed and 
arranged. 

 
9.1.2 Discharge – is an involuntary employment termination initiated by the 
organization.  In accordance with the Texas Payday Law, final pay is due to the employee 
within six (6) days of termination. 

 
9.1.3 Layoff or Reduction-In-Force – is an involuntary employment termination, 
initiated by the organization, not for disciplinary reasons.  WSA has the right to lay off 
employees at-will, with or without cause, and at any time.  See Policy 9.2 for details. In 
accordance with the Texas Payday Law, final pay is due to the employee within six (6) 
days of termination. 
 

9.1.4 Retirement - is voluntary employment termination, initiated by the employee, 
who meets age, length of service, and other criteria for retirement from the 
organization. 
 

9.2 Reduction in Force 
 

WSA may, as a business necessity, decrease the number of workers employed.  The agency has 
the right to reduce its workforce at any time and will determine the functions and the most 
effective mix of job classifications and/or skills necessary for reduced operation.  The CEO will 
notify the Board of any reduction-in-force. 

 
9.2.1 A reduction in force is a decrease in the number of authorized employees or a 
decrease in the number of employees in a specific classification, resulting from 
discontinuing a service, organizational changes, functional reassignments of tasks, a 
reduction in funds authorized, or other factors deemed appropriate by WSA, at its sole 
and exclusive discretion, and is not considered a disciplinary action. 

 
9.2.2 Whenever appropriate, employees in positions to be deleted may be considered 
for assignment to other open positions in the agency, for which they are qualified, in the 
same or another departments.  This action, if it occurs, will be coordinated through the 
CEO, HR and the applicable directors. 

 
9.2.3 When a reduction in force occurs, after determining the functions most necessary 
to retain, WSA will utilize the following criteria, in descending order, to determine which 
employees will be affected, when more than one employee in the same position is 
considered. 

 
9.2.3.1 Employees in the introductory period, during the first 90 days of 
employment or on performance probation while on an active Work Performance 
Improvement Plan; 

 

180



9.2.3.2 If additional employees in the same position must be eliminated, the 
following criteria are considered: 

 
9.2.3.2.1 Overall performance within the past 12 months, according 
to the most recent performance evaluation; 

 
9.2.3.2.2 Written disciplinary record within the past 12 months; 

 
9.2.3.2.3 Attendance/tardiness record within the past 12 months; 
and 

 
9.2.3.2.4 Length of service according to the most recent period of 
continuous employment. 

 
9.2.4 In the case of a reduction in force, no recall plan will be implemented. 

 

9.3 Exit Interviews 

 
WSA will generally schedule exit interviews for all employees who voluntarily terminate their 
employment.  Departing employee feedback is important. 

 
9.3.1 The exit interview will afford an exiting employee the opportunity to discuss 
such issues as employee benefits, conversion privileges, repayment of outstanding debts 
to WSA, or return of WSA owned property.  Suggestions, complaints, and questions will 
be solicited.   

 
9.3.2 Exit interviews are also utilized to identify positive and negative trends and to 
pinpoint areas for improvement and change within the organization. 
 

181



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:    Workforce Solutions Alamo Board- Executive Committee    

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO   

 

Date:    June 5 ,2020 

 

Subject: Organization Review by Management Advisory Group 

International (MAG) 

 

Summary:  This item is to provide an update on the organization review by MAG.  The final report 

has been received and 3 different options were presented.  Dr. Donald Long, President of MAG, 

is in attendance today to provide an overview of the final report. 

Analysis:   MAG was procured to conduct an organizational review of WSA.  They conducted an 

organizational review and classification and compensation study.  The scope of the study included 

all fulltime employees. They compared salaries to the market and identified needed market 

adjustments to the current plan. They ensured that all jobs are properly classified and Identified 

optimal structure. They also developed a classification and compensation system. 

 

Alternatives:   None considered  

 

Fiscal Impact:  $17,000 consultant fee plus an additional estimated annualized payroll increase 

of $12,061, $66,630, or $174,154 depending on which of the three implementation options are 

selected. 

 

Recommendation:  None 

 

Next Steps:  The HR Committee will vote on which implementation strategy should be selected 

at their June 11, 2020 meeting.  Next, the HR Committee’s recommendation will be taken to 

Board for approval. Then CEO, CFO and HR will develop a detailed plan to put the changes in 

effect and communicate the changes to all staff. 

 

 

182



Presentation

Compensation and Classification Study

June 2020

183



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Study Goals and Objectives

• Organizational Review and Classification and Compensation Study.
• Scope includes all full‐time employees.
• Compare salaries to the market and identify needed market 

adjustments to the current plan.
• Ensure that all jobs are properly classified.
• Identify optimal structure.
• Develop classification and compensation system.

2

184



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Methodology

 Captured key employee data.
 Conducted employee sessions to explain project and their role.
 Identified jobs where recruitment and retention are concerns.
 Conducted interviews with top management and all staff.
 Gathered salary and compensation data from competitor organizations;
 Reviewed job data from employees for included classifications.
 Evaluated organizational structure and reporting relationships.
 Changed selected job titles to reflect work being done.
 Recommending changes to support an internally equitable and externally 

competitive compensation system.
 Developed implementation/transition costs.

3

185



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020
4

186



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2019

Job Evaluation Factors

5

• Data Responsibility
• Judgment
• People Responsibility
• Complexity of Work
• Assets Responsibility
• Impact of Decisions
• Education

• Equipment Usage
• Physical Demands
• Communications
• Math
• Unavoidable Hazards
• Safety of Others
• Experience

187



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

MAG’s Review of Markets

6

Surveyed organizations included:

 Alamo Heights
 City of Kirby
 City of Terrell Hills
 City of Windcrest
 San Antonio ISD
 Workforce Solutions Brazos Valley
 Workforce Solutions Cameron
 Workforce Solutions Capital Area
 Workforce Solutions for Tarrant County
 Workforce Solutions Greater Dallas
 Workforce Solutions Gulf Coast
 Workforce Solutions North Texas
 Workforce Solutions Permian Basin
 O’Net

188



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

MAG’s Review of Markets

7

Summary of Market Survey Results:

 “Lag” at the minimums: 23.08%

 “Lag” at the midpoints: 19.62%

 “Lag” at the maximums: 17.51%

189



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Organizational Review: Key Points

8

 Change as a constant.
 Generally positive staff work attitudes.
 Commitment to help community.
 Numerous examples of pride in work being done (paperless,

clean audit, helping people directly).
 Need to improve communications at all levels and directions.
 Streamline budget and procurement processes.
 Update personnel manual and policies.
 Administrative functions under CFO and program functions

under COO are positive. IT under operations should help.
 Recent changes to span of control appear to be working (6 to

CEO; 7 to COO; and 3 to CFO).
 HR as direct report to CEO is encouraged.

190



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020
9

CEO
Adrian Lopez

Executive Asst/Board Liaison
Linda Martinez 

HR Director 
Lisa Bartee

Data Officer
Dr. Guerro-
Guajardo

Marketing & Social 
Media Coordinator

Gino Morin

COO
Mark Milton

CFO
Louis 
TatumBusiness Engagement 

Manager
Tiffany Harris

Childcare Services 
Manager

Tony Martinez

Child Care 
Specialist 

Jessica Lockhart

Sr. Child Care 
Financial Analyst

Carlos Garcia

Programs Mgr - TANF
Vickie Reece

Programs Mgr - WIOA
Rick Garcia

WF Specialist 
Spec Initiatives
Carol Chavez

Disability Navigator
Janice Berechi-

Onyejiako

Disability 
Navigator

Donna Mims

Director of Data and 
Analytics 

Ricardo Ramirez

MIS Admin
Frank 

Martinez

MIS Tech
Monica Godina

WF Specialist-
LMI

Miriam Botello

MIS Tech
Becky 

Alvarado

Director of Quality 
Assurance

Vacant

Senior Workforce Monitor
Vacant

Chief 
Accountant

Angela Bush

Accounting 
Manager

Esmeralda 
Ramirez

Senior Accountant
Geo Vela

Senior Accountant
Angie Miranda

Staff Accountant 
Anna Mascareñas

Director of Procurement
LaVonia Horne-Williams

Staff Accountant
Beatrice 

Therwhanger

Staff Accountant 
John Amaro

Contract &  
Procurement Sp.
Cynthia Caruso

IT Director
Orrin Garcia

Network 
Specialist II
Chris Vega

Network 
Specialist III
Jacob Flores

Network 
Specialist I

Juan Palencia

Network 
Specialist II

Aaron Bieniek

Staff Accountant
Lix Okamura-

Ybanez 

Inventory 
Spec/504 

Coordinator 
Marty Pena

WF Specialist-Youth
Shantelle Artis

Workforce Solutions Alamo Organization Chart

191



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Recommendations

 Adopt organizational structure.

 Adopt Unified Plan for all 33 position titles.

 Open ranges are recommended due to increasingly “best practice”.

 MAG recommends setting the ranges at 50%, (minimum to maximum).

 There is 5% between proposed grades.

 Results:

 Establishes a competitive position overall and for all positions.
 Makes the entry levels competitive.
 Brings the ranges in line with the market.

10

192



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2019

Implementation Approaches

 The recommended implementation target date is set at July 1, 2020.

 Of the 39 employees covered in this study,   7 employees are below the 
proposed market minimums. This would be a “minimum” plan.

 Optional implementation plans are provided, and can be based on:
 length of service in current position;
 penetration into range;
 across the board and length of service in position.

 Implementation Options on the following pages:

11

193



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Estimated Annualized Costs
Option 1: Minimum Plan

12

Total of 39 Positions Annualized Amounts

Adjustment to Minimums $ 12,061

Employee equity adjustments based on 
promotion date.

$ n/a

Total Annualized Adjustments: $ 12,061

Number of people with adjustments of any 
kind. 

7

Change in Total Payroll for included positions .45 %

194



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Estimated Annualized Costs
Option 2: Time in Position Plan

13

Total of 39 Positions Annualized Amounts

Adjustment to Minimums $ 12,061

Employee equity adjustments based on 
promotion date.

$ 54,568

Total Annualized Adjustments: $  66,630

Number of people with adjustments of any 
kind. 

13

Change in Total Payroll for included positions 2.49 %

195



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Estimated Annualized Costs
Option 3: Range Penetration Plan

14

Total of 39 Positions Annualized Amounts

Adjustment to Minimums $ 12,061

Employee equity adjustments based on 
maintaining current range penetration.

$162,093

Total Annualized Adjustments: $ 174,154

Number of people with adjustments of any 
kind. 

38

Change in Total Payroll for included positions 6.51 %

196



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Estimated Annualized Costs
Option 4: Across Board, Minimum, Time in Position

15

Total of 39 Positions Annualized Amounts

Across the Board 2% Adjustment $ 53,540

Adjustment to Minimums $ 7,514

Employee equity adjustments based on time 
in position.

$  48,101

Total Annualized Adjustments: $ 109,155

Number of people with adjustments of any 
kind. 

39

Change in Total Payroll for included positions 4.08 %

197



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Recommendations on Policies

 MAG has provided suggested personnel policies for:

 Reclassification
 Promotion
 Lateral Transfer
 Temporary Assignment
 Hiring
 Addressing employees who “max out”.

 The suggested policies reflect best practices in the field of HR.

16

198



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2020

Transition Plan

Next steps include the following:

 Adopt the classification levels and individual assignments.

 Adopt the new compensation plan structure and ranges.

 Review, adjust and adopt personnel polices to guide key aspects of 
compensation.

 Implement new structure and equity adjustments effective July 1, 2020.

17

199



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:    Executive Committee    

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

Water  

Presented by:  LaVonia Horne-Williams, Procurement & Contracting Director 

 

Date:    June 05, 2020  

 

Subject:   Human Resources Consulting Services RFP 

 

 

Summary:  Workforce Solutions Alamo (WSA) issues Request for Qualifications (RFQ), 
Request for Proposals (RFP), and Request for Quotes (RFQ) to acquire services and 
goods. Procurements are conducted in a manner which provides for full, open and free 
competition. The procurement of all goods and services for WSA is governed by the 
requirements and specifications outlined in the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) 
Financial Manual for Grants and Contracts, Chapter 14, Office of Management and 
Budget’s “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards” (Uniform Guidance (UG)) which is codified at Title 2, 
Part 200 of the Code of Federal Regulations (2 CFR part 200) and the Uniform Grant 
Management Standards (UGMS), Part III, Chapter 783 Texas Government Code. 
 

Analysis:  As an entity supported by public funds, WSA has a legal obligation to spend 

public funds wisely and prudently, to act in the public interest, to be transparent in its 

actions, and be accountable to the public. As the Director of Procurement and 

Contracting, the goal of my team is to ensure our department reviews all requests for 

purchases of goods, services, equipment, software, hardware, and subscriptions for best 

value.  

 

The Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued to obtain Human Resources consulting 

services to review and make recommendations on current WSA Human Resources 

management practices, Policy and Procedures Manual, and other human resources 

functions, programs and procedures. The RFP was issued on April 15, 2020 and 

responses were due May 15, 2020. WSA received three proposals from Historically 

Underutilized Businesses (HUB). The proposals were evaluated and scored. After the 

evaluation process, a firm was recommended for award.  
 

 

 

200



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Alternatives:  N/A 

 

Fiscal Impact:  $15,000.00 and the project is fully funded and by cost allocated funding 

source 

 

Recommendation:  Staff is recommending contract award to KAS Consulting Group, 

Inc. 

 

Next Steps: If approved, contract negotiation and execution. 
 

 

 

 

201



Request for Proposal (RFP) 
HR Consultant Services 

Contracts and Procurement

June 5, 2020 

202



Procurement & Contracting

Procurement Lifecycle
1. Needs Assessment/Planning/Finance

2. Determining Sourcing Options

3. Creating the Solicitation (RFQ/RFP)

4. Issuing the Solicitation

5. Receiving the Responses/Quotes

6. Evaluation

7. Selection/Award

8. Negotiation

9. Execution of Contract

203



Procurement Methods

Micro-Purchase: threshold of up to $0-$3,000.00 per purchase 

Small Purchase: must obtain price or rate quotations from an adequate number of qualified sources for all 

purchases that exceed the micro-purchase threshold of $3,000.01-$150,000.00.

Sealed Bid (IFB)/Competitive Bid (RFP): both methods of procurement are appropriate when purchasing 

goods/services for which the aggregate cost exceeds the simplified acquisition threshold of $150,000.

Non-Competitive/Sole Source: Bids may be solicited from only one source if the contracting officer 

determines that only one source is reasonably available or if after solicitation of a number of sources, 

competition is determined to be inadequate.

Cooperative Purchase: Goods and services purchased through the Texas Department of Information 

Resources (DIR), State of Texas CO-OP, and Texas Multiple Award Schedule (TXMAS) Program have been 

competitively procured and are made available to members through state term contracts, without 

requirements to conduct additional procurement activities.

204



Selection Process

• A Request for Quotation (RFQ) is used when discussions with bidders are not required (mainly
when the specifications of a product or service are already known) and when price is a primary
factor in selecting the successful bidder.

• A Request for Proposal (RFP) is used where the request requires technical expertise, specialized
capability, or where the product or service being requested does not yet exist, and the proposal
may require research and development to create whatever is being requested.

o The RFP presents preliminary requirements for the commodity or service, and may dictate to varying degrees the exact
structure and format of the vendor's response.

o Our objective was to solicit proposals from qualified vendors and identify which vendor would be the best-qualified to
complete the project.

o Evaluation metrics included past experience, experience of key personnel, quality of service, industry reputation, and
pricing. After the assessment is complete, proposers were ranked and the highest ranked vendor was recommended for
award of the contract.

205



Questions?

206



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:    Executive Committee  

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Mark Milton, Chief Operating Officer 

 

Date:    June 5, 2020 

 

Subject:   Briefing Regarding Programs & Performance Report 

 

 

Summary:  This item is to provide an update of and highlight elements related to Programs and 

Performance.   

 

Analysis:   

1) TWC-Contracted Performance: Meeting and/or Exceeding all TWC-contracted 

performance measures. 

 

2) Special Grants & Other Initiatives:   

a) Received $1.3 million in additional funding to serve Dislocated workers in Disaster Relief 

and related employment.   

b) Received $250k in Skills Development funding to serve local businesses and support.  

c) Anticipating receipt of approximately $ 400,000 in COVID relief equipment, supplies and 

support.   

d) Discontinued grants include SEAL and Teacher Externships 

3) Child Care: Essential Worker Child Care has ended.  TWC did provide us with $17 million 

for essential care that was allocated for:  1.) funding for day care centers that remained 

open but did not have children during this pandemic, and 2.) serve nearly 3,000 children 

from essential worker families.   

 

Other:   

• Re-Opening Plan Underway: Anticipating 6/15.   

• DOL Monitoring: recommendations related to policies and procedures (to be developed 

by Contractors).  Outstanding reviews tied to Case Notes. 

• Bexar County Partnership: Expecting to work closely with Bexar County on serving the 

outlying areas of the county.  WSA role will focus on outreach, recruitment, assessment, 

referrals and training.   

• Capacity Planning:  We are working with the contractors to build out projections for the 

total amount of individuals we can effectively serve.   

207



• RFP Call Center Ops:  RFP has been submitted for call center and general job 

assistance programs for UI claimants.  Business Outreach has been added as a 

potential option as well.     

 

• Youth Job Skills: 

o Job Skills program has been extended from May of 2020 to May of 2021 TWC 

targeting ‘opportunity’ youth – out-of-school youth with no High 

School/Equivalency to enroll/attain HS/Equivalency Diploma, or if they have a 

HS/Equivalency to enroll in post-secondary.  Includes credential attainment and 

job placement, and focus is on STEM. 

o Funding and goals/deliverables were contracted to both C2 GPS and SERCO.   

 

 

 

 

208



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE & 
SERVICES REPORTS 

 
APRIL 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 

209



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WORKFORCE PROGRAM REPORTS 
  
 

 
 

210



 
  

WIOA Adult Definition Target YTD % Target Status

Adult Employed in the 2nd Quarter
The percentage of WIOA Adult registered participants in unsubsidized employment during 
the 2nd quarter after exit from the program.

81.50% 82.86% 101.67% MP

Adult Employed in the 4th Quarter
Percentage of WIOA Adult registered participants who are in unsubsidized employment 
during the 4th quarter after exit from the program.

82.50% 83.29% 100.96% MP

Adult Median Earnings in the 2nd 

Quarter
Median earnings of WIOA Adult registered participants during the 2nd Quarter after exit from 
the program.

n a $8,404.65 n a n a

Adult Credential Rate
Percentage of WIOA Adult registered participants who obtain a post-secondary credential or 
a secondary school diploma or equivalent during participation in or within one year after exit 
from the program.

87.50% 87.30% 99.77% MP

WIOA Dislocated Worker Definition Target YTD % Target Status

DW Employed in the 2nd Quarter
The percentage of WIOA DW registered participants in unsubsidized employment during the 
2nd quarter after exit from the program.

85.20% 83.55% 98.06% MP

DW Employed in the 4th Quarter
Percentage of WIOA DW registered participants who are in unsubsidized employment during 
the 4th quarter after exit from the program.

82.90% 77.66% 93.68% MP

DW Median Earnings in the 2nd 

Quarter
Median earnings of WIOA DW registered participants during the 2nd Quarter after exit from 
the program.

n a $8,512.44 n a n a

DW Credential Rate
Percentage of WIOA DW registered participants who obtain a post-secondary credential or a 
secondary school diploma or equivalent during participation in or within one year after exit 
from the program.

78.30% 86.79% 110.84% +P

WIOA Youth Definition Target YTD % Target Status

Youth Employed, in Training, or in 
Education in the 2nd Quarter

Percentage of WIOA Youth registered participants in education or training or in 
unsubsidized employment during the 2nd quarter after exit from the program.

73.20% 69.62% 95.11% MP

Youth Employed, in Training or in 
Education in the 4th Quarter

Percentage of WIOA Youth registered participants in education or training or in 
unsubsidized employment during the 4th quarter after exit from the program.

72.30% 72.28% 99.97% MP

Youth Credential Rate
Percentage of WIOA Youth registered participants who obtain a post-secondary credential or 
a secondary school diploma or equivalent during participation in or within one year after exit 
from the program.

49.40% 56.41% 114.19% +P

Program Year (PY) 2019-2020 TWC-Contracted Performance Measures - MARCH 2020) Final

211



 
 
 
  

WIOA All Participants Definition Target YTD % Target Status
All Participants Employed in the 
2nd Quarter

Percentage of Job Seekers in unsubsidized employment during the 2nd quarter after exit from 
the program.

69.00% 71.36% 103.42% MP

All Participants Employed Quarters 
2-4 Post Exit

Percentage of Job Seekers in unsubsidized employment during the 4th quarter after exit from 
the program.

84.00% 86.41% 102.87% MP

All Participants Median Earnings 
2nd Quarter Post Exit Median earnings of Job Seekers during the 2nd Quarter after exit from the program. $5,561.00 $6,249.54 112.38% +P

All Participants Credential Rate Percentage of Job Seekers who obtain a post-secondary credential or a secondary school 
diploma or equivalent during participation in or within one year after exit from the program. 60.00% 77.53% 129.22% +P

Employers Definition Target YTD % Target Status
Employers Served Number of employers receiving workforce assistance. n a n a n a n a

Program Definition Target YTD % Target Status
Choices Full Work Rate Percentage of TANF recipients required to meet work-related participation requirements. 50.00% 56.82% 113.64% +P

Claimant Reemployment Percentage of unemployment insurance (UI) recipients who re-enter employment within 10 
weeks.

n a n a n a n a

Ave # of Children Served Average number of children receiving subsidized childcare 10,469 10,393 99.27% MP
Source: TWC Monthly Performance Report (MPR) released 05/14/2020.
"Exit" means participant is no longer scheduled to receive a program funded service.

Performance Comments 

 Acceptable Levels of Performance - In e-mail dated 9/28/18 TWC recommended acceptable 
levels of performance updates for WIOA measures only (excludes LBB and TWC measures) and 
applied the follow standards: MP for BCY19 and beyond is 90%-110% of target. 

 Median Earnings - In e-mail dated 11/2/18 TWC identified issues regarding Q2 and Q4 targets. 
As a result, TWC has decided on not setting Median Earnings Targets at this time. Projected 
timeframe for Median Earnings Targets is May once casemixes can be more accurately evaluated. 

 Employers Served – TWC is still working on WorkInTexas fix to correctly display Employers 
Served data. 

 Average Number Children Served Per Day – Combined– On 1/7/2020, TWC approved 
updated CC targets which will begin to be displayed and used for Measure Status with the 
February MPR. 

 Claimants Reemployment - TWC is currently unable to accurately report performance at this 
time and will begin reporting measure once this is fixed. 

WIOA Measures & Their Participant “Exit” Dates From To
Employed/Enrolled at Q2, Employed at Q2, Median Earnings at Q2 7/1/2018 3/31/2019
Employed/Enrolled at Q2-Q4, Employed at Q4, Credential Rate 1/1/2018 9/30/2018

212



Year-to-Date (Oct-Apr 2020) Program Participants 
The following maps show geocoded residential addresses of program participants.   

Due to geocoding limitations, the maps commonly show an undercount. 

 
  

213



Program Participants by County of Residence 
Year-to-Date (Oct 2019-Apr 2020) 

Workforce Solutions Alamo 
 

COUNTY CHOICES SNAP   NCP TAA 
Military 
Spouses   Adult DW Youth Total 

ATASCOSA 35 15 
 

0 1 0 
 

18 10 18 97 
BANDERA 6 6 

 
0 0 0 

 
2 2 12 28 

BEXAR 1599 908 
 

201 33 39 
 

282 141 340 3543 
COMAL 48 24 

 
0 1 0 

 
17 10 40 140 

FRIO 9 13 
 

0 0 0 
 

17 7 10 56 
GILLESPIE 1 1 

 
0 0 0 

 
3 0 3 8 

GUADALUPE 53 32 
 

0 1 4 
 

22 14 52 178 
KARNES 4 4 

 
0 0 0 

 
1 2 4 15 

KENDALL 5 5 
 

0 1 0 
 

3 7 17 38 
KERR 18 15 

 
0 0 0 

 
12 2 23 70 

MCMULLEN 0 0 
 

0 0 0 
 

0 0 0 0 
MEDINA 14 24 

 
0 0 0 

 
8 3 17 66 

OTHER 25 15 
 

1 1 0 
 

2 1 4 49 
WILSON 14 7 

 
0 0 0 

 
8 9 15 53 

Total 1831 1069 
 

202 38 43 
 

395 208 555 4341 

 
Note: Data may not be accurate.  TWC data applications/TWIST are configured to report 
information by the Center from which services are provided and not by residence location.  
Residence information may be impacted in different ways (e.g., TWIST data are modified 
through batch processes from data that are updated in WorkInTexas/WIT without staff 
intervention; participants may move without reporting the change; for some participants, 
such as TANF and SNAP, their address locations may be imported from other applications, 
such as from Health and Human Services, etc.).  
Source: Participant data by County of residence using TWIST Management Summary report.   
  

214



Center Visitors (Apr 2020) 
 
 

Office 
Call 

Center 
Email Center 

Grand 
Total 

East Houston 424 443 83 950 
Datapoint 2,188 276 37 2,501 
Marbach 1,602 755 58 2,415 

South Flores 3,559 322 66 3,947 
Walzem 2,285 877 26 3,188 

Urban 10,058 2,673 270 13,001 
     

Bandera 21 27 3 51 
Boerne 180 46 35 261 

Floresville 40 16 5 61 
Fredericksburg 6 29 2 37 

Hondo 122 48 17 187 
Kenedy 18 6 0 24 
Kerrville 11 201 30 242 

New Braunfels 387 810 39 1,236 
Pearsall 252 55 12 319 

Pleasanton 264 85 30 379 
Seguin 78 42 0 120 
Rural 1,379 1,365 173 2,917 
Total 11,437 4,038 443 15,918 

 
 
 
 
 

Labor Market Exchange 
(Oct 2019 - Apr 2020)  
WorkInTexas (WIT) data 

 
 Total placements: 8,246  
 Job Orders: 15,186  
 Active Job Seekers: 136,021 
 Employer Recruitment, employers with Job Openings: 1,683  

 
 
 
 

  

13,001
82%

2,917
18%

Center  Traffic

urban rural

1,831
42%

1,069
24%

202
5%

38
1%

43
1%

395
9%

208
5%

555
13%

Number of Participants 
Alamo

Choices

SNAP

NCP

TAA

Military
Spouses
WIOA Adult

WIOA DW

WIOA
Youth

215



 
RECAP: Caseloads by Program and County 

Snapshot as of 05/01/2020 

 
 

RECAP: Active, Inactive, and In Follow Up 
As of 05/01/2020 

 
 

 

CHOICES
MILITARY 
SPOUSE NCP SNAP TAA

WIOA 
ADULT WIOA DW

WIOA 
YOUTH

Atascosa 9 0 0 0 1 32 10 16 68
Bandera 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 10 14

Bexar 231 42 52 41 25 251 146 260 1048

Comal 7 0 0 1 2 26 29 36 101
Frio 3 0 0 0 0 19 8 5 35

Gillespie 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3

Guadalupe 6 0 0 0 0 16 6 43 71

Karnes 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 4 7
Kendall 1 0 0 0 0 9 7 20 37

Kerr 2 0 0 0 0 14 3 13 32

Medina 3 0 0 0 0 8 5 13 29
Wilson 2 0 0 0 0 7 8 16 33

Grand Total 264 42 52 42 28 389 225 436 1478

County

Program
Grand 
Total

CHOICES
MILITARY 
SPOUSE NCP SNAP TAA

WIOA 
ADULT WIOA DW

WIOA 
YOUTH

Active 249 5 40 42 26 126 44 169 701

Follow Up 0 30 0 0 0 159 81 102 372
Inactive 15 7 12 0 2 104 100 165 405

Grand Total 264 42 52 42 28 389 225 436 1478

Status

PROGRAM

Grand 
Total

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800

Active

Follow Up

Inactive

Active, Inactive, and in Follow Up 

216



RECAP: # of Days Inactive by Fund and County 
Snapshot as of 05/01/2020 

 

<45 45-59 60-74 75-89 90-104 120-134
Atascosa 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Bexar 82 21 23 7 4 0 137
Comal 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Frio 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Guadalupe 1 0 4 1 0 0 6
Karnes 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Kendall 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Kerr 3 0 1 0 0 0 4
Medina 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Wilson 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
Bandera 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

103 21 28 9 4 0 165
Atascosa 13 0 0 0 0 0 13
Bexar 53 6 0 0 0 0 59
Comal 12 0 0 0 0 0 12
Frio 5 0 0 0 0 0 5
Guadalupe 3 0 2 1 0 1 7
Karnes 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
Kendall 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
Kerr 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Medina 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Wilson 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

91 9 2 1 0 1 104
Bexar 8 3 3 0 0 0 14
Guadalupe 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

8 3 4 0 0 0 15
Atascosa 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
Bexar 63 2 2 0 0 0 67
Comal 11 1 0 0 0 0 12
Frio 5 0 0 0 0 0 5
Kendall 4 1 0 0 0 0 5
Kerr 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Medina 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Wilson 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

94 4 2 0 0 0 100
NCP Bexar 0 3 9 0 0 0 12

0 3 9 0 0 0 12
MILITARY 
SPOUSE

Bexar 7 0 0 0 0 0 7

7 0 0 0 0 0 7
TAA Bexar 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2 0 0 0 0 0 2
305 40 45 10 4 1 405

WIOA DW Total

# of Days Inactive

NCP Total

MILITARY SPOUSE Total

TAA Total
Grand Total

WIOA 
ADULT

WIOA ADULT Total

CHOICES

CHOICES Total

WIOA DW

FUND COUNTY Grand Total

WIOA 
YOUTH

WIOA YOUTH Total

217



# Initiative/Grant Funding Description Partners Goals Outcomes Status Challenges

Disaster Recovery 
Dislocated Worker 
Grant - COVID-19

Statewide Initiative

5/5/2020 3/31/2021

Hiring Red, White & 
You!

Workforce 
Initiatives

10/1/2019 9/30/2020

Career in Texas 
Industries/Youth 

Career Fair Events

Workforce 
Initiatives

10/1/2019 9/30/2020

Excellence in Rural 
Service Delivery

Workforce 
Initiatives

10/1/2019 1/31/2020

Teacher Externship Statewide Initiative

7/15/2019 8/31/2021

Teacher Externship 
Plus Statewide Initiative

7/15/2019 8/31/2021

1
$1,302,401.00

Disaster grant funds to assist individuals residing in the 
Alamo 13 County region affected by COVID-19 in 
response to major economic dislocations.

C2 GPS, SA FoodBank, 
SAHA, Meals on Wheels 
(Frio, Medina & Bandera), 
Community Health Workers, 
United Way, SA Visit, 
AACOG.

Provide disaster relief employment 
and support services to 122 
dislocated workers

In pre-planning stage.  Project Manager 
hired.  Work Experience  agreements 
under review for clauses that apply to 
the grant.  Assessing needs. 
Developing outreach and recruitment.

 In-progress

 Signatures for Worksite 
Agreements

The revised plan is expected to receive 
a decision by the end of the month, 
May. 

In-progress

Capacity and sustainability

$37,100 

$50,000 

$41,000

$200,000 

$100,000 

Annual Job Fair (statewide) for Veterans, Transitioning 
Service Members, Military Spouses, and the General 
Public.
November 5, 2020
Freeman Expo Hall C
11:00 AM to 3:00 PM

Veteran Coalitions (numerous 
partners including JBSA, 
TVC, TVLP, MOAA, USO, 
VRS, City of San Antonio, 
Bexar County, AACOG, 
Alamo Colleges, San Antonio 
Library, GI-Forum, RBFCU, 
Starbucks, TX SERVES, 
Wounded Warriors, C2 GPS, 
SERCO.

2020 HRWY Event:                         
1. 160+ Employers, 60 Veteran 
Resource Booths
2. 1500+ Job Seekers 3.Virtual Job 
Fair platform. 4. Additional TWC 
Funding.

2020 Outcomes
1. Registered Employers - 161
2.  Registered Jobseekers - 2,022 
(Veterans - 894, Non Veterans- 1,128). 
3. Veterans Information Village - 60.  4. 
On-site hires - 111 (5.5%).  Employers 
expected to make more hires 
days/weeks after the event. 

As a result of COVID-19, a 
challenge is the transition to 
virtual job fair events or a 
combination of several virtual 
events ahead of the major in-
person event in the fall, due to 
the large number of job seekers 
displaced by COVID-19.  The 
other challenge is limited 
funding.  

"#DreamBiggerGoFurther Career Pathways Summit"
Date/Location TBD                                                    
Annual Career Pathways event for students.  Careers in 
Texas Industries or Youth Career events for middle-
school, high school, and postsecondary students, 
including employer exploration of career opportunities 
in industry.  Information of career opportunities 
including pathways to in-demand careers, networking, 
interships, and other applied learning opportunities.

May procure consultant/ 
project manager.

Career Pathways Task Force 
(Includes EDCs, School 
Districts & Region 20, & 
CBOs), C2 GPS, SERCO.

2020 Career Pathways Event         
1. 1000 students
2. 50 Employers
3. 50 Presenters

2019 Event Outcomes:                      
1. 14 schools registered with 404 
registered students: 238 in healthcare, 
37 in advanced manufacturing, 72 in 
construction, 57 in IT.
2. 11 presenters participated. In-progress

As a result of COVID-19, our 
challenge becomes determining 
if we transition to a virtual event 
or perhaps a combination of 
virtual and in-person events.  
This will also negate last year's 
challenge related to the busing 
of students.

Capacity and sustainability

New TWC funding focused on innovative strategies to 
expand accessibility and services in the most rural and 
remote areas of the Alamo region.

AACOG

> Five (5) partner locations in 
rural areas: Bandera Library, 
Fredericksburg Hill Country 
University, City of Diley, 
Schertz Library, McMullen 
County.
> Commissioner Rodriguez 
(rural area in Bexar County).

1. 5 Kiosks in rural counties and 1 
Kiosk in rural area of Bexar County
2. Relocation of two satellite offices 
(Bandera and Fredericksburg)
3. Explore/research Mobile unit

1. Kiosks have been ordered
2. Located new locations for Bandera 
and Fredericksburg
3. Mobile unit - in continued research 
by Board Staff and Board of Directors.

Current milestones moving according to 
timeline/plan.

In-progress

Initial Board 
directive took 

long to 
implement

Finalizing procedures, will 
schedule staff training, 
integration with WSA IT network 
structure, customer 'call center' 
and staffing infrastructure.

A revised plan was submitted to TWC on May 18, 2020 
to provide teacher externship curriculum during Fall 
2020, Spring and Summer 2021 to150 middle and high 
school teachers and counselors.

Steuck & Associates
Alamo STEM Coalition

 1.Register 150 teachers
2. Successful completion of the 

 program 140 teachers
3. Recruit 15 companies/ 
organizations for virtual externship 
experiences

The revised plan is expected to receive 
a decision by the end of the month, 
May. 

In-progress

A revised plan was sumbitted to TWC on May 18, 2020 
to increase sustainability of externship services and 
ensure replicate in the communities.

Steuck & Associates
Alamo STEM Coalition

 1. Build sustainability/capacity
 2. Replicate in communities

3. Fall/Spring Events (virtual 
 teacher externships)

4. District-initiated events (virtual 
 externship visit)

5. Host-initiated events (coordinate 
meetings with remote 

 representatives)
6. Digital Badging: integrate with 
ESC-20's effort for teacher and 
student inclusion of outcomes.

6

WSA NON-FORMULA FUNDED GRANTS, INITIATIVES, & PROJECTS

2

3

4

5

In-progress

218



# Initiative/Grant Funding Description Partners Goals Outcomes Status Challenges
Disaster grant funds to assist individuals residing in the C2 GPS, SA FoodBank, Provide disaster relief employment In pre-planning stage.  Project Manager  Signatures for Worksite 

WSA NON-FORMULA FUNDED GRANTS, INITIATIVES, & PROJECTS

Women's 
Entrepreneurship 

Bootcamp
Statewide Initiative

7/26/2019 8/31/2021

Texas Industry 
Partnership Statewide Initiative

7/26/2019 8/31/2020

WIOA ITAs
Urban Statewide Initiative

7/26/2019 8/31/2020
WIOA ITAs

Rural Statewide Initiative

7/26/2019 8/31/2020

RESEA Reemployment 
Services

9/30/2019 12/31/2020

Youth Job 
Skills/Urban WIOA Youth

10/1/2019 8/31/2021

Youth Job Skills/Rural WIOA Youth

10/1/2019 8/31/2020

$58,200 

TWC made funding available to provide 1-day physical 
and virtual entrepreneurship bootcamp for eligible 
women.

UTSA = main partner 
delivering bootcamp.  

Partner locations for virtual 
bootcamp: South Texas 
Regional Training Center 
(Hondo), Coastal Bend 
College (Pleasanton), Alamo 
Colleges (Central Texas 
Technology Center, 
Seguin/New Braunfels)..

1. In-person bootcamp: 20 
participants x 8 sessions = 160 
participants.
2. Virtual bootcamp: 10 participants 
x 8 sessions = 80 participants.
3. Curriculum development for 
women entrepreneurs.

Alternative plan was submitted to 
TWC May 18, 2020.  Plan included 
the increased capacity for WebEx 
at UTSA to 200 individuals per 
session, allows continuation of 
bootcamps virtual at all sites. 
Cancellation of in-person sessions, 
since, UTSA remains closed for in-
person classes through August. 
Proposed targets registrants 
inviting them to attend virtual 
sessions Jun-Aug 2020. Curriculum 
was modified to accommodate the 
new delivery format. The sessions 
timeframe has changed to half day 
sessions, two per day.

MOUs in and contracts/agreements in 
place.  Bootcamps successfully 
conducted January and February 2020. 
In-person bootcamps were transmitted 
to virtual sites via WebEX. Targeted 
participants were 50 for each 
bootcamp.For both bootcamps - 
registered participants were 144.  
Actual attendees were 58.  Extensive 
outrach resulted in increased 
registrations in March, April, 
May bootcamps. These were 
subsequently cancelled.

$64,000 

The recruitment of actual 
apprentice is pending due the 
delay on the construction of the 
Lab.

In-progress

Reimbursement for the cost of the 
equipment is underway.

Development of a Certified Building 
Industry Consulting Service 
International (BICSI) Lab, and be 
recognized as a BICSI Authorized 
Training Facility (ATF).

South Texas Electrical JATC, 
a 501(c)(3) nonprofit 
electricians and technologies 
apprenticeship program, as 
registered with the U.S. 
Department of Labor.

Support South Texas Electrical JATC, a 501(c)(3) 
electricians and technologies apprenticeship program 
develop a Certified Building Industry Consulting Service 
International (BICSI) Lab as an Authorized Training 
Facility (ATF).

In-progress

Main partner's capacity, 
identification and coordination 
of virtual partner locations, 
technology to stream virtual 
bootcamps, curriculum 
development copyrights. The 
pandemic caused the 
bootcamps to be cancelled in 
March, April, May.  

> 2 - 3 participants enroll in 
credentialing educ/training.
> 1 - 2 obtain an industry-
recognized credential.

> 13 - 14 participants enrolled in 
credentialing educ/traininig.
> 8 - 9 obtain an industry-
recognized credential.

Grant extension to 2021.  Daily Virtual 
Orientations at both Urban and Rural 
areas for outreach and recruitment.

1 Phramacy Technician- Start 
date:02/2020. Estimated Graduation 
date: 09/2020

In-progress

In-progress

$48,000 

$10,861 

Leftover balance of Statewide Initiative funds must be 
used toward ITAs.  Upskilling of WIOA participants with 
industry-recognized credentials in in-demand 
occupations

SERCO

C2 GPS

The Workforce Career Centers 
were closed in March 2020 due 
to COVID-19 and RESEA 
outreach was suspended.

Under-
expended.  

$205,920 

$51,480 

TWC funding to support 5 Boards with the highest # of 
dropouts and youth UI Claimants.To develop strategies 
to provide enhanced service delivery to Out-of-School 
without a secondary school diploma/equivalency, 
disadvantaged youth, and areas with high poverty 
rates.

C2 GPS
ESC-20, Savant, 

SERCO
BCFS, ESC-20, Alamo 
Colleges, Caterpillar

1. Enrollment: 42 youth
2. HS enrollment: 21
3. HS/equiv. completion: 7
4. Post-Sec Enrollment: 12
5. Post-Sec Credential: 4
6. Job Placement: 8

1. Enrollment: 10 youth
2. HS enrollment: 5
3. HS/equiv. completion: 2
4. Post-Sec Enrollment: 3
5. Post-Sec Credential: 1
6. Job Placement: 2

                                                                         
Youth are in the pipeline to enroll into 
GED and Training amdist Covid-19, as 
outreach is now being conducted 
virtually and digitally.                         

 1.(3) Participants ITA training for 
 Industrial Maintenance Technician 

  2.(4) Participants for HS Diploma 
                                        

In progress

In progress

Mutiple outreach mechanisms 
were planned, due to COVID-19 
in person outreach and events 
have been rescheduled at this 
time! 

$361,164 

Provide Unemployment Insurance (UI) Claimants with 
access to resources, tailored labor market information, 
career services, and potential co-enrollment in the 
WIOA Dislocated Worker program, and obtain 
employment.

C2 GPS 1. 100% Outreach of RESEA UI 
Claimants.
2. Provision of RESEA Orientations 
to UI Claimants.

RESEA Orientation Servces were 
provided to 1,897 UI Claimants 
(Between 10/2010 to 02/2020).

Due to COVID-19 the start date 
for ITA training changed mutiple 
times, but was transitioned into 
online classes.

7

8

New training enrollments 
delayed due to COVID-19. 
Jobseekers are focused on 
signing up for UI benefits at the 
moment.

New training enrollments 
delayed due to COVID-19

9

11

10

219



# Initiative/Grant Funding Description Partners Goals Outcomes Status Challenges
Disaster grant funds to assist individuals residing in the C2 GPS, SA FoodBank, Provide disaster relief employment In pre-planning stage.  Project Manager  Signatures for Worksite 

WSA NON-FORMULA FUNDED GRANTS, INITIATIVES, & PROJECTS

Military Family 
Support Program

WIOA Adult 
Statewide

1/1/2020 12/31/2020

HPOG
Grant

Alamo Colleges
Subgrant

10/1/2019 9/29/2020

TechWorks
Grant

Alamo Colleges
Subgrant

10/1/2019 12/1/2020

Rapid
Response

WIOA Dislocated 
Worker

10/1/2018 9/31/19

Transitioning Service 
Members Inventory 
Initiative (Survey)

WIOA Dislocated 
Worker and Cost 

Allocated

10/1/2019 9/30/2020

Child Care Quality 
Conference

Workforce 
Initiatives

10/1/2019 9/30/2020

Texas Veterans 
Leadership Program

Workforce 
Initiatives

40 eligible applicants by 4/30/20  is 
target. 24 appliccants were reffered 
prior to 2/30/2020 meeting the February 
target. 65 eligible applicants were 
referred from February to April 30, 2020 
Grant is meeting all targets.

89 applicants   
In-progress

Implementation of identification 
of potential eligible applicants 
and referral system.  
TechWorks will train 
participants - subsequent 
placement requires alignment of 
business services efforts with 
employers in the field.

$81,870 

TANF recipient co-enrollment/case management with 
provision of supportive services (including utility, 
transportation and housing assistance and referral to 
resources such as childcare), Placement services for 
participants of Health & Human Services-Health 
Professions Opportunities Grant (“HPOG”). Individuals 
must meet eligibility and demonstrate a need for skills 
and training to enter the workforce.

Alamo Colleges, C2 GPS 
hires 1 staff

1. 25 applicants by 2/15/20
2  9 applicants by 5/30/20
3. Medical Front Office certificate: 
20 by 6/30/20 to 8/30/20.
4. Provide 25-30 hours of OJT and 
health care employment services.
5. Job placement: 25 participants 
by 9/29/20

34 applicants by May 30, 2020 is 
target.  Accomplished Goal 1 and 2 
successfully with 25 applicants by 
2/152020 and 9 applicants by 
5/30/2020.  Of the 25 applicants, 0 
were selected. Of the 9 applicants by 
5/30/20 3 were selected  and 1 secured 
a job. June Medical Front Office trining 
is anticpanted pending COVID-19 
changes by Alamo Colleges.  For the 
MFO class 200-300 participants were 
reviewed, 24 met eligiblity criteria for 
HPOG. Of 24, 12 will start the MFO 
class.

$222,630 

On-site services at JBSA Ft. Sam Houston, Lackland 
and Randolph Military and Family Readiness Centers 
for military spouses, including job search, assessment, 
labor market information, resume writing, interviewing 
skills, support services, training in high demand 
occupations and placement.

We have two C2 GPS staff offering services/located on-
site at the three military bases.

C2 GPS
Joint Base SA

 1. # Provided Assessments - 62 
 2. # Participants Enrolled - 62

3. # Receiving Supportive Services- 
 6 

 4. # Participants Trained - 6
5. # Participants Receiving 
Certifications - 6 

 1. # Provided Assessments -10 
 2. # Participants Enrolled -10 

3. # Receiving Supportive Services-0 4. 
 # Participants Trained - 0 

5. # Participants Receiving 
 Certifications- 0

(Between 01/01/2020 to 03/31/2020) In progress

Enrollment of spouses.  Difficult 
to enroll in certain activities 
(which depends on spouses' 
occupational goals and military 
active duty spouses unexpected 
reassignment).  Gaining 
employment has been difficult.

Career Counselors are not 
allowed on base due to COVID-
19

Provide funding support to TVLP Ongoing support.

Successful

Tracking outcomes in  
employment for affected 
workers, co-enrollment with 
Dislocated Worker program is 
low.

$640 

TWC funding for Board staff travel costs to the TWC 
Child Care Quality Conference April 24, 2019 in Austin

TWC Two Board staff to attend

Starting

None.

$98,326 

Provide Rapid Response immediate reemployment 
servcies to workers affected by layoffs, plant closings, 
workers of businesses affected by disasters, and 
foreign trade.

Training Solutions
C2 GPS

Provide immediate reemployment 
services to affected workers.

> Dislocated Workers: 7,418
> From 83 companies, January to April 
16, 2020.

Report Past 
Due

Data priorities refocused to 
meet needs for COVID-19 
impacts and UI Claimant 
reports/analysis.

Marketing/promotion of survey.  
Manual capturing of surveys 
requires manual data entry.  
Different surveys were used by 
Bexar County, consolidating 
information has been 
challenging.

$6,000 

The Transitioning Service Members Inventory Initiative 
Survey is authorized by Joint Base San Antonio (JBSA)  
Fort Sam Houston, Lackland and Randolph and 
regularly administered by Bexar County staff.

WSA data enters paper responses into database, 
performs analysis, and develops professional 
printing/publishing of report twice a year.

JBSA, Bexar County Publish two reports annually. > First report published 300 copies.
> Second report published 500 copies.
> 2,732 surveys received
> Third report due.

In-progress

Identification of eligible 
applicants, conflicting goals 
between TWC/WSA TANF 
requirements and HPOGs 
timelines (TWC/WSA is 'work-
first' not long-term training), 
COVID-19: direct impact on 
training schedule forces 
particpants out of the timeline to 
participate.

$83,580 

Referrals, recruitment, job placement assistance for 
participants with some college but no degree, Veterans, 
Promise Zone residents, unemployed and 
underemployed individuals.  Must meet Tech Works’ 
eligibility and demonstrate a barrier: long term 
unemployment-over 27 weeks unemployed, limited 
English proficiency, disability, childcare needs, housing 
assistance, prior criminal convictions, and other barriers 
to employment identified under WIOA.

Alamo Colleges, C2 GPS 
hires 1 staff

1. Refer 20 eligible applicants by 
2/30/20.
2. Refer 20 eligible applicants by 
4/30/20.
3. Refer 20 eligible applicants by 
6/30/20.
4. Job Placement: 50% (30) 
participants by 12/1/2020.

16

14

15

Initiative or active but all activities were completed or no additional reporting to Board is currently needed. 

17

18

12

13

Ongoing

None.

$17,177 

TWC funding to support the agency's Texas Veterans 
Leadership Program (TVLP) staff

TWC/TVLP

220



# Initiative/Grant Funding Description Partners Goals Outcomes Status Challenges
Disaster grant funds to assist individuals residing in the C2 GPS, SA FoodBank, Provide disaster relief employment In pre-planning stage.  Project Manager  Signatures for Worksite 

WSA NON-FORMULA FUNDED GRANTS, INITIATIVES, & PROJECTS

10/1/2019 9/30/2020
Foster Care Youth 

Conference
Workforce 
Initiatives

10/1/2019 9/30/2020

Externship for 
Teachers

Statewide
Initiative

5/6/2020 2/28/2021

Summer Earn and 
Learn

Statewide
Initiative

April 4, 2020 08/21/202

$200,00

TWC funding to transfer the externship management 
and functions to communities and/or school districts, 
provide additional externship opportunities during the 
Fall 2019, and Spring 2020 and advance digital 
badging in the project. 

Steuck & Associates and 
Alamo STEM Coalition

1. Transfer externship to 
communities and/or school districts
2. Provide externship training to 
regional areas
3. Digital badging use for teachers 
to track students outcomes. 

 The funding was cancelled due to 
Coronvirus crisis. 

The pandemic created a 
challenge to meet in-person 
with teachers, employers and 
continue to host on-site tours. Inactive20

19

TWC funding fo cover Board staff travel costs to the 
Foster Care Youth Conference

TWC Staff to attend conference Conference Date to be determined

Inactive

None.

21

Summer Earn and Learn is a statewide strategy that 
includes work readiness training and paid work 
experience for students with disabilities during the 
summer months. TWC-VR is primarily responsible for 
student recruitment and Workforce staff have the 
responsibility of identifying and recruiting employers to 
provide work experience opportunities.

VR The funding was cancelled due to 
Coronvirus crisis. 

Inactive

The pandemic resulted in the 
program being cancelled. 

$

221



 
EXCEPTION REPORT 

 
Low Expenditures in the Dislocated Worker Program 
Problem  

Per WSA Fiscal Department, low expenditures in the actual amounts 
expended to date are low in the Dislocated Worker Program. 

Actions Actions: 
 Since mid-March 2020, C2 Global has placed 74 Dislocated Worker (DW) 

clients into training in various demand occupations. 
 C2 Global is currently at 40.1% for direct client costs up from 

22.48% in March 2020 and expended 17% in the past month.  
 Extended outreach and recruitment will be made to the existing 170,000 on the 

Unemployment Insurance claimant list to invite jobseekers to the virtual 
orientation.  The virtual orientation will let jobseekers know about WIOA 
services and assign them to a career counselor for next steps. 

 Extended mail outreach and recruitment will also be made 
through Work In Texas. 

 Increased short term training options are now available to 
attract more participants. 

 Increased virtual orientations to be responsive to jobseekers. 
 WSA Board staff will work with C2 Global staff to ensure 

program budget meets future expenditure benchmarks. 
 

 
 

 
  

222



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHILD CARE PROGRAM REPORTS 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

223



 

224



 

 

 
 

  

225



 

 

 

  

226



 

 

Texas Rising Star Assessor Performance 
 

 
 

  

227



 

 

Quality Improvement Activities  
Mentoring Activities 

 Total Texas Rising Star Providers: 110  
o 66 – 4 Star  
o 32 – 3 Star  
o 12 – 2 Star  

 30 zero-star centers (not TRS Certified) mentored at the end of December  
 

Current Initiatives/Partnerships:  
 Voices for Children – South Texas Trauma Informed Consortium Sector – Early Care 

and Education. The focus of this group is to work to mitigate the effects of Adverse 
Childhood Experiences by working together to create a Certified Trauma Informed Bexar 
County.   

 Region 20 – As part of the RECESS grant, WSA is working in partnership with Region 
20 to have TRS child care centers work in collaboration with ISDs to support a school 
readiness and transition plan.   

 Pre-K 4 SA – Working together to increase quality child care in San Antonio without 
duplicating services. Pre-K 4 SA has been providing professional development to child 
care providers who do not meet the TRS Guidelines to prepare them for reaching TRS 
status.  

 Ready Kids SA – Working with a network of partners to maximize early childhood 
resources in our community. Primary Objectives: Create a comprehensive early 
childhood system that promotes the social, emotional, physical and cognitive 
development of children 0-8. Establish strategies and tools for family support and 
partnership.  

 Working with (Texas Early Childhood Professional Development System) TECPDS to 
create a partnership so that we can utilize the system for storing all training certificates 
for future and easy access.  

 United Way – Working with St Paul center on providing TRS Training to their trainer 
and master mentor to work with 10 Child Care Centers to bring them up to quality.  

 Shared Services Alliance – WSA is working with the Shared Services Alliance in San 
Antonio, which includes established partners: United Way, Region 20, Pre-K 4 SA, 
Voices for Children, and the SA Food Bank.  The Shared Services Alliance is leveraging 
resources to improve business practices at child care centers and improve quality by 
providing services and resources for providers.  WSA will replicate services for rural 
counties.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

228



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGETS 
 

229



Contractor Budgeted 
Amt.

 Fiscal year 
10/1/19 to 

9/30/20 

% Expensed Balance Direct Client 
Expenses

Urban Direct 
Client 

Expenses

Rural 
Direct 
Client 

Direct Client 
Expenses 
Urban %

Direct 
Client 

Expenses 
l %C2 GPS Workforce Center-FY20

WIOA Adult 3,465,161     1,567,962.45       45.25% 1,897,199      619,800        551,606         68,194        89.00% 11.00%
WIOA Dislocated Worker 3,494,069     1,213,606.24       34.73% 2,280,463      313,505        268,340         45,165        85.59% 14.41%
WIOA Statewide Actvities 48,000           17,061.99            35.55% 30,938            -                     -                      -                   
WIOA Youth - Urban 2,938,859     1,289,875.99       43.89% 1,648,983      648,095        648,095         -                   100.00% 0.00%
WIOA Youth Job Skills 205,920         5,692.94              2.76% 200,227         -                     -                      -                   
TANF / Choices 4,410,565     1,883,332.76       42.70% 2,527,232      379,907        337,617         42,290        88.87% 11.13%
SNAP ABAWD 1,277,464     842,870.40          65.98% 434,594         187,534        164,228         23,305        87.57% 12.43%
NCP 364,552         211,106.24          57.91% 153,446         35,675          35,675           -                   100.00% 0.00%
TAA 275,269         70,800.30            25.72% 204,469         70,800          70,389           411              99.42% 0.58%
REA 450,000         308,831.21          68.63% 141,169         -                     -                      -                   
Child Care Quality-CCQ 1,398,760     472,467.97          33.78% 926,292         51,082          51,082           -                   100.00% 0.00%
VR Infrastucture Funding 19,985           6,031.46              30.18% 13,954            -                     
Military Family Support 121,084         100,910.04          83.34% 20,174            6,299            6,299              100.00% 0.00%
Military Family Support 178,104         78,599.81            44.13% 99,504            21,441          21,441           100.00% 0.00%
H-1B Job Training-Tech Works Grant 83,580           -                        0.00% 83,580            -                     
Teacher Externship 20,000           -                        0.00% 20,000            
Women's Entrepreneurship Bootcamp 13,319           -                        0.00% 13,319            
Health Profession Opportunity Grant 81,870           24,965.52            30.49% 56,904            
WCI Funding 41,470           0 0.00% 41,470            
Rapid Response 15,000           0 0.00% 15,000            
C2 GPS Total 18,903,031   8,094,115.32      42.82% 10,808,916    2,334,138    2,154,773      179,365      

SERCO-FY20
WIOA Youth - Rural 1,484,411     595,296.16          40.10% 889,114         206,958        -                      206,958      0.00% 100.00%
WIOA Youth Job Skills Grant 51,480           5,382.85              10.46% 46,097            -                     -                      -                   
WIOA Statewide Actvities 10,861           -                        0.00% 10,861            -                     -                      -                   
SERCO TOTAL 1,546,752     600,679.01          38.83% 946,073         206,958        -                      206,958      

Report Period:   10/01/19 - 3/31/20

Contractor Expense Report

230



Report Period:   10/01/19 - 3/31/20

Contractor Expense Report
Contractor Budgeted 

Amt.
 Fiscal year 
10/1/19 to 

9/30/20 

% Expensed Balance Direct Client 
Expenses

Urban Direct 
Client 

Expenses

Rural 
Direct 
Client 

Direct Client 
Expenses 
Urban %

Direct 
Client 

Expenses 
l %City of San Antonio (Child Care) FY20  

Child Care Operations/Direct Care - CCF 42,153,867   20,839,215.36    49.44% 21,314,652    18,985,907  14,978,666    4,007,242   78.89% 21.11%
Mandotory Direc Care Ratio Sub set CCC 12,811,127   5,376,832.89       41.97% 7,434,294      5,384,751     4,877,088      507,663      90.57% 9.43%
Direct Child Care Match - CCM 7,693,566     5,441,787.83       70.73% 2,251,779      7,049,873     5,664,084      1,385,789   80.34% 19.66%
Child Care Quality - CCQ 424,502         184,771.20          43.53% 239,731         N/A N/A
*Child Care - CCP 7,300,716     3,662,978.92       50.17% 3,637,737      3,664,225     2,953,914      710,311       80.61% 19.39%
City of San Antonio (Child Care) FY20 - Total 70,383,779 35,505,586.20    50.45% 34,878,193

*The  CCP, WSA nor COSA can control enrollment by Urban or Rural; must serve based on referral from other agencies.

231



Report Period:   10/01/19 - 3/31/20

Contractor Expense Report
Contractor Budgeted 

Amt.
 Fiscal year 
10/1/19 to 

9/30/20 

% Expensed Balance

SPECIAL PROJECTS / GRANTS
Externship for Teachers 2019 -                       
ATEAMS 300                 -                        0.00% 300                 
Steuck & Accociates 10,000           10,000.00            100.00% -                       
UTSA 5,000             5,000.00               100.00% -                       
Externship for Teachers 15,300           15,000.00            98.04% 300                 

Child Care Automation FY20
ACS-Xerox Business Services 361,164         182,985.88          50.67% 178,178         

-                     

WIOA Alternative Funding Statewide Activities -                       
* ATEAMS-Teacher Externship 90,000           -                        0.00% 90,000            
* ATEAMS-Teacher Externship Plus 160,000         -                        0.00% 160,000          
UTSA-Women's Entreprenuership Bootcamp 28,000           -                        0.00% 28,000            
Texas Industry Partner 56,640           -                        0.00% 56,640            
WIOA AFSA Total 334,640         -                        0.00% 334,640         
*  Pending information to finalize contract

Rapid Response 2019 -                       
* Training Solutions 46,349           61,434.00            132.55% (15,085)          
*  Contractor Training Solutions  amendment in process

TAA/ES Contractor Cost 21,573.03            
Contractor Grand Total 91,591,014   44,481,373.44    48.57% 47,109,641    

232



Report Period:   10/01/19 - 3/31/20

Contractor Expense Report

Contracts with start dates prior to 10/1/19  
(Complete Contract Supplemental)

Total Budget - 
 Includes 
prior to 

 Total YTD 
Expenses  

Includes prior to 

% Expensed Balance

Externship for Teachers 2019
Region 20 42,450              41,150.00            96.94% 1,300              
ATEAMS 17,550              17,250.00            98.29% 300                 
ATEAMS-Service Funds 10,000              10,000.00            100.00% -                       
Steuck & Accociates 25,000              25,000.00            100.00% -                       
UTSA 5,000                5,000.00               100.00% -                       
Externship for Teachers 100,000         98,400.00            98.40% 1,600              

Rapid Response 2019 -                       
Training Solutions 138,055         153,139.50          110.93% (15,085)          

Contractor Grand Total 238,055         251,539.50          105.66% (13,485)          

233



 

 

WORKFORCE PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION 
 
“Programs” can be classified in different ways as based on the way that they come about.  
These include “Formula-Funded Grants,” “Workforce Initiatives,” “Special 
Grants/Projects,” “Fee-for-Service Grants,” and “Other TWC Grants.” 
 
Formula-Funded Grants 
Funds for services are allocated to state and local areas based on a formula.  These 
grants are the Board’s ‘bread and butter’ and form a part of our primary or core 
programs.   
 

Child Care Services (CCS).  Child care subsidies in support of low-income parents’ 
employment (retention) and/or completion of education and training.  Services are also offered 
to TANF/Choices and SNAP E&T participants, as well as for children in need of protective 
services.  
 
Non-Custodial Parent Choices (NCP).  Program targets low-income unemployed or 
underemployed noncustodial parents who are behind on their child support payments and 
whose children are current or former recipients of public assistance. 
 
Quality Improvement Activities (QIA).  Initiatives that help promote the quality of child 
care, including training and technical assistance that are primarily geared to benefit child 
care facilities that are working toward Texas Rising Star (TRS) certification or are TRS 
providers working toward a higher certification level. 
 
Rapid Response.  Rapid Response is a proactive, business-focused strategy designed to help 
growing companies access an available pool of skilled workers from companies that are 
downsizing and to respond to layoffs and plant closings by providing immediate on-site 
assistance to transition workers to their next employment as soon as possible. 
 
Supplemental Nutrition & Assistance Program Employment & Training (SNAP).  Program 
helps ‘food stamp’ recipients gain skills, training, or work experience and increase their ability 
to obtain regular employment.  
 
TANF/Choices.  Program offers job preparation and educational services required for parents 
who depend on public assistance (Temporary Assistance for Needy Families/TANF) to 
transition into economic self-sufficiency through employment. 
 
Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA).  Program provides job training and employment 
services to workers who have lost their jobs due to the effects of international trade.   
 
Wagner-Peyser.  Federal legislation that established the ‘Employment Service’ and ancillary 
functions in 1935, as subsequently amended.  Employer, job matching, and other related 
services offered at the Centers are partly funded using Wagner-Peyser grant funds. 
 
Workforce Investment & Opportunity Act (WIOA).  WIOA has three main “formula-funded” 
grants serving Adults, Dislocated Workers, and Youth.  However, other smaller grants are 
funded through WIOA, such as Rapid Response and Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA).  

234



 

 

WIOA funds also can be used for Incumbent Worker and Customized Training, both of which 
only require ‘basic’ WIOA eligibility (e.g., being eligible to work in the U.S., being employed 
and, for males, being registered in Selective Service).  The following three grants do have 
additional eligibility requirements which individuals must meet for funding.   
 

WIOA Adult.  Program serves economically disadvantaged adults assisting them in 
obtaining the skills needed to obtain, retain, and/or advance in employment. 
 
WIOA DW.  Program serves individuals who have lost their jobs as a result of a layoff or 
closure (e.g., at no fault of their own).  Program assists dislocated workers in returning to 
the workforce as quickly as possible. 
 
WIOA Youth.  Program serves in-school and out-of-school youth ages 16-24 supporting 
them so they may enter into or complete educational/training opportunities, so they may 
gain the skills and credentials needed to obtain and retain employment.   

 
Special Grants/Projects 
Special Grants/Projects are those that WSA competes for (e.g., these are not like the 
“formula-funded grants” that TWC awards WSA).  Rather, WSA writes a proposal to 
request and/or compete for funding, be this on our own and/or with partners. 
 

Externship for Teachers.  Grant available by TWC to outreach/collaborate with employers 
and Independent School Districts (ISDs) to provide externships for middle school and/or high 
school teachers, schools, counselors, and school administrators.  WSA assists in the 
development and submits a proposal in partnership with the Alamo STEM Workforce Coalition 
(ASWC).  ASWC is comprised of the Alliance for Technology Education in Applied Math and 
Science (ATEAMS), the Education Service Center 20 (ESC-20), SA Works, UTSA, and C2 GPS.  
The project requires matching funds (e.g., non-federal funds put in by the partners and/or 
private donors).   
 
High Demand Job Training Program.  WIOA funds that aim to address skill gaps that 
support talent pipelines that help meet industry needs, for example, for the purchasing of 
instrumentation, tools, and/or equipment.  These must be done in collaboration between 
Boards and Economic Development Corporations (EDCs).  Partners with whom WSA has 
collaborated include Alamo Colleges, Seguin EDC, and New Braunfels IDC (e.g., recent grant 
focused on building capacity with CNC machining technology and training). 

 
Workforce Commission Initiatives (WCI) 
WCIs are grant awards issued to Boards by TWC to fund specific project initiatives.  The 
focus and timeframes of these grants vary.  These initiatives support the delivery of 
services to workers and employers and help fund projects that strengthen and add value 
to the delivery system.  The following are some examples. 
 

Red, White, and You!  Employment Service (ES) funds to support the job fair event for 
Veterans. 
 
Career in Texas Industries/Youth Career Fair Events.  TANF funds that support Career in 
Texas Industries or Youth Career events for middle school, high school, and postsecondary 
students.  Events aim at promoting exploration of career opportunities including 

235



 

 

understanding pathways to in-demand careers, networking, internships, and other applied 
learning opportunities.  This year’s focus is on a Career Pathway Readiness Mini-Summit to 
include school Administrators, Counselors & Teachers, Parents, Students, and Workforce 
Development professionals with individual tracks and which is scheduled for September. 
 
Texas Veterans Leadership Program.  Utilize ES funds to support TWC’s Texas Veterans 
Leadership Program (TVLP) staff. The Board shall ensure Agency TVLP staff is provided access 
to and use of common equipment, software or hardware platforms, consumables, and 
telecommunications networks in shared facilities. The Board may acquire goods or services 
needed to support the Agency’s TVLP staff. 
 
Child Care Quality Conference.  Utilize CCDF funds to cover travel costs to the TWC Child 
Care Quality Conference. 
 
Foster Care Youth Conference.  Utilize TANF funds to cover travel costs to the Foster Care 
Youth Conference. 
 
Military Family Support Pilot Program.  Program designed to better meet the needs of 
military spouses entering the job market at military installations.   

 
Fee-for-Service Grants 
TWC has begun issuing funding for Vocational Rehabilitation Services (VRS).  These 
funds aim at ensuring that Texas effectively prepares students with disabilities to obtain 
competitive and integrated employment through participation in employability skills and 
work readiness training, career exploration activities, work experience, postsecondary 
education, and other activities. 
 

Summer Earn & Learn (SEAL).  Includes work readiness training and paid work experience 
during the summer for students with disabilities. 
 
Student HireAbility Navigator Project.  Funding for two positions to serve as resources in 
the WDA to support, expand, and enhance the provision of pre-employment transition services 
to students with disabilities who are in the early phases of preparing for transition to 
postsecondary education and employment. 
 
Paid Work Experience Services.  Boards partner with TWC-Vocational Rehabilitation 
Division (TWC-VR) to pay wages and associated taxes and fees so customers with disabilities 
can engage in paid work experiences. 

 
Other TWC Grants 
TWC sometimes may issue grants to Boards that are not tied to Workforce Initiatives. 
 

Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA).  Grant programs funded by 
Title I of WIOA and the federal-state Unemployment Insurance (UI) program are required 
partners in a comprehensive, integrated workforce system.  This program targets claimants 
who are most likely to exhaust benefits and be in need of reemployment services. 
 

 
 

236



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:    Executive Committee   

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Tony Martinez, Child Care Manager  

 

Date:    June 5, 2020  

 

Subject: Child Care Essential Worker Occupations 

 

 

Summary:   

The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) provided workforce boards with funding for Essential 

Worker Child Care.  TWC identified the following occupations as essential: 

 

1. Workers in child care services that support workers in other essential functions 

2. Pharmacy and health care workers  

3. First responders 

4. Critical infrastructure workers in grocery, utilities, and trucking 

5. Other identified infrastructure workers, which include: 

a. critical state and local government staff;  

b. mail/delivery services;  

c. nursing homes, home health care, and other direct care providers;  

d. banks;  

e. gas stations;  

f. military; 

g. restaurants and other food delivery; and 

6. Critical Occupations identified by the Board 

In order to meet the needs of our local economy, using local flexibility, WSA elected to adopt 

Mayor Nirenberg’s list of Critical Occupations included in the Emergency Order issued March 

23, 2020.  Critical local industries included but were not limited to:  

• Blood banks 

• Public transportation 

• Street and highway maintenance 

• Taxis and rideshare 

• IT services 
 
 
 

237



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

• Services for Economically Disadvantaged  

• Hotels 

• Trash and recycling collection 

• Mailing and Shipping services 

• Plumbers 

• Electricians 

• Public safety 

• Funeral services  
 

Analysis:   

This decision to serve local critical occupations significantly increased the number of children 

we could serve and subsequently we had the 2nd highest number of Essential Worker 

enrollments (2,954 as of 5/22) in the state, only trailing the Gulf Coast board.  This decision 

strengthened our local economy during the pandemic and allowed us to support Essential 

Workers that needed child care on the frontline.     

 

See Statewide Essential Worker Enrollments attachment for more details. 

 

Alternatives:   

If we didn’t adopt Mayor Nirenberg’s critical occupations, we would not be serving our 

community to our fullest potential as several parents enrolled in critical occupations would have 

been ineligible under the TWC list.   

 

Fiscal Impact:   

This strategic move allowed us to enroll the maximum number (of children before TWC 

discontinued Essential Worker Child Care on 5/20.   

 

Recommendation:   

Staff recommendation was approved by CEO and WSA used local flexibility to serve more 

children in local critical industries.   

 

Next Steps:   

NA 

 

Attachment 1: Statewide Essential Worker Enrollments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

238



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1: Statewide Essential Worker Enrollments as of May 22, 2020 

 

WDA Name Enrollments 
Original 

Projections 

Reduced 
Projections 

(1/2) 

% of 
Original 

% of 
Reduced 

1 Panhandle 439 1,106 553 39.69% 79.39% 

2 South Plains 267 1,534 767 17.41% 34.81% 

3 North Texas 524 493 247 106.29% 212.58% 

4 North Central 1,560 6,340 3,170 24.61% 49.21% 

5 Tarrant 1,414 4,636 2,318 30.50% 61.00% 

6 Dallas 1,700 7,621 3,811 22.31% 44.61% 

7 North East 507 614 307 82.57% 165.15% 

8 East Texas 778 1,844 922 42.19% 84.38% 

9 West Central 337 639 320 52.74% 105.48% 

10 Upper Rio Grande 659 2,570 1,285 25.64% 51.28% 

11 Permian Basin 177 988 494 17.91% 35.83% 

12 Concho Valley 102 319 160 31.97% 63.95% 

13 Heart of Texas 456 965 483 47.25% 94.51% 

14 Capital Area 376 3,110 1,555 12.09% 24.18% 

15 Rural Capital 1,178 1,981 991 59.46% 118.93% 

16 Brazos Valley 460 808 404 56.93% 113.86% 

17 Deep East Texas 462 886 443 52.14% 104.29% 

18 Southeast Texas 484 1,336 668 36.23% 72.46% 

19 Golden Crescent 297 618 309 48.06% 96.12% 

20 Alamo 2,954 5,683 2,842 51.98% 103.96% 

21 South Texas 320 1,166 583 27.44% 54.89% 

22 Costal Bend 486 1,281 641 37.94% 75.88% 

23 Lower Rio Grande 632 2,906 1,453 21.75% 43.50% 

24 Cameron 489 1,458 729 33.54% 67.08% 

25 Texoma 231 341 171 67.74% 135.48% 

26 Central Texas 445 1,207 604 36.87% 73.74% 

27 Middle Rio Grande 213 424 212 50.24% 100.47% 

28 Gulf Coast 9,469 19,409 9,705 48.79% 97.57% 

       
Total   27,416 72,283 36,142 37.93% 75.86% 

 

 

 

239



Essential Worker Child Care
Critical Occupations

June 5, 2020

240



TWC List of Essential Workers
• Workers in child care services that support workers in other essential functions

• Pharmacy and health care workers 

• First responders

• Critical infrastructure workers in grocery, utilities, and trucking

• Other identified infrastructure workers, which include:
• critical state and local government staff; 
• mail/delivery services; 
• nursing homes, home health care, and other direct care providers; 
• banks; 
• gas stations; 
• military;
• restaurants and other food delivery; and

• Critical Occupations identified by the Board

241



Mayor Nirenberg’s Critical Occupations
• Blood banks

• Public transportation

• Street and highway maintenance

• Taxis and rideshare

• IT services

• Services for Economically Disadvantaged 

• Hotels

• Trash and recycling collection

• Mailing and Shipping services

• Plumbers

• Electricians

• Public safety

• Funeral services 

242



Boards with highest enrollments

• Gulf Coast 9,469 enrollments 97.7% of adjusted goal

• Alamo 2,954 enrollments 103.96% of adjusted goal
• Averaged over 120 enrollments per day

• Dallas 1,700 enrollments 22.31% of adjust goal

4/8 

Intake Starts 

Original Target 5,683

5/8 

TWC changes target

New Target 2,841

5/20   

TWC Discontinues 

Essential Worker

243



Questions?

244



City and County Partnership

Outreach Plan 
Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO

6/3/20

245



Objectives

1. Provide opportunities for unemployed residents to increase educational 

attainment, secure hard and soft skills, participate in work experience and on 

the job training, and positively affect the overall employability to increase 

resident chances of securing a job beyond the pandemic

2. Develop Sector Based Model that systematically integrates the workforce 

ecosystem 

3. Utilize unrestricted funds to provide education/training and wrap around 

services to lead to positive long-term employment outcomes 

246



County Recommendations - Timeline

Item Description Timeline

Data on UI Claimants WSA will provide data to Bexar County for each precinct and impacted 

industry broken down by youth and adult.

5/25

Outreach and Recruitment WSA will begin to reach out to impacted workers using 4 specific 

recruitment strategies.
6/15

Assessments Assessments will be conducted immediately following the outreach and 

recruitment 
6/21

Training Start With the schedule of training programs in place WSA will coordinate with 

training providers (GED, Short term, Occ. OJT, Work Experience will be 

considered) 

6/28

Training Completion Training completion dates determined based on length of program and 

training selected
July-Dec.

Placement Outreach WSA will begin the process of determining the number of positions 

needed based on the training programs being offered.
June – Nov. 

Placement Begins Placement will commence immediately for those not enrolled in training. June – Feb.
247



City Recommendations - Timeline

Item Description Timeline

Data on UI Claimants WSA will provide data to COSA for each precinct and impacted industry 

broken down by youth and adult.

6/10

Outreach and Recruitment WSA will begin to reach out to impacted workers using 4 specific 

recruitment strategies.
6/15

Assessments Assessments will be conducted immediately following the outreach and 

recruitment 
6/21

Training Start With the schedule of training programs in place WSA will coordinate with 

training providers (GED, Short term, Occ. OJT, Work Experience will be 

considered) 

6/28

Training Completion Training completion dates determined based on length of program and 

training selected
July-Sept ‘21.

Placement Outreach WSA will begin the process of determining the number of positions 

needed based on the training programs being offered.
July-Sept ‘21.

Placement Begins Placement will commence immediately for those not enrolled in training. July-Sept ‘21.
248



Strategies

Training

High School Completion/Equivalency

Vocational Training

Job Readiness/Skills

Professional Level Training

Work Experience

Job Matching

249



WSA Recruitment Strategies

Social 
Media

Robocalls Target 
Marketing

Direct 
Outreach

Estimated number of candidates recruited for training by these means = 17,000

250



Solutions for our community

Business /Communications (29 course options) Health & Biosciences (18 course options)

Manufacturing/Logistics (34 course options) Public Service (4 course options)

Science & Technology (18 course options)

Scrum Master Certified*** – less than 1 week – 100% online - Certified ScrumMaster®

Medical Billing & Coding Program** – 10 to 12 weeks – 100% online – AAPC/CPC certification

Community Healthcare Worker** - 10 to 12 weeks – 100% online - Level I Certificate

Certified Nurse Aide** – 4 to 6 weeks – hybrid - Texas Nurse Aide Certification/ CPR certification

Electronic Medical Applications* – 2 to 3 weeks – 100% online - Certificate of Completion (Alamo)

Acute Care Technician** – 4 to 6 weeks – hybrid - Certified ACT

OSHA-10 or OSHA-30 General* – less than 1 week – 100% online – OSHA-10 or OSHA-30 (DOL)

Certified Logistics Associate** – 2 to 3 weeks – 100% online - MSSC CLA Certification

Child Development Associate* – 4 to 6 weeks – 100% online - CDA Certification

SHRM Certification Prep*** – 2 to 3 weeks – 100% online – SHRM/SCP Certification

Python*** – less than 1 week – 100% online - PCEP /Certified Entry-Level Python Programmer

Cisco** 1 through 4 -– 10 to 12 weeks – 100% online - CCNA Cisco Certification (CCNA Composite or ICND1 and ICND2)

CompTIA A+** - 2 to 3 weeks – 100% online - CompTIA A+ 220-901 & 220-902
.

CompTIA Network+** - 2 to 3 weeks – 100% online - CompTIA Network+ N10-006
.

CompTIA Security+** - 2 to 3 weeks – 100% online - CompTIA Security+ SY0-401; SY0-501

Minimum educational level

*ABE lower-skilled

**high school diploma or equivalent

***incumbent workers / former military

251



Example of Purchased Ad

252



Robocall Script

Hello! This is Adrian Lopez with Workforce Solutions Alamo.

And this is Atascosa County Judge Robert Hurley.

(Adrian continues)

We know this is a difficult time for many families in our area, especially those who have experienced layoffs. Workforce 

Solutions Alamo is here to help you. We can assist with filing for finding a new job, getting job training for a new career 

path and securing child care services. All at no cost to you. With 16 locations across 13 South Texas counties, we have a 

team of people near you who are ready to help. 

To learn more and locate the Workforce Solutions center nearest you, visit workforcesolutionsalamo.org or call 210-272-

3260.

253



Questions?

Contact Info: 

Adrian Lopez

CEO

alopez@wsalamo.org

210-272-3250 Office

210-730-6224 Cell

254

mailto:alopez@wsalamo.org


 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:    Executive Commitee  

 

From:    Adrian Lopez, WSA CEO 

 

Presented by:  Mark Milton, Chief Operating Officer 

 

Date:    June 5, 2020 

 

Subject:   Re-Opening of the Centers Plan 

 

 

Summary:  This item is to provide an update on the Re-Opening of the career centers.  We 

anticipate this being a one-time occurrence.   

 

Analysis:   

1) WSA Intends to re-open all career centers on June 15, 2020.  TWC has accepted the Re-

Opening plan submitted in May of 2020.  WSA has secured the necessary PPE to 

distribute to contractor staff, clients, and partners.   

 

2) All centers including the rural communities are expected to open on this day for 

appointments to clients.  The resource center will remain closed to the public until 

June 25, 2020.  We do anticipate walk-in traffic will occur and we will work with these 

individuals to ensure no one is turned away.  We are working closely with KGB who 

will be messaging our re-opening plan to the community.   

 

3) CDC signage will be posted in every office including the Board office.  There is also 

signage on the doors and additional signage as needed will be placed in the offices 

when reopening to the public.  
 

4) Staff will rotate back into Career Centers on a 3 or 4 team rotation, where feasible.   

Rotations should be weekly to reduce risk of contamination of workspaces and cross 

team infection.  All staff are required to rotate.  Team members onsite in rotation in 

workstations will be at least 6 feet apart. 

 

5) We will allow staff to continue telework who are 65 years or older (CDC guidelines) 

and those with compromised immunity such as Individuals with serious underlying 

health conditions, including high blood pressure, chronic lung disease, diabetes, 

obesity, asthma, and those whose immune system is compromised such as by 

255



chemotherapy for cancer and other conditions requiring such therapy.  Other 

considerations for staff will be given on a case by case basis.   

 

6) All staff and customers will have their temperature taken daily.  According to the 

CDC guidelines, if they have a fever at or above 100.4 degrees Fahrenheit or 38 

degrees Celsius, that employee should be sent home. The same discretion can be 

used to determine whether to serve customers. Unfortunately, individuals who are 

asymptomatic cannot be detected. TWC guidelines state that we cannot require 

customers to wear a mask, however we will strongly encourage it and have a supply 

available for all clients.  Staff will be required to wear a mask at all times.   

 

7) July 1st is the targeted day we will re-open the resource room to walk in traffic.  All 

computer banks will honor the social distancing guidelines and access to computers 

will be at least 6 feet apart.   

 

8) We anticipate normal operations to resume at some point in the fall.   

 

 

Alternatives:   

In the event there is a need to close a center due to an outbreak, these situations will be 

handled on a case-by-case basis. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  

PPE and supplies have been purchased and are budgeted.  We are also budgeting for security 

services for the career centers as well.  Funding has been received to cover a portion of the 

costs for this initiative and overall impact to the budget is minimal.   

 

Recommendation:   

Recommendation is to approve the plan as highlighted above.   

 

Next Steps:   

Next steps in the process will be to continue to prep the career centers for re-opening and track 

the progress of the plan accordingly.  We will also monitor the flow and traffic patterns in each 

career center and determine if there is a need to adjust staffing or resources as available.  

Board staff will monitor the openings closely and track all the latest information from TWC and 

the CDC in order to keep our staff and clients safe and healthy.   

 

256



Executive Committee Meeting

Re-Opening of the Career Centers Plan
Mark Milton, WSA COO

6/5/20

257



Re-Opening of The Career Centers

• TWC approved the re-opening plan submitted in May.

• Career Centers will re-open via appointment only for the first 2 weeks of the plan 
(similar to our process prior to closing the centers). 

• Walk-In traffic is expected – individuals will be served via appointments

• We are working with KGB on the messaging of the re-opening.

• Staff will work in 3-4 unit shifts and rotate weekly

June 15th, 2020 – Phase I of Re-opening

• Career Centers will have resource room access for clients.

• Rotation of staff continues in 2-3 unit shifts and weekly rotations.

• We will closely monitor the foot traffic for walk-ins who do not have an 
appointment.

• We will be tracking the wait times in the centers’ resource rooms.

• We anticipate Phase II lasting until the fall.   

July 1st, 2020 – Phase II of the Re-opening 

258



Re-Opening Checklist
Item Description On target

1
Purchasing of all of the necessary PPE and temperature screenings to supply the career centers, partners and 

board staff.  

2 Working with TWC to gain guidance and overall approval of the re-opening plan.  

3
Training staff on the social distancing requirements and ensuring their comfort and safety prior to returning to 

the centers.  

4
Disabling computers and placing signage on resource room where customers occupy to honor social distancing guidelines.  

5
Messaging of the plan with KGB.  Messaging will stress that we are here to help, but must comply with capacity 

regulations.  We will ask for the community’s support.  

6 Notifying partner staff and ensuring the PPE for them is available.  

7
Signage, equipment install, and marking of the career centers ( sneeze guards, standing positions, posters, 

etc.) 

8 Security Services for the career centers in the even there is an issue with crowd control or customers.  P

259



Questions?

Contact Info: 

Mark Milton 

COO

mmilton@wsalamo.org

210-272-3260 Office

260

mailto:alopez@wsalamo.org

	Agenda
	Call to Order and Quorum Determination
	Roll CallPresenter: Chair Solis
	Declarations of Conflict of Interest
	Public Comment
	Consent Agenda: Discussion and Possible Action
	Prior meeting minutes for February 14, 2020
	FEB 14 Minutes Executive Committee.pdf

	Budget Amendment #3
	2-Budget Amendment.pdf

	Check Signing Policy
	4-Check Signing Policy.pdf


	Audit & Finance CommitteePresenter: Chair Batch
	Discussion and possible action regarding the 2018-2019 Audit Report
	1-Audit Report.pdf

	Financial Reports
	3-Financial Reports.pdf

	Procurement Reports
	Board Memo_Procurement_RFQ ExecutiveCommittee_060520.pdf
	Procurement Department_060520 Execcommittee meeting.pdf


	Briefing: Human ResourcesPresenter: Lisa Bartee
	WSA Employee Handbook Revision
	New Board Memo Format Executive Committee Employee Handbook Revisions 060520 (002).pdf
	Executive Committee Summary of Employee Handbook Updated Policies.pdf
	HR Employee Handbook Revisions PPT 060520 executive committee.pptx
	Employee Policy Handbook 04 21 Franks editsall accepted.pdf

	Organizational Review
	Board Memo  Organizational Review Update 6-5-20 Executive Committee.pdf
	WSA Executive Committee Meeting 6 5 20 - Org Review MAG.pdf

	HR Consultant
	Board Memo Prourement HR Consultant Executive Committee Meeting 6052020.pdf
	Procurement Department_RFP 60520 Execcommittee (002).pdf


	Oversight Committee Report
	Monthly Performance
	Briefing Memo for Monthly Performance Executive Committee 060520.pdf
	WSA Monthly Performance  Services Report - April 2020.pdf

	Childcare Services
	Memo Essential Worker Critical Occupations Executive Committee 060520.pdf
	Essential Worker Critical Occupations Executive Commitee 060520.pdf


	CEO ReportPresenter: Adrian Lopez
	Briefing on County and City Workforce Proposals 
	City and County Outreach Slides 6-4-20 Executive Committee 060520.pdf

	Plan to Re-open 16 Workforce Centers
	Briefing Memo for Executive Committee 060520.pdf
	Executive Committee Meeting Pres Re Open 060520.pdf


	Chair ReportPresenter: Chair Solis
	Executive Session:  Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, the Committee may recess into Executive Session for discussion on any issue for which there is an exception to the Act as set out in section 551.071 et. seq. including, but not limited to, the following:
	Government Code §551.072 – Discussions Regarding Purchase, Exchange, Lease, or Value of Real Property if Deliberation in an Open Meeting Would Have a Detrimental Effect on the Position of Workforce Solutions Alamo in Negotiations with a Third Party; and 
	Government Code §551.071 - All Matters Where Workforce Solutions Alamo Seeks the Advice of its Attorney as Privileged Communications under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas.
	Pending or Contemplated Litigation; including, but not limited to, any litigation involving Cynthia Farias.
	Government Code §551.074- Personnel Matters involving Senior Executive Staff and Employees of Workforce Solutions Alamo, including litigation by former employee Cynthia Farias.

	Adjournment

